NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075,
Tel: 011-25076536, FAX: 25076536, Email; nhlimpl@nhai.org
CIN: U659290L2020G0I366835

Date: 23™ May, 2022

Corporate Relations Department The Listing Department,
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
Dalal Street, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 001 Mumbai — 400 051
L —k . |

Ref: Scrip Code: 543385; Scrip ID/Symbol: NHIT

Subject: Qutcome of the Board Meeting of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private

Limited- Investment Manager to National Highways Infra Trust (NHAI InviT) held an 23" May , 2022.

Dear Sir/Madam,

In furtherance to the intimation dated 18" May , 2022 and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with
circulars and guidelines issued thereunder (“InvIT Regulations”), we hereby inform you that a meeting
of the Beard of Directors (“Board”) of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited
acting in the capacity of Investment Manager to National Highways Infra Trust [MHAI InviT) was held
today i.e. 23" May , 2022, wherein the Board inter-alia took up the following matters:

1.

Consideration and approval of the Annual Financial Statements (Standalone and
Consolidated) of NHAI InvIT for the financlal year ended on 31" March , 2022 along with
respective Audit Report issued by Statutory Auditors. The Annual Financials and Audit Report
are enclosed as Annexure | .

The declaration of Distribution of Rs. 0.79 per unit (Return on capital of Rs. 0.71 per unit,
return of capital of Rs. Nil per unit, Dividend of Rs. Nil per unit and other income on surplus
funds at Group of Rs, 0.08 per unit} for the period October 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 to be
paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration.

The record date for this distribution will be 26" May, 2022 and payment will be made on or
before 7" June, 2022,

Re-affirmation of Credit Ratings by Care Ratings Limited and India Ratings & Research Private
Limited .Copy of letters issued hy Care and India Ratings are enclosed as Annexure Il & 111,

Discussion on modalities of following two projects /Road Assets offered by National Highways
Authority of India for potential acquisition by NHAI InvIT {“Round 27 including
commencement of diligence:

Agra Bypass (32 kms)
Borkhedi— Wadner — Kelapur — Maharashtra Border {139kms)



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075,
Tel: 011-25076536, FAX: 25076536, Email: nhiimpl@nhal.org
CIN: U65929D1L2020G01366835

The Board meeting commenced at 5:30 p.m. (I15T) and concluded at 8:00 p.m. (IST)

Request you to take note of the same.
Sincerely,

For National Highways Infra Trust

By Order of the Board

National Highways Inlra lmeg’tment Managers Private Limited

1 Jegen
unjan Singh '
Company Secretary ‘ah& Eomp‘fﬁnée Officer

Encl: As above
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL
RESULTS FOR THE HALF YEAR AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI [INFRASTRUCTURE
INVESTMENT TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED

Ta,

The Board of Directors

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited
(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust)

G-5 & 6, Seclor-10,

Dwrarka, Delhi - 110075

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of standalone financial results
ol National Highways Intra Trust (hereinafter referred o as “the Trust or
NITIT”), consisting of the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, explanatory notes thereto and the additional
disclasures as required in pa ragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular Nao.
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 49, 2016 (“SEBI Circular”) for the
half year and the year ended March 31, 2022 (the slandalone statement of
Profit & Loss including other comprehensive incame, other comprehensive
income, explanatory notes and acdditional disclosures together referred to as
"the Statement"), attached herewith, heing submitted by the National
Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment
Manager”) pursuant to the requirements of Repulation 23 of the SEB]
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time
ta time read with SEBI Circular.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Statemont:

4. Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 234 of
SEBI  (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} Repulations, 2014, as



amended from time to time, read with SEB! Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/127 /2016 dated November 29, 2016, and any other
relevant circulars in this regard; and

b. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of
the net profit and other comprehensive income and other fHnancial
information of the Trust for the half year and the year ended March
31, 2022,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducled our andit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing [SAs),
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Our responsibilities
under those Standards are [urther described in  the ‘Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results’ section of
our report. We are independent of the T'rust in accordance with the 'Code of
Lthics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance these
requirements and the Code of Bthics. We believe thal the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone financial results.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual
financial statements. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives
a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and
other financial information of the Trust in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time ("SEBI InvIT
Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a] of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations. This responsibilily includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.



In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Trust to tantinue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager either intends to liquidate the Trust or to COAse
operations, or has no realistie alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Trust,

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Statement as a whole i free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audir in accordance with SAs, we oxercise professional
judgment and rmaintain professional skepticisim throughout the audit. We
also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide g basis for gur opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatemen| resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentiona] omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design  audit pracedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose af EXpressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Trust's internal controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and relatee disclosures made
by Bourd of Directors ot Investmenl Manager.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of

Investment Manager ise of the going concern basis of gaecounting



and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern.
[ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the Statemont or, if such disclosures are inadequate, Lo modify our
apinton. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. Ilowever, future events or
conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentution, structure and content of the
Stalement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with theose charged with povernance vegarding, among
other matters, Lthe planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings
identify

. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
during our audilt,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we

have co

mplied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

redasonag

bly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards,

OTHER

MATTERS

1. The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the half year

ende

d March 31, 2022 being the balancing figures between the audited

figures in respect of full financizl year ended March 371, 2022 and the

Lnau

dited/unreviewed year to date figures up to September 30, 2021,

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified {n respect of the above maltter.

For A.R. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA Naresh Ku

Partner
Membe
UDIN: 2

rship No: 077887
2077887AJLSW07656

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.05.2022
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Additional disclosure us vequired ey paragraph 6 of Annexure A o the SEREClivenlae No, CIRAM I DEA 222016

L Statement of Related Partios

A. List of Refated Parties as per requirement of NI AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures"

( 4 o National Highways Infra Peojeces Private Limited
) iNes ¢ C / nr i e L
Il' nierprises where Control / gignifica qu.Iumce Caisly (Subidinry Campany]

B. Liscof wdditional refated parties iy per Regubation 20 v of the SEDT InyI T Repulutions

Parties to the Trust

Matianz! Highways Infia leyesunen Meunogers Private i ited ENHIEIMIPLY = Inwiesione Wlaaager (M) ol the Toow
D31 Tiusteeship Services |imiied (1] 8L - Trastee of the Trust

National Highways Autharits ol lndia (NE AD- Spasr

Natiooal Highways lnvl 1 Project Managars Private Lirmiled (1 (ML) Projest Manager

Promorters of the Parlies tn the Trust snecitied nbove

Prasicent of Tidis = Promoter of NUTMPL

[B1 Bank Lisvited {11381 Bank) - Promoter of {8l

Prasident ol India « Proroter ol NHAL

Natioral Highways Autiorisy of India (NHATD Pesmotar ol WNHIPMPL

Direcrors of the pavtics to the Trust specified 4hove

Divectors of NHIIMPI,

Mr. Suresh Krishan Govg

Mr Vivek Rag

Mr. Shaileadru Narcin Roy

Mr. Balasubramanyam Sriran

Mr Malervie Parsed Sharma

Mr. Pradecp Singh Kbarols

Mr. Amit Kueaar Gliash

Mrs. Kavita Saha

M~ Bruce Ress Craze

Mr. MRV VALK, Rajercdea Kiior

Direciors of ITSL

M Padun ¥Yined Beid

Mr. Samizel Josepl Jebary
s Madbari Jayant Kulkzmi
M. Pradeep Kumar lain

M. Jayashree Ronade

Directors of NHIPMEL

Mr. Ashish Asai
Mr. Muralidaara Rao Busarha

i 2
= /
Loy
21 Mew Delhi
= ¥

(&3
el

A




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Additinnal disclosure as required by parsgeaph 6 of Annexare A to the SEBI Civenlar No. CIRAMIVDF 1272014

€. Transactions with Related Parties durving the periml

[Ameurts in ¥ Likh)

S Uallyear (Wil year ended| Yearended | Vear ended
T enilorl My September | 3st Mareh st March
wrticulirs st March el 22 2021
ey
Transuction during the period/vear
Purchase of eouity shares ol NHIPPL [ 2041000 |29 L0 -
Advencemeant of Lorg Term Loan to NHIPL £, (05 AL O, 18 000 -
Receipt of ineresi o0 Loag Teem Lonn givei do MIHPEL 219200 12,182.00 -
Heimburszment of ROC Fee padd by NELT on behefC ol N2 T4 - 274,9% -
Nutional Highways Inlra Investment Managers Private 1)
[Trausacton daring the
Paymeent of Investmem Manager ee LU . L93LTI -
Reimbursement of Pra-lssuz expenses of NHUL by NHIDMPL 214,80 B 21480 .
Natineal Highways Authority of Dndia (NHATL
Transaction during the period/year
‘Reirchurseinent of Pre-Lssue expenses of NHIT by N1AI STRNZ . SN2 67.03
Furchase of cquiny shaves of Project SPV ONHIPPL)Y by the Trust rom 14153 4 10,155,372 .
[NHAI ' -
| s ofurits of st o NEEAT Qe 55600 CE, 556,00
1DB! Trusteeship Servives Lipited (1TS1.}
Trnusaction duving the peciod/year
Payavent of Truster FFue I2.14a 12,15 .
Liitiad Setdlement Amownt s s " 0.0
N, Closing Balance with Related Parties
- o A i3 Lk
Halfyear  [Holl year ended | Year ended Year ended
Pirmcali enled M September | dst March | 31st March
Mst Mareh pATEN | gz 021
T W2
Natianal [lighwavs Infra Projects Private Limited (NIIIPPL)
Bakance outstanding at the end of the periodivear
{Im-cs;u_z:n i." equity shares of MHIPPI, 1,28 100080 = [ 2047 8.00 2
Long Ter Loan fo NHIPPL 0544000 = X RRIGE LR -
Inierest seeeivable on Long Teen Loan given o N1JPPL 10.451.13 e 10.051,13 -
Nativnal Highwavs Authority of India (NHAT)
Balance nutstanding at the end of the period/year
Iszsuc ol units of Trust w NEIAT (9,56,00.000 units) 0 336400 5 G550 400 e
[IDBI T rusreeship Services Limited
Bulanee putstanding af the end of the perindfyear
Initial Senlerment Ansount 1 0.8 (i ult
I'rustee Fes Payeble 2.7 - 247




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Notes rothe andited stnmlabone linaneial vesults uf Ui Trose for the half year and your encdod Vst Nagel 2022

The audited standaione Snzuzinl results of Natioral Highwass D Tuse (st 1oe e half e ane vl dnded 3181 March, 2022
have beer eviewed by e Audil Committes off Maiora) AMighways Infra nvestiment Maspges Private Limitod [Tivestimen
Macipa® of Trusty at the mecting Deld on 230 May, %
therr mecting heid on 23ud May, 2022, The sttty andivons have issue 1o unneodified v repont o these standalore Geangial

wed ipproved by the doard ot Divectors of tie Tuvestaent Manager

L= THLS

The weditud standalone tinancial resuls compeises the Standalone staleson of profil and Toge, explioarery qotds ind e additional
dhosclasures as requived i, parageaph 4 of Annexie A 1o the SERL Ciooalar o CIRAMIIDE 202000 cated 200 November, 2016
USEBI Ciovlur') of the “Trust for the half year and year ender 3at Murch, 2022 (S tadalone financial pesals, The stardulone
fimancia’ results b been prepueed by *the Investment feammger' an e binsis of the scancatone znanual awdivgd Rnareial stetements
woat and fon the yeur emled 1181 Mareh, 2022, In oecordance with e relevanl Peeuipements af SERT I feastracture Dovestiren
Trusts) Repelations, 2004, a8 anrended Tom 1ime (o tme {"the SEDB Regulutivons" by el 55030 ateeulnr,

R

Figures 2 the halfyear ended 315t Macch, 2022 reprossi: (he baleneing Agnres herween the audited eures Toe the ysar endded 31s1
Murely, 2002 and unaeelized e sesiowed e date g Lpto WU Sepreraber, 2021,

Nitiowa ] TEgoway It Trus (“Tast™ or Yol T s ar lnevosabbe pust tepisteradd under the provisions af the nadan Fross Ao,
1 A5 aa 1t U;ll’";w. U001 It was “"I:‘."; nl:.-l';;gl LI.ILliII ||'Ih- ety g ~||.| |...\iiLi1||!-L'-' B ol Tindha U|I|h-|?i"|'L|r.'fl!l'C lll‘-'l‘f‘.-.ll'll:.!l ]lll’-i::'
Repulations, 2014 on 28th Ouviober, 2020 having reg emtion numbe IND120-21 4014,

Ime Baard of Divecters of the Investment Manager bave doclancy disteibusion of Rs, 0,49 e il which comprise R, 0071 per upit
s fewm on capital, Rs, G.08 per onic ey other income o surplus funds o1 Trost in thele meetlag lield on 2300 May, 2022,
Prestrabunon is to be prid on ar befoce 15 davs front the date of decladion,

The Trust has acquired e enlive equity share capital of (e Nasionz| Mighways tifia Projects Private Timiced (Proreet SPV's) on 31
Movensher, 2221 on an eonily eonsidesation of R, 1,30.55 3,53 Inkhes

Al values are rowaded o ncarest [akly, unless otherwise indicated, Curmaie smounse tha aws reguived 1o be diselosed and o nol
yepesr due e mwneding oV aee expressed as C.00,

Previos periodyzar fgures have been e lassifieddes ronped whaeve: neeessary o conlione weewren) peried elassificarion,

For and on behalt of the National Highwvaes Tofen Investiosont Managers
Private Limited (Tovestnent Sapaper of Natienal Highways Infra Trusy)

L7
| &[ New Dglhi]=!

N ¢y sl

S L i ol
e T, rlnrlaiddingiy &)J Muthem Grnege Sulregl Inriblann Lioyva

Coamplianee Oficer Chief Finane sl Ollieer Lhrecter
130N 02721580

Phyee; Moew [elai
Drate: 23 May 2022




AR & CO. Delhi Office:
Chartered Accountants A-403, Gayatri Apartment Airlines
Group Housing Society, Plot No 27,
Sector =10, Dwarla, New Delhi-110075
Cell No.-9810195084, 9810444051
B-mail: ar_cel981@yahoo.coin
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
RESULTS OF THE TRUST FOR THE HALF YEAR AND YEAR ENDED MARCH
31, 2022 PURSUANT TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI
(INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS
AMENDED

T

The Board of Dircctors

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited
(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust)

G-5 & 6, Sector-10,

Dwarka, Delhi- 110075

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of consolidated f{inancial

results of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the

Trust or NHIT") comprising its one subsidiary (hereinafter referred to as “the

National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited or NHIPPL") (the Trust and '
its subsidiary "NHIPPL” together referred to as “the Group”), consisting of the '
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive I
Income, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as required |
in  paragraph 6 of Anpnexure A to the SEBI Circular No. |
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 24, 2016 ("SEBI Circular”) for the |
half year and year ended March 31, 2022 [the consolidated statement of

Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, explanatory notes

and additional disclosures together referred to as “Statement”), attached

herewith, being submitted by the National Highways Infra Investment

Managers Private Limited (“Investment Manager”) pursuant to the
requirements of Regulation 23 of the S5EBI (Infrastructure Investment

Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time Lo time read with SEBI

Circular,



In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and the based on the consideration of the report of
statutory auditor of the subsidiary on subsidiary's Standalone Financial
Statements, the Statement:

a. Includes the results and other disclosures of the National Highways
Infra Projects Private Limited:

b, [s presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of
SEBL (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as
amended, read with SEBL Circular No. CIR/IMD/DE/127 /2016 dated
November 29, 2016, and any other relevant circulars in this regard;
and

¢. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
Indig, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of
the consalidated net profit and other comprehensive income and
ather financial information of the Group for the half year and year
ended March 31, 2022,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further deseribed  in the ‘Auditor’s
Respaonsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results* section of
our report. We are independant of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of
Elhics' issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of [ndig Logether
with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT
Regulations and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by ug and other auditor in torms of his report
referred to in “Other Matter” paragraph below, is sufficient and apprapriate
ta provide a basis for our audit opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Statement has been prepared an the basis of the consolidated annual
financial statements. The Board of Directors' of the Investment Manager is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives
a true and fair view of the consolidated net prolit and other comprehensive
income and other financial infermation of the Group in accordance with the
requirements of the SEBI InvIT regulations as amended, Indian Accounting



Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards] Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT
Regulations, The Board of Directors of the subsidiary included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
controls, that were operating effectively lor ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation ol the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Board of Directors of
the Investment Manager, as aloresaid,

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager
and the Board of Directors of the subsidiary included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accou nting unless the respective Board of
Directors either intends Lo liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager and the subsidiary included in
the Gronp are also responsible for oversecing the financial reporting process
ol the Group.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATE"
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Statement as a whole is free from material migstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasenable assurance is a high level of assurance, butl is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from [raud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions af users taken on
the basis of the Statement.




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement ol the
Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to thuse risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial contro] relevant Lo the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls.

Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whetlier a materia
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Statement or, it such disclosures are inadequate, Lo
modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the
date of our auditar’s report However, future events or conditions
Inay cause the Group to cease to continue as a Boing coneern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and centent of the
Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves [air presentation,



e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the linancial
information of the Trust of which we are the independent auditors,
to express an opinfon on the Statement. We are vesponsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
statements of Trust included in the Statement of which we are the
independent auditors. For the subsidiary included in the Statement,
which have been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust of which
we are the independent auditor regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable,
related sateguards.

OTHER MATTERS

1

The consolidated financial results include the audited financial results
of subsidiary ~ National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited whose
financial statements reflect Group's share of total assets of Rs.
7,35,774.44 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022, Group's share of total revenues
of Rs. 13,981.33 Lakhs, Group's share of losses after taxes including
other comprehensive income (net] of Rs. 11,355.90 Lakhs and net cash
outflows amounting to Rs. 12,802.25 Lakhs as considered in the
Statement. These financiul stutements and orher financial information
have been audited by other auditor and whose report has been
furnished to us by the management of Investment Manager of the ‘I'tust
and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on
the report of the other auditor,

. The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the

half year ended 31 March 2022 being the balancing figures between
the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended 31
March 2022 and the uynaudited /unreviewed year-to-date figures up
to 30 September 2021.




Qur opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above
matters.

For A, R. & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 002744C

CA Naresh Ku
Partner
Membership No: 077887
UDIN: 22077887AJ1'TFA8733

R R & CO
FRN 002744 C

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.05.2022
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NATIONAL IMMIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Additional disclosure ny required hy Parageaph 6 of Annexure A v the SERI Clrenlar No CTRAMDIDEA 272016

¢« Praject manager and Investment manager fees

Project Munapement Fees:

i} The Projcet Manozer (NHIPMPLY for meniging the Inful portfhlio of assere. 15 entithed
al the gross revenae camed by the project SV INERERRLY, The sarme will be based on e
(PIMA) sigoed by hath the partios duted 3000 Mlareh, 2021,

i) The project SPV (NTUPLY hes propesed @ fees of Re 70,00 Luk
the seivices ollesad by the project ounager, fir perend of 18
fees for the perind alter the explry of' 18 months shall be o [
dgreed Between the panics in the PIMA,

Investment Mannger Foes:

s Mrsject Munnger e which will he a percenlogy

Proveer limplementativon and Minagement Apreemen|

h{Rusees Severuy Lakh Only) per mocth, as priject munaper’s tees ¢gninst
tenzhs startiag from the date nl coneessiog agrecient, The Praieet Manage:'s
reentape of gioss covee cam by the project 8PV (NFUP'EL). which is mutally

i} The lovestment Masagar's lee os pes Agreeinent dated 2151 Oulishir 2020 will inhial y be R, 1100 1akh (Rupees Eleven Croes) e annum,

11 The menngerient e set o in parggeaph (1} ahove stll be subijee! t asealation mn un annual basis a1 ke rate aft 110

fiar the previous year.

iy Any applicable laves, cess or charpes, a8 the case mpy be, shall 5 i acdition o the monagement e wl slal

Highways Infro Trust (NFTT) o the Tnvestnent Manager (NTTML),
Payment of frecuency: Payment of nuazgement fee shall be
(NFIIMPLY i advaies on n querterly basis,

d. Statement of earnings per unit ('LI'LY

Bagic EPU muowys are calculated by dividing the
owsstanding daving the perdiod! yeor. Diluted 1PU amg
sverage number of unirs outstanding diring the
e difubive pereatial vnits into unit capita’.

profit for the periecd year atribuable o i bobders by
unts e caleclated by dividing the prafittless) auril
period s2ar plus the welphted avernge number of anits tat would be issied on conversion of a'l

Yol ke managenent fie
be pavable by Natjogl

made by National Highways Infra Crust INHIT) (o the Invesmment Mauper

the weizhted average number of yuits
utahle wun't hokders by fhe weighled

Half year ended

l Pavticulars ’
M Mageh 2022

Hall yeas el

M Seprember
2

Year ended 31
Mareh 2022

Year ended 31
March 2021

(Neter nage o ¥

Gl

S

idudited)

|Profit for the meriod { vear (F lokks)

6B 16,11 - G, 836.33 (%40
Welahted aversge number of unifs awstanding [or computation o] a8 82 UL - SE.52.00.000 -
Bavic amed dituted exming par i,
‘Farning per unit {(basic and diluted) (4) 1.15 5 L15 -
c.lca:mlmitm-':im. . .
|Comm et or loan o Subsidinny Company (Project SPV- NHIPPL) §2.000.00 SRAHL 0 -_I

E Contingent Liabilities:-

The Project SPV compacy [NHIPPL) has jssueg 3 Corparate Guany Lee smourting o INR 2,000 Crame en 1032027 iy Ravgur

Trust a2 pert of debl cavenants ¢f the logn reccived from he Trust, o secira the

fenders. The Corporate Gusranzee is valid till the excternal loans oothe Trust wre satisfod,

of Jendars of the

fenmn loan of INR 2,000 Crare aviiled by e Trust from exernal




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Addditional diselosure s required by paragraph 6 of Ansgexure A to e SEBL Cireulyr Mo, CHBINMIDDE 27020106
z. Statemeent of Related Parties

Ao Listof additional vetated parties ns per Regulation 20 10ev) of the SEBL ny 1T Repulations

Parties to the Trusl

Narioral Higlioays Il Tovestment Managers Private Limited INHEIMITED = Inves ireent Mlanasee (I ol the Tiust
1D Vrusteeship Services Limited (JTSLY - Trustee of the rst

Nationn! HEghways Authariee of Tndio (NEAT- Sporsor

Nuthomal D hghwoys Inv T Prject Manggers Frivie Dimied (K] HPMPLY- Project Muguge

Pramaters of the Porlies (o the Trust specified above

President of Indiz « Mromoter of NEIMPI,

TDB Bask Tirnred (L0080 Danky - Promoter ol 1TSE

Fresident o Irdin - Prometer o WA

National Hezaways Authority of Tndia (NFEAL- Pramater of NHLEME],

Direetors of the parties fo the Vrust specified aboyve

Directers of NHIINIPL

Mr, Surest Krishan Goya

Mr. Vivek Kae

Mz Shailendva Narain Roy

M Balasabaarmainy o Stivam

iir Maliovir Parsiad Sharma

M1 Pradeep Singh Khargly

&r Amit Kumar Ghosh

Mrs, Kavilta Saha

Mr. Bruce Ross Crane

Mr N R V.V MK, Rajendra Kumau

Directors af [TSL

Mr. Padme Vieng DBem

iir. Samnst foseah Jebara
Ms. Madhori Javent Eulkorri
My, Pradeep Kurmar Een

Ma. Jayashree Ramade

Directors of NIIIFMPL

Mr. Askish Asal
Adr. Muralidbams Rao Bugalha




NATIONAL IHGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Additional diselasure as reguived by paragraph 6 of Annexure A {0 the SEBT Cirenlar N, CHRIM IV 27 20016

B. Transactions with Related Parlics during the period

EAmaanes in 3 lakhy

- Halt year ended| Hall yenr ended | Year ended 31| Year ended
Purticul SEMarveh 2022 | 30 September | Muarch 2022 | 31 March
wrbiculars 221 2921
- CRufor note 34 -I‘ { 'r|.*.ru..|’!'r|;§¥.' ot el) tolwselisid)
Nutional Hoghwavs Infra Investnent Managers Privare Limited (NHIIMPL) -
Transaction duving the periad/year
Payment af Investment Maonager Fes 193171 " (BRI
Reimbor sement ol Pre-lssie expenses af NHI | by NHEIMPL 204,80 B 21480 -
National Highwavs Authority ol Iadis (NTTAI
Yransuction during the pepiodivear :
Bembursement of Pre-lssus expeases ol NHIT by NTAL 7800 . 802 6703
Purclivse of vei ty shores of Project SPV (NETPPLY by the Trus) fram MHA 10,153 52 i BLIR3S2 E
Issue of units oF Tnust 1o NHAL Uk S50 00 - L6, 334 ()
IDBY Trusteeshin Serviees Limited (1TS L)
Transaction during the periadevear
Pavimen: o Trusiee Fee 12,15 " 12.18 “
hitial Sealement Ansoun: - - - 1314
€. Closing Balance wilh Reluted Partics
= (Amonnts in € lakh)
Walf year ended| Hanlf yenr ended | Yosr ended 31] Year ended
PsSeiinrg U March 2022 | 30 September | March 2022 | 31 Mareh
nrtrenlirs W21 1
(Anitiiel) fimetitea) | gdnliionds _f.--.';;-.a'.".r—:::a’a'_
\Nation:) Highways Autherity of Indis {NHAL)
Balanee outstanding 4t the end of the periodfyear
P afuniie ol Tras e WAL (556,000 woits) L Rl - ELLURET :
IEL Prusiceship Services Limidedd
Balance outstandiog nt (he end of the perindveur
{Initial Setlemwnt Amwrnd 01 0,4 (.10 i
Truster Fev Payahls 377 - 377




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

L¥

i1

Notes to the audited consulichuted fiaaneisd vesults of the Trast G the hall vear and vear cnded 310 Mareh 2022

e aned ed consalidsed finareial resuluy ol Matienal Hialvways Il CTescs fe vz half year an wear eded 3 s March
2022 have bewn peviewed by the sochit Commyties of Salonal Timhways 1950 st sent Managers Mrivare D imited (Tnvestient
Manager' of Trust) az their meeting held on 230 May. 2022 aned aygeaved by e Boand of Directo s of U nvestmient Manaoe: sl
their meeting hefd an 2 Sy, 20070 The stntoey anditors hie dsseeid anmned Qe it cepont e hase eonsol idutal
finanzial resuls.
Pe andited somsolidatad tnancinl vesults congnises the eonsolidined stameat ol vl Do, cpliaiory otes ol e
addicianal iiseiostees s reguived o pasagrapl O of Aonesuee & o e SEBI C II'.‘Ll|‘:tI‘ o OO DE 282006 dare) 20th
favember, 2016 (SEBT Cireaion, of the Trust e yoarencded 31st Mareh, 2021 teonsolidated fome ab resuis) The consolidated
Annsinl results liove been |u-c;m:-c:l by the 'Investnent Mainge” Basis the andbed e b tinzneinl staentants as ot and for
e e ended 3151 Mareh. 2022 anetal vestls e the bl Fyear ended 300 Seacember, 2020 one in acaoréance
WAL the pelerant fsgitements of » I.Jil tiulmlmumr' Bivvestonen Trosts ) Bewa ntions, 2004, se amended Toe Sme ot (e
SEBN Repolations™), and thy celvaveis SEBD clreatars,

Pigees or e holl vear enced Ml Mo, 2022 sepresant D Tramsaetiong seearing hetween the awcind deues T he yoas
encled 3lut Mareh, 2022 bad unacdived year-lo-date figares s 3000 September, 2020

Iz consolidated fnanelal statements meoreate the Tnaneal stawreenls o e Trest pee i0's sirhsicliary 2 mjner SPVCNHETPL)
Somduie ol acguisttivn ol the subsiciary Les November 5, 20201,

The consolidawed finzneial stremerts combine tinaneia siremenss of the Truse and s subsidinvies om lise Ly-ling basis Iy
ailding tepether the ke items or' assers, babilities income aud expenses, Al° ntm-z g assets, Hubilides, Incene, expenses wal
trrealised prafits! asees an intrasgronp transactons erenbiated oo covsulidal o wolkess Ui bansaetion provides evidencs alan
mpeirment of transferced aesen The canying aeeaunt of the Group's Tnvestment i zeeh subsidiary &l the Group's portion of
cutiy el coel subsiviay we offiet with each othe in the conselidaed financial datements,

wvisions o he mdian Froes dor,

Na: .‘n'.a‘ Phabasy Batia Trass (" Lenst™ o “Ied T is an Gvesocablz st cepistered vnder
552 on Chtaber 29, 2520, 1t G registored usdie e Seearities ane Fusbinse Boacl of Imm [Inpstrueture investment Tresty)
Peswlatons, 2002 on Chelobier 28, 20020 Ravine coslsteatior nimber D8 e 1202100004,

The Bewd of Destors of the evesment Marzmer have dec arec ition ol R 0079 per waiv which conguive Rss 271 pe
Las return an eapilal, s 008 per ucil as athey Tiesme on ‘\L'|I|I.I'H fomcts st Toust fn thade eestion bkl on May 23, 20021
LEstriburion §a W e paid on or before 15 davs Fom the daie o deelaation.

s Infes Progeces Peosva Binied (Prsject PV on

Lhe et Fas acguired the entice squity saare caplial of (he National Hig
1l i

I Nowen l-:‘n, -‘"”_l

Al values aie rounded W0 nearest Tash, nless sllerwise tndicated, Ceetaln aman sl hat aes recpulred 1o be disclosed arl do ne
apzar due o rennding of "aoe cprvssand uy G,

ez s pd venr Tl have ween teetdant et e e A lizseser necesam

PN I curr et pe il oy

P amal o Behalt of the Nariseal Highways Infea Linestment Manggers
Private Limited {Investment Manager of Narional Highways Infra Trust)

ﬁ

gk
‘\- x I|-'\ J’i;{ '_'FF
\\._ o é: ) o
ClunjudiSingh Whathew Cearue Supeallrighan Goyil
Compliance OfTe Chier Finamoial Gificsr [¥rector

DIN: 02731530

Place: New [elln
[hate: 23 Muy 2022




Ad & 0, BLH Delh] Office:

Chartered Accountants O3, Gaatei Apartmuent
ﬂ_. Jines Growp Heael g Sociely
Plot Mo 27, Sector-110,
Pwarka, Mow Delhi -1 10075
Coll Mo SELO1O506, 0810444051
E-tnail aroen lr.l-ﬁ;ﬁ,-j-'.il‘llll].L.Il.I"l
powanlael Lo gmail com

Corperate and Correspondence.
Office:C-1, 11 Floor, RDC, Raj Nagae
Ghaziahad- 2010010 Dethi-MOGR
Mativnal Capital vegion O Deihi

INDEPENDENT AUDIMTOR'S REPORT
To the Unil Holders of Natioral Highwavs Infes Trost
Report on the Audil of the Standalone Finuncial Statementy
OPINION

We have audited the accompan ying standalong [nancial gratements of Mational
Highways Infra Trust (“the InviT" or “the Trast™), which counprise the Balance
Sheet as al 31 March 2022, the Statenient of Profic and Loss [inchuding Other
Comprehensive Income], the Statoment of Changes In Unitholders Bauity sl the
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, the Statement of Net Assers ol
fair value as at 31 March 2022, 1he Statement of Total Returns at [airvalue agd the
Statement of Net Distribatable Cash Flows ("NDCFs”) fur the year then ended and
roles to the standalons (nancial sialemnnts including a summary ol significant
cenunting policies and other explanalory infoermation (hereinafter reforred ta as

"Lhe standalone Mzisoias stateueids g

In aur epinien and Lo Lhe best of onr information amd according to the

explanations given ta ug, the plaresaicd standalone Faneinl sl b aipe th
informalion  required by  Uhe Securities  and Erehange Board of  Ilodia
(Infrastrueture Investment Trusls) Repulations, 2014 as amended from time to
e including any guidelines and circulars issued thersunder (togetbher referred
te as the "SEBI InvlT Regulations™) in the manner so required and give a trioc and
Fatr view in conforimity with the Indian Accounling Standacds as delived in rule
2{11{a) of the Companies {Indian Accounbing Standards) Roles, 2015, g5 amended
("Indd AS") and olher accounting principles penerally aceepted in India, ta the
pxtent not incansistent with SEBI Invl'l' Regulations, of the state of affairs of the
Trust as al 31 March 2022, its profit including olher comprehensive fncome, ils
cash fows, its statemant of changes in Unitholder's cguity for the yvear ended 31
March 20234, its net assels at fair u'--xlw asab 31 Mareh 2022, its toral veturns at fair

ralue and the net distributable cash Nows of the Trusl for the year ended 31
March 2022




BASIS FOR OPINION

We eonducted our aedit of the standalone financial statements in accardance with
the Standards on Auditing ("SAs™)  igsued by e Institale of  Chartered
Accountants of India, Our respansibilitics under those Standards are lurther
described in the Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Finaneial Statements section ol our report. Wo are Independent of the Trust in
accordanee with the Code of Fthics fssued by the Instimile of Chartersd
Accountants ol India togelher with the ethical reguirements that ase relevant Lo
our andit of the standalone fnaneial statements under (e provisions of the SR
v’ Regulations, and we hove Tulfilled ovr ather efiieal respanaibilitias i
aceordance with these requirements and the Code of Tthios. We belicee that the
andit evidence we bave obtained fs sulliciont andd dApprapelate v preide i L
for our opinion on the standalane Fonngtal statemer (s,

KEY AUDIT MAT'TERS

Key audic matlers are those matters thal, in ous prolessional judgment, were of
mosl significance in our audit of the standalone finaneial statements for the
ol in the eoatexs

financial year ended 31 Marell 2022, These malters were oo dpe:
of our audit of the standalone Mrancial statements as a whole, and in forming our

Lo

opinian therean, acd we do not provide o separvate apinion on these matlers. We
have determined the matlers descrined below to he the [z aucllt mollers to be
communicated in our report

| Sr. | Key Audit Matter R " TAudlitor's Response
N."' ' LRI _ A e _ll_ ¥ R b s N ALl
1. ! Assessment of bmpairment of Investment

made in and Loans given to the subsidiary

compuny, Naltional Highways Infva
Projects Private Limited {("NHIPPL")

Management 15 requived to review regolarly | Ou Audit Procedures
whether  there  are  any  indicatorg  of | ingluded the Tollowing -
impairment of such investmenls/ laans by
refevence Lo the requirements under nd A% | - Independent assessment of
and perform its impairment assessment by the Mituee  cash flows  in
comparing the carrying wvalue of these | NHIPPL and  assessing the
investments made/ loans piven to thelr | @appropriateness of the Litare
recoverable amount to deteriuine whethber  Cash fows estimated.

impairment needs to he recognized. In making this assessment,
we  also ovaluated  the
obijectivity, independence
antd competency of

For impairment testing, value in use has to specialists involved in the
e determined by lorecasting oand process:

discounting lulure cash flows of subsidiry
company. Further, the value in use is highly | -Assessing the AssumMptiens
sensitive to chanpges in oriticol variable used | around Lhe key drivers of the
revenue projections, future

cash  flows |

inr  forecasting




Tl

| incleding teaffe projections Far revenues il

recoverable  amount  from  subsidinrey
cOnpany managemenl eslimaltes

il judgmentwhich may a0eel the pulesme,

involves

S0, lhere s an inherent visk in the valuation
of investment)/ recoverabilivy ol Inany, e to

the use of estimates  and  judgements
|mentioned abowve and

Accordingly, the assessmenl of dnpairment

af investiment foans in subsidiany conipuany |

bras been determined oy a ey aadit matter,

Refer Note 2.6 for the accounting policy an
Impadrntent ol lowvestments &  Note 30
relating to Disclosure pursdant Lo Tnd A8 36
of Assels” in  Standalone
al 31 Marell 2022, Also Relar
Lhe Aceounling  policy

& Mole relaling

"Tmpairment
Financials as
Nale 2.8

Financial

(RER!
8]

oy

ansel a7

| Expected Credit Loss on Finaneial Assels in

The Standalone Financials ag at 371 warch

A2

Crmmpulal.im'n and disclosures
prescribed in the SEBI InvIT repulations
refating to Statement of Nel Asscts at Fair
Valvue and Total Returng at Fair- Value

As per SEBL 1nwvlIT regulations, the ‘Crust iy
required to discloze statement of nel assels
al i vdine annd stolomento! winl releens st
fair value. The Tair value is determined by
forecasting  and  discounting  future gash
flows Irom the aperations of the [nvesteo
enlities  which  involves
estimates and Judgemenl. These estinsales
and Jwdgements include discounting rates,
Tax rates and inflation raves which are
considered for computing the fair value.

There is an inherent risk in the computation
of falr value due to the use of estimates and
Judpgements meniioned above,

Therefors, computation and disclosures of

statement of net assels at fair value and |

statement of total returns at FRic value is
amnsidered as a Key Audit bMatrer.

Kite

Refer statemenl of net asssts
Pu. e o {
FRN 002744 G

0 -
R

abt fadr valug

discouncing rates, The deteriminationg of e |

R

managermant

Ccash flow, discount rates £
wednbled  average cost  of
capital that
BT el [y the
Mgt
Agsessment of Loan Life

Ratla  given
Financials of subyidiney

Manapement evaluation of

recovaraiility of loans and

pranted toits subsidiaey

InwlT
disclosures  relating
Statemenl ol Net Assels

Falr Value and Statement
at Fair

af Tobal Returns

Yalie,

e Obtaived Manapement
this
Management

representation  in
respect as

has considered Tsir val

egjial to the book value of

Mer Assels

Auelited

repulations for

=Tunl the atitlmetical
ACLLTACY
| DA At Procedures |
| included the follawing @
= Ubtained tlie
understanding of  the
requirements  of  SEBI

Lo !
al

e




| and Statemenl of total returns at fairvaluein | -
the standalone financial stalements.
o Testad e arithmetical
accuracy ol computation
Iy the starement ol et
Asselsand tatal telurns gt

Pt salag e

o Ensureed that cisclosures
i5 i mpliamee with
SEOE InvlT regulations

1 oF nel assels o fair valueo
. and cthe statement ol Lokl

Festing at fadir value,

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDYTOR'S REPORT THEREON

£

The Boeard of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible Tor the other
information. The other information comprises e information included in the
Report of Investment Manager incliding annexures to Inwvestment Manager's
Report and other information as required to be given by SEBI TnviT Regulations,
but does not include the szandalone [rancial statenients sod ooy report thereon,

dur opinina on the standalone linancial statemerss doos not cover the other
information and wi do not express any form of assurance eonclusion thereon.

e eorawection will cur acdil of the standalense  Tooneis slalpmoals, oy
respansinidily is to read the ather information and, o doing =o, considar whether
the other information is marerially inconsistent wilh the standalone financial

T

tomienks or eur knowlodge altained! during the course af our awdit s

olherwise appears to be materizlly missiaced.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we

ahtained prior to the date of thig auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this otber information, we are requived La report that
fact. We have nolhing to report in s regard

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of [nvestiment Manager is respousible for the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a wue and fair view of the
financial position as at 31 March 2022, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and the movement of the Unitholder's equity
for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022, the net assets at Faiv value s al 31 March 2022,
the Lotal returng at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the Trost for
the year ended 31 Mareh 2022, in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI

redatling to the  statement




IovlT Repulzations, ndian Acceunting Standamds as defivied in Bule 2013 (7) of
Companies (Indian Accounting Standarvds) Rules, 2015, as amended and other
accounting principles generally accepted io Tmilia, Lo e extenl not incansistent
with SEBD [ael'l Regulations, This responsibilily alse includes maislenanee of
adequate acconnting revords in aceordanee with the provisions af the SEB] Inv(T
Repulations for safeguarding of the assets of the Trust and for preventing awd
detecting lrauds and other rrepulartiics selection and application of appropriate
accounting poiivies; making judpements aod wsihnatas that are ressonable and
prodent; and design, implementation angd maintesance of adequate internal
lnancial controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentalion of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and faly view and are free from material misstatement,
wehielher die to fraued aned eoror

It preparving the standalens Anancial statoments, the Board of Divectors is
respongible for assessing the "Trese’s abillty to continge a8 & going concern,
disclasing, ag applicable, mallers ralated 1o soing concern and using the polng
eoncern basis of zeeounting unless the Board of Dirsctors of Tnyvestimant Manager
either intends ta liquidate the Trust or te cease operations, or has no realistic
alternnlive bul to deo so.

The Board of Divecters of Investment Manager are also responsible Jor overseeing
Lha Trust's loancial reporting process,

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDRIT OF THE STANDALONE
VINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are o ohtaln reasonable assuvance whether the standalone
tnancial statements as a whole ore [ree from material misstatement, whether doe
Ly Trawd or eeror, asd taoigste an mrbitors renort that includes aur apinien.
Heasonable assarance iz oa high level ol assurance, bol s a8 0 gearanbes thal an
audit conducted in avcordance with SAs will always delect a  material
misstatement when it existe. Micstatements can arise [rom fraud or error and are

ey they could reazenably be

catsitdered matecial ) Drdividtualiy ar w the aggrey
expected to influence the econgmic decisions of users taken on the hosis of these
standalone [[nancizl statoments

As part of an audil in aceordance with SAs, we exercise peolessional judgment and
maintain professicnal skeplicism thurougheut the awdit We also

= [Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fravd ar ecrar, design ad perform
audit procedures responsive to these rigks, and obtain audit evidence thal
g sulficient and approprisie to provide a basis for our epinion. The risk of
nal detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud (s higher than
for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
conlrol,

= Obtarn an understanding of internal control relevanl Lo the audit in order to
desizn audit procedures that gre appropriate in the circpstances, but not

i o

. ( FRN 002784 G




lor the purpose ol expressing an apintan on the effectiveness of the Trust'e
internal controls,

o Lwaluate the approprialéncss of accouniing policies  used and  (he
reasonableness of aceounting estimales and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors of the Invostmen Managpor,

* Convlude on the apprapristeness of the Board of Drectors of Investiment
Mavaget's use of the golng concern hasiy ol accounting and, hased on the
amlit evidenee obtained, whether & material upcertainly exlsts related to
events or conditions thal may cast significant doebt on the Trost's ahility Lo
eontinue as a going concern, If we conclide that a material uncertaingy
exists, we are required s dea aikenton inoowr auditor's epork Lo the
refated isclosures in the Mnanclal statements ov, 1F suely diselusures are
inadequate, to mod{ly our opinion, Our conclusions nre based on the aud:t
evidence obtained up to ke date of o audicor's reparts However, future
events or conditions may cause the Trasl o cense to cohtinue a8 a zoing
CORCern.

o Bvaluate the everall preseutation, struclure and cantent of the standalone
Fnancial statements, including the disclosores, and whether the standaloie
Inancial statements represent the underlying transaclions and events in a
maimer thatachiovas (e prasentation.

Materiaiity s the magnitude of misstatements i he standal oo firane
& mitkes 1€ prabable thar the econnmic

cments Ul oelividually o in AEEI O
cecisions of a reasonahly knowledgeable user of the fimancial statemenls nay hie

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative lactors i (i)
planning the scape ol our audit work and in evaluating the resullys ol our work;
and (11} w evaluate the effect of any jdentified misstalemonts in the financial

sSEavezenly;

W cammunicate witly those charged with govervance regarding, amuong other
matiers Che plarined senpe anel g of e audit 2 Signifieart aogl fndings

thil we identily during our audit.

We alse provide those charged with governance with o stutement that we have
complied with relevam ethical renquircments reparding idependence, and Lo
centnunicate with them all reladonships and sther matters that may reasonably
be thought to hear on our independence, and where applicable, related
sulepuards,

Frow the matters communicated with those charged willl poveraance, we
determing those matters lhat were of most sipnibeance n the audit of the
standalone financial statements for the linaicial year ended 31 March; 2022 and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe hese matters in our repork
unless faw or regulation precludes public disclosure aboul the matler or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we delermine (hat a matter el not be
communicated in our report hecanse the adverse consgiuertces of doing so would
reasonably  be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

comamnication,




REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our awdit ard s ceguired by SEB vl Besulations, we report tha:

a) We have sought and chrained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and hallel were pravessary for the pneposes of our
audit:

by The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statemaoent of Profit and Loss
Including Other Comprehensive Tncomey (Loss), the Standalone Statement of
Cash Fluws, Statement af Changes i Unitholdor's Beulty, the Statement of Net
Assets ot Fair value, the Satement ol "Total Reourns al falr value and the
statenient of Net Disoributable Cash Plows deall with by this Reparl are in
agrecment with the books ol account e tie Trast;

¢)] In our opinion, the aloresaid financial statements comply with the [ndian
Morounting Standards as defingd i Role 2017(a] of Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005, a8 amendad, 1o he extent nol incersistent
weith SEBI Inwl T regulations,

For A, R, & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN, 102744C

Ca Maresh Kumar Karn
Partner

sembership No: 077887
UDIN: 2207 7887AJLTLOR205

Place: New Dellii
Date: 23.05.2022
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INDEMENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit Holders af National [Hgploaayes Dndea Trost
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated finanmeial statements of National
Bighways Tnfra Trost (“the elT" or “the Trust”) and ive one subsidiary
(heretnalter referved to as "National Highways Infra Projects Private Lbmited"” o1
“NHIPPLY) {the Trust and its subsidiory tegether referred to as “the Group”),
which comprising of the congolidated Balance Sheel as al 31 March 2022, the
consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss (ncduding Other Comprehensive
Income], the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Bquity and the
consolidated Statement: of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the consolidated
Stalement of Net Asselts ab fzi value as at 31 March 2022, the consolidated
Staleiment o Total Relneos o e wolve, the Stavement of Mot Distshoiahle Cagh
Flowes of the Trust amd its subsidiary for the year then ended amd notes to the
consolidated financial statormeonts includinog 4 summary of significant accounting
nolicies and other explanatory information (heveinafer relerred o as “the

consoiivated Hinancial stalomeiis”)

In our opinion and to the hesl of our information sad according Lo the
explanations given Lo ns and based on the consideration of report of other auditor
on separate financial statements and un the other financial information of the
subsidiary, the aforesald consnlidated financial statements give the information
required hy the Securities and Exchange Board ol India (Infrastructure
Investiment "l"rusts} Repulations, 2014 as amended [rom time to time including any
guidelines and divenlars issued thereunder {together referred (o as the "SEDI
InvIT Regulalions”) in the manner so recuived and give a Drie and Fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accouating Standards as defined n Rule 2{1)(a) of the
Companies {[ndian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS"Y and
athar accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent nol
inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulalions, of the consalidaled state of affairs of Lhe
Group as at 31 March 2022, its consalidated profit including ather comprehensive
income, its consolidated cash Nlows, Ils consolidated statement of changes in
Unithalders' equity for the year ended 31 March 2022, its consolidated net assets




at faire value ag at 31 March 2022, its consolidated tolal returis o Efair volue of the
Group and the net distributable cash flovs of the Trust and it aubsidiary o the
yearended 31 March 2022,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We catducted our andit of the consolldated finaneis statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") issuex] by Lhe astitate ol Shartered
Avcountants of India, Our responsibilities under those Slandavds are urther
described in the auditor's responsibilities Tor the awdit of e comselicnbogd
linancial statements seclion of sur report, We e fndepenident of the Group in
with the Code of Ethics fssucd by (he Instinte of Chartered
Accountanis of India together with the ethical requirements thal nre reolevant ty

accordanee

e o dlt of the consolidated finaneial statements uielor Wl prosieiony ol the SEB
Invl'l” Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethiesl responsibililies in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ellies, We batieve that the
audit evidenee we have obtained s sulficient aned appropriale Lo provide a basis
for aur apinion on the consaliclated finaneial statemenle,

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are Lhose mallers that, in owr protessional judgment, were of
most significance in owr audit of the consolidated fnancial statements for the
financial year ended 31 Mareh 2022, These malters were addressed in e eonlext
al our audit of the consolidated financiz! statements as 4 whole, and in lorming
our apinion thereon, and we do not previde a separdle cpinion on Llese matcers,
We have determined the matters deseribed bolow 1o he the ke acdit matlers to
be communicatad in our report,

ST T e . e LY R
N Koy Audil Matter Atiditor' s Response
(68 y
| 1. | Assessment of Impairment of Intangible

Agsets

D Sl Proceduras
included the following -

The Group operates tall assets which (e
constructed on Toll, Operate and Transfer
{’I'(dT) basis,

the

[ accordance with iy accounting policy and | »

requirements under Ind A5 36 "Impairment
of Assets", the Managemoent is required o
perform  an  impairment aszsssment by
comparing the carrying value of the toll
collection rights to their recoverable armount,

Verifving
approprialensss ol the
Group's accounting policy
on Dpairient 0!
Intangible Assets,

Study  of  latest DOT
For impainment testing, value in use has to Valuation
he  determminea by fererasting  anl
diseounting future eash fowse Further, the Assessing the

I valug in use is highly sonsitive to chianges in assumptions around the
crivical variable used for forecastdng (he key drivers of the revenge
futtire  gash Meswes inclod) seadfic | projections, (uture cash




Compulation il disclosures as

LAl faie value and statement af Logal relarns ok

Paalue and Conselidated stawement of total

The determination ol the receoverable |

amount ol the toll eoliection right involves

sigunificant estimates and  Judgmments  and

aceardingly, the evaluation ol inpairment of

Ctoll collection rishils has bhaen deternined as

a key audin matter. |

prescribed in the SERL Invil regulations
relating to Consolidated Statement of Net
Assels ot Tair Value amd Consolidated
Total Returns at Fair Valoo

As per SEBE [InvIT regulations, the ‘Trust 1s
vrapuired to disclose staleinant ol net agsers

fair value, The Fair value is determingd by
forecasting  and  discounling  Mture  cash
floves from the operatioas ol the investoe
entlities  which ol es managenenl
eatimales amd judgements. These estimates
and judgements inchude discounting rates,
Tax vates and inflation ratos whick are
eonsiderad lor computing the falv vaiue

There is an inherent vlisk lo the computalion
of Fair value due Lo Lhe use of estimates and
judgements mentione| above,

Therelford, computation and disclosures of
Cotsolidabed slatement oF net assets at fair

returns at fair value is considerad as o Key

Sandil Mattar,

Refer statement of not assels al i vabuel
and Statement of tetal returns at fair waluein |
Lhe Consalidated Anancial statements,

flow, discownt rales  f
welglited average cast of |
papital thar vwere used Dy

the managemenl

(WY At Procedurcs
inclogad the following -

o Obtained e
unclerslanding ol the
reouirements of  SEDI
fnwlT  regulations  for
disclaosures  relating Lo
Consolidated  Stalemend
of Mot Assels al Fair Value |
ang Conenlidated
Statemeant &1 Total
Feturns at Falr Value,

o Oflained Managsmenl
representation  in this
respeel as Management
las considered fair value
cepual W Lhe ook vaiue of
MNel Azsers

o Clested the arithmetioal
accuraoy of cmnputation
in the statement of neb
assels and total returns at
Falr value,

e DEnsured that disclosures |
i in  compliance  with
SEBRI Il repulations
relating to the statement
ol ne assets at faic value
ared Lhe statement of Lotal
refurns at f_:_iir value.




INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREQON

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager & responsible for the nther
mlormation. The olber information comprises the information included in the
Management Discusston and Analpsis, Report of Investment Manager including
dannexures to Investmen! Manager's Report and other information as required to
be given by SEBE LnvIT Regulations, but does not ehuele the consolidated Haancia)l
stalements and o report thereon,

Our apinien on the consolldated Bnancial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not expross any form ol assurance cobclusion thereon,

e conngetion with oue andit of e consolidiisd fnaneual statemoenty, cur
respansibility s to read the other infarmalion andd, in doing sa, consider whether
the other (nformatian is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
stateinents ar our knowledpe obtained during the cowrse ol our audit or
atherwise appears to be materially misstatod,

If bazed on the work we have performed on the alhar information that we
obtained prior to the date of this anditor's report, we eonclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other informatian, we are veguired o report that

fact, We have nothing te report in this rapard,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Divectors of Tnvestment M ager is respansible for the preparation
ol these convolidated financial stalements that give a true and faic view of the
congalidated Bulanee Sheel us al 21 March 202 2y consolidated stalenent of Prafiy
& Lows inciuding other comprehensive income, comsolidated cash pws anl
ronsolidated statement of chaoges in Unitholders eouily lor the year ended 31
Marelh 2022, he consolidaled nel nsaels ab fair walue a=s al 21 waeely JOZ2Z, Ihe
consalidared Lotal velurns ab firvalue of the Group and the net distribulable cash
flows of the Trust and its suasidiary for Lhe vear ended 31 March 2022 in
accordance with the requirements of the SEHL el T Regulations, Indian
ficeounting Standards as dellned in Ryle 2011 [a) ef Companicy {Tadian Avcounling
Standards) Roles, 2015, as anended and other accounling principies gencrally
accepted in India, to the extont ool incansistent with SEBI Inwl'l' Regulations, The
respoective Board af Directors af s subsidiary company included in the Group are
respansible for maintenance of adequate aceaunting records for safeguarding of
the assets of the Group amd for proventing and  detecling, fravds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropeiate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates tial are reasctable and prodent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of agoequate internal fnancial coatrols for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting recerds, relevant to the
preparvation and presentation of the consolidated finanecial stalements that give a
true and fair view and are [ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
and ervor, which have been iscd fur the Purpose ol preparation ol the

' card of Dircctors of Investinent

)

consalidated financial statements by




Manarer, as aforesaid.

la prepaving the consolidated [rancial skavenients, Lhe Board of Directors ol
fovestment Manager and respective Bogrd of Directors of the company ineladed in
the Group are responsible for assessing the abillty of the Group to continue as a
golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters velated Lo poing consern and
tstng the poing concern basis of aceounting nnless the eespective Boord ol
Directors either intends to Hguidate the Group or to cease pperations, or has no
pealistic alvernative but to do so,

The Board of Directors of the Invesument Manager and the respectlve Board ol
PDivectors of e subsidiary company meluded in the Groap are alse responsible
for overseeing the Hrancial repovting process of the Group.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMEN'TS

Our ubjectives are to obtaln reasonable assucance whethey the consolidated
financial stalements as o whole arve feee Brom material misstatement, whether due
Loy Traud o creor, and to issee an aodibor's repart that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level ol agsuranee, bul 5 not a guacantes that an
audit  condaired in accordance  withh SAs will alwavs detect a material
missiatement wlhen il exists, Misstatements can arise fron fsud or ervor and are
canstdered matervial if, individually or in the agmeegate, they could reasonably be
expocted o inlluence the econpmic decisions of users Laken on Uhe hasis of these
financial statemenls,

As pact ol oo aarhit in aceordance with S4s, we excercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skeplicism toaualiont the and il We also

o |dentify and aseess the rigle of marerial misstatement of the consslidated
Finaneial siatemenis, whother due to fraud oF arror o gsipn and perform
audit procedures responsive W those risis, al obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion, 'The risk of
ol delacing o maberiar adsstatement resulidng Ivam fraud s higher than
for one resulling [rom error, as fracd may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional amissinns, misrepresentations, or the override ol internsl
contrel

o Obtain ao anderstaoding gl ieteroad conteol relevant to the 2odit in order to
design audit procedures thal arve appropriate in the circumstances, bus noi
[0 Lhe purpose of cxpressing an apinion on the effactiveness af the Groug’s
internal controls,

o [wvaluate the appropriateness  of accoounling polictes  gsed and  the
reagsonableness of sccounting estimnates aned related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors of the Inyvesbiment Managper,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Divectors of Investment
Manager use ol the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
aucit evidenve obtained, whether a material uneertainty exists related to
evenls o canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continne as a golne concern. i we conclude that a material uncertainly
exists, we are reguired to draw attention in ouwr anditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statemen:s ov, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, te modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the awdil
evidence gbtained up to the dote of our aueditors report, However, luture
avents or conditiohs may cause the Group ta cease ta cantinue as a poing
Coicern,

¢ bvaluate the overall presentation, stracture and content of the consalidated
fnancial - statements, including  the  «disclosures, and  whether the
consolidated financial statements represant the underlying transactions
and evenls ina manter that gehieves falr presentation,

e Obtain sufficient appropriate avdit ovidenee regarding the Fnancial
information of the entities or business aceivities within Ui G ol which
weare the independent auditars, to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial stalements. We are vespansible for (he direelion, superviston and
Performance af the awdiv of Grancial statements of sucl entities incleded in
e consolidated fisancial stitements of which we are the in delrendent
auditors. For the allher ontities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such ather auditor
remain responsibile for-the divection, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by Hiom. We vemain solely responsible for our audit
opiniog,

Mateviality is the magnilude of migstatements in the consolidatod finaneial
statements that, individually arin aggregate, makes it probable that the cconnmic
decisions of a reasonably lnew!edgealie vser of the financial stalements nay he
infleenced. We consider quantitalive materiaiity and qualitative factors in (i)
planuing the scope of cur audit work and ia eval tating the results of our work;
and [ii) 16 evaluale the effecl of any identified nisstatements i the finascelal
statements.

We communicale with those charped with governance regarding among other
matlters, the planned scape and r_1|-1'|1n_yr, af the awdil and significant ancic flindings,
eanddng any sigailicant defisiencics ninternal contrel that we ientily during
our andilk

Wie alsts provide those charged with governanee with a stalenens that wae e
complied with relevant etlical requirements regarding mdepsndence, and o
communicate with themn all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the malters cammunicated with those charged with povernancs, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial staterments of Use current period and are therefore the key
awcit matters, We deseribe these matters in our auditors report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the naller oF when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determing Lhat a matler should nat be communicated i
our report hecause the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably he
expected to oulweigh the publie interest henalits of such eommunication.




OTHER MATTERS

We did not audir the financial statenients of the subsidiary, whaose financial
statensents rellect total assets of Bs 2,55 77400k Lalkhs as ot 31 dareh 2022, total
revenues ol Rs. 14,901,33 Lakhs, losses after taxes including other comprehensive
income [met) of Rs 11,355.80 Lakhs and net cash oatflows amounting to Rs,
12,802.25 Lakhs for the perviod from 01 Apeil 2021 to 31 Mareh 2022, as
considered i the consolidated fovaneial statenments, These liaecial statemenly
and other lnancial infermation have been audited by other auditor, which
finaneial statements, other financial information aed auditor’s reporls have bheen
furnished to us by the Management of Twestmenl Manager and our opinion on the
consolidated financial stalemants, in so far as 1L orelptes Lo the amaunts and
diselosures included in respect of that subsitliary s based solely on the report al
Ll ather awditor,

Gur opinton on the eonsolidated financial statemuents, and our report on other
legal and regulatory requirements below, are nol modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to ous reliarce on the work dope by and the ceport af the
plher auditor,

REFPORT ON QTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based onour auditand as requived by SEBI InvIT Regulalions, we reéport that:

4) We have sought and obtained @10 te information and explanations which to
the best of our knowladpe and heliel were necessary (or the purposes of our
audit ol the sloresaid consalidated finaneclal statemoents,

i) the consalidated Baiance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the consolidated Statement aof
Chianges in Umitholders' Bguity, ohe consolidated Statement: of Mol Assels al fair
value, the consolidated Statement of Total Retores at fair value and Lthe
Statement of Net Disteiburalile Cash Flows of Lhe Trost and ks sebsidiary dealt

srccinanl will Lhe biooks ol acioanl,

with by this Reportars inag

) [ aur ppinion, the afpresaid financial statements cormply with the Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015, o8 amended, to the extenl not inconsistent
wilh SEBI InwlT regulations.

For 4. R. & Co.
Chartered Accountan

CA Naresh
Partner
Membership No: 077887
UDIN; 22077807 AJLTUQG3E2

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.05.2022
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INDEPENDENT AUTDIPOR'S REPORT
To the Unit Holders of National Highrways Inlea Trosl
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
OPINIUN

We have audited the accompanying standalene (inancial statements of Mational
Highways Infra Trust ("the InvIT” or "the Trust*), which comprise the Balance
Sheel as at 31 March 2022, the Stalement ol Profit and Lass [including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s Lavity and the
Statement of Cash Flows [or the vear then ended, the Statement of Nel Assels at
fairvalue as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Total Returas at fair value and the
Statement of Nel Distributable Cash Fiows ("NDCEs") for the year then ended and
noles lo the standalene financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
"Lae stundalone fnancial statements™).

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
cxplanations given @ ag, e aloresalld standalene fnancial stalenerls pive e
nformation  required by the Secorities and  Exchange Board  of  India
[Infrastructure Investmenl Trusts) Ituwulati-rlr]a, 2014 as amended from Lime Lo
time inclwding any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred
o as the "SERI InvIT Regulations”) in the manner so required and pive a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indign Accounting Standards as defined in rule
2(1]{a] of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
exlent nal inconsistent with SCEBT Invl'T Kegulations, of the state of affairs of the
Trust as at 31 March 2022, its prolit including other comprehensive income, its
cash [lows, its statement of changes in Unithalder's equity for the year ended 31
March 2022, ils nel assets at fair value ag at 31 March 2022, its total returns at fair
value and the nef distributable cash Hows of the Trust for the year ended 21
March 2022,
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducied owr audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing ("SAs"} issucd by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in
accordance with the Code of Ethics ifssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the peovisions of the SEBI
IvIT Regulations, and we hayve (allilled our other cthical responsibilities in
awccardance with these requirements and the Code of Eihics, We helicve that the
avdil evidence we hayve obitained g sullicient and appropriate o provide a basis
for omr epinion on the standalone financial stalements,

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matlers thal, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the
financial vear ended 31 March 2022, These matters were addresscd in the context
of our audit of the standalone lnancial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion an these matters. We
have determined the matlers described below to be the key audit matters to be
cornmunicated in our report,

FSE Key AuditMatter (TR Alditor's Responise.
1. | Assessment of T pail'mentc)_f”il_ﬁ?ésttnéﬁf |
made in and Loans given to the subsidiary
company, National Highwavs Infra
Projects Private Limited ("NHIPPL")

O Audit Procedures
included the following -

Munagemenl is reguaived o review regularly

fre T

whether there are any indicators of
impairment of such investments/ [oans by
reference to the regquirements under Ind AS

and perform its impairment assessment by the future cash flows in
these | NITIPPL and  assessing  the

appropriateness of the future

< Independent assessment of

Ccomparing  the carrying walue of
investments made/ loans given o Lheir
recoverable amount to determine whether | cash flows estimaled.

I making this asscssment,
we  also evaluated  the
ohjoclivily, independence
anrl compelency of |
For impairment testing, valone in nse has to specialists invelved in the
be determined by forecasting  and ProcEss;

discounting future cash Hows of subsidiary |
company. Further, the value in use is highly | -Assessing the assumplbions
sensitive Lo changes in critical variahle used | around the key drivers of the
revenue projections, Mture

impairment needs to be recognized.

\ tor  lorecasling

cash  flows |
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Lineluding tralfic projections for revenues anid

discounting rates., The determination of the
recoverable amount
company  involves management estimates
and judgment which may affect the oulcome.

from  subsidiary

Su, there is an inberenl risk in the valuation
of investment/ recoverahbility of loans, due o
the use of
mentioned above and

eslimates  and  judpements

Accardingly, the assessment of impairment
of investment/loans in subsidiary company
has been delermined as a key audit macter,

Refer Note 2.6 lor the accounting policy on
Impairment  of Investiments & Nole 30
relating to Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 36
“lmpairment  of Assers” in  Standalone
Financials as at 31 Mareh 2022, Alse Refer

Mote 2.8 for the Accounting policy on
Financial asset & Nole 37 relating to

Expected Credit Loss on Hinanclal Assels [n

the Standalone Financials as at 31 March
2022,
Computation anl disclosures as

prescrived in the SEBY Invi'l regulations
relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair
Value and Total Returns at Fair Value

As per SERI InvIT regulations, the Trust is
redquired Lo disclose statement of net assels
at fair value and statement of total retans s
fair value. The fair value is determined by
forecasting  and discounting fotore  cash
fows from the operations of the investee
enlilies wliich involves management
estimates and judgement. These estimates
and judoements include discounting rates,
Tax rvates and inflation rates which are
cansidered [or computing the fair valie.

There is an inherent risk in the computalion
af Tair value due to the use of estimates and
judpements mentioned aliove,

Therefore, computation and disclosures of
slatement of net assets af fair value and

statement of total relurns at fair value is |
considered as a Key Audit Matter,

cash [low, discount rates [/

weiphted averapge cost of
capital that
| W usedl by Lhe
tanagement
-Assessment of Loan Life
Ratio piven  in Auadited

Financials of subsidiary

-Management evaluation of
recaoverability of loans and
cranted toita subaicdiary

AT | e avithimetical
ACCHTACY
Our Audil Procedures

included the fallmwing -

e Obtainced the
understanding o the
reguirements of  SHEHI
InwlT  repulations  for
disclosures relating o

Slaterment of Mel Assets at
Fair Value and Statement
ol Total Returns at Fair
Value.

e Oblained Management
represenlalion Lhis
respect as  Managemenl

in

has considered fair value
coual to the boolo value of
Mot Asscels







and Stalement of total returns at faic value in

the standalene financial statements,

e Tested e arithmetical
accuracy of computation
in the stalement of nel
assels andd total returns at
fafr walie

i in o compliance  with
SEBL  InvlT  regulations
relating to the statement
ol el nssels at fair value
and the statement ol Lolal
relurns al fair value.

INFORMATION OTHER TIHAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the other
information. ‘I'he other information comprises the information included in the
Report of Investment Manager including annexures Lo Investment Manager's
Report amdd other information as required Lo be given iy SEDT InvIT Regulations,
hut does notinclude the standalone financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements doces not cover the other
information and we do not express any [orm of assurance conclugion thercon.

i connection with our dudit of the standalvne linancial statements, our
responsibilily is Lo read e other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent sweith the standalone financial
sletermzats or cur kacwledpe obtaingd duciig the course of our audil or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

IT, hased on the work we have performed on the other inlormation that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditoc's report, we conchade that there i5 a
material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired Lo repert that
fact, We have nothing to report in this regard

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DRIRECTORS OF INMVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR'THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Invéstiment Manager s responsible for the preparation
of these standalone fnancial statements that give a true and [air view of the
financial position as at 31 March 2022, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and the movement of the Unitholder's equity
for the year ended 31 March 2022, Lthe net assels al fair value as at 31 March 2022,
the total returns al fair value and the net distribntable cash flows of the Trast for
the year ended 31 March 2022, in accordance with the reguirements of the SEBI

e Ensured that disclosures |







Pl Regulations, Indian Accounting Standards as delined in Role Z(1)(a) of
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other
secounting principles generally accepted fn India, o Lhe extent not inconsistent
with SEBI InvIl" Regulativns. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ol the SERI IovIT
Regulations (or safeguarding of the assets of the 'rust and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate
aceounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and desipn, implementation and maintensnce of adeguale internal
linancial controls for ensuring the acenracy and completeness of accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and preseatation of Lhe standalone financial
slatements thal pive & true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whaether doue to frand and error,

. preparing the standalone Noancial statements, the Boacd ol Divectors is
responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matlers relaled Lo going concern and using the poing
concern basis af accounting unless the Boavd of Directors of Investment Manager
gither ntends to liguidate the ‘1I""ust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

‘I'he Board of Direclors of Investment Manager are also responsible for oversceing
the Trust’s financial reporting process,

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our ohjeclives are to obtain reasomable assurance whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole ave free from material misstatement, whether due
to Iraud or error, and to iseue an auditor's reporl that inclades pur apinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, hut is not a guarantec that an
audit conducted in aceordance with SaAs will always detect @ material
misstatement when il exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered matevial if, individually or in the ageregate, they could reasonably be
expacted to influence the cconomic decisions of users Lalen an the hasis of these
standalone financial satements.

A part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throuphout the audit We alsoe:

e Identify and assess (he rislks of material misstatement ol Uie standalone
[ancial statements, whether due to aud or error, design and perfornm
audil procedures respongive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
i sufficient and appropriale o provide a basis for our opinion, The rislc of
not detecting a material misstatement resulling [rom fraud is higher than
for- cne resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion, fergery,
mtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

= Obhigin an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin erder to
desipn audit procedures that are apprapriate in the circumstances, but not







for the purpose ol expressing an opinicn o e elfectiveness of the Trust's
internal controls,

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of aeccounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors of the Investment Managor.

o  Lonclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Dircetors of Investment
Manager's use of the going concern basis of acconnting and, based on the
audit evidence oblained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists velated Lo
events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the 'rust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclde that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required Lo deaw attention in onr auditor's report to the
related dizclosures in the ifnancial statements o, iF such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinjon, Our conclusions are hased on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's reporl. However, future
events or condilions may cause 1the Trust to cease to continue as a aoing
concern,

o hvaluate the overall presentation, souctire and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
linancial statements represent the undeelying transactions and events in a
manner thal achicves fair presentation,

Matcriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the slandalone [linancial
statements that, individually or in aggregale, makes it prohahle that the economic

decisions of & reasonably knowledgeable user ol the loancial statements may he
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i]
planning the scope of pur audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and [ii) to evaluate the effect of any identificd misstatements in the financial

stavernianls,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signilicant audit lindings
(hal we identify during our audit.

We ulso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to
communicate wilh them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.,

From the malters communicated with those charped willy povernance, we
determine those matlers that were ol most significance in the aundit of the
standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022 and
are therefore the key awdil matters. We descrilbie these matters in our report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure aboul the matler or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected Lo outwelgh the public interest hencfits of such

cominunication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit and as reguired by SERI Inv]lT Regulations, we report that:

a)

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o
Lhe best of pur knowledge and belief were necessary lor the purposes of our
audit;

The Standalone Halance Sheel, the Standalone Statement of Prolit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss), the Standalone Statement of
Cash Flows, Statement af Changes in Unitholder's Eguity, the Statement of Nel
Assels at fair value, the Staternent of Total Relurns at fair value and the
Statement of Net Digtribaiable Cash Ulowes dealt with by this Repovt ave in
agreement with the books ol account of the 'Tras

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards as delined in Rale 2001(0) of Companics (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extenl not inconsistent
with SEBI Inel'T regulalions,

For A. R. & Co.
Chartored dccountants
FRN. 002744

N

AR & C
FRN 002744 ¢

(A Naresh Kamav Karn
Pariney

Membership Ma: 077887
URIN: 22077887A)LTLOSZ205

Vlare; New el

Date: 23.08.2022



OMERR IR




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315t MARCI, 2022

(A1 amaunts in 2 Jakly unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS NOT AS AT .
E | 31st March, 2022 3st March, 2021
SSETS s e T R o e O ROV 2
1} Non - Current Assets
(2) Pinnneial Assels
(1) lovestments i [ 55757 -
(i) Loains & 3 RARG.20 | -
{iiy Ocher Finaneial Asgors § 317081 |
2y Current Assets
(o) Ficancial Assels
{1} lvestments G QU -
{ii) Cash und Cush Equivalents 1 ak01.1y -
{11 I hans % .:‘..-"...'.5.‘; A0
(v) Other Finanesal Assets Yy 050 A0 01
by Onhier Current Assels w1246 -
TOTAL ASSETS  ThaB6.63 ' (10
EQULITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
1) Unit Capital I O 00 LED 2
2) Initial Setflement Amount 10 TR
3) Other Equity 12 | 16.415.14 (67.90)
LIABILITIES
1y Non-Current Linhilities
tn) Financial Laabilities |
(i} Borrowings R 1,25, 550,94 -
{b) Deferred Tax Labilities 14 310 -
2) Current Liahilities
i2) Finnresal Linhilities
1) Borrawings [5 QI RG &
(i1} Trade Payables 1t
a1 Towal Outstanding, dues of micre and swall eolerprises -
) Tete ] ootstandicg, cues of crediters other than miero and 100 v
sl enterprises Lt
(i Dder Finaeeizl Labilites 1% 143 560 n7.RS
(57 Orther Chrrent Linbilities . L] nav
e Curept Tux Liadilities {Nel) 14 B 161,77 &
[TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES i _ T64.826.63 | 0.10 |
Signilivanl Accounding Policies [-2
The acenmpanying netes form an integral pard of these financial statements 210
This iz the Balance Shoet referred ta moour report of even date.
For AR, & Co, For und on behaltof the National Highways Infra
Chavierad Accountans Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment
Finn Registration no. 0027440 Manager of National Highways Infra Trust)
S~ Sl Sl
A Naresh Kumar Karn Suresh Krishan Goyal Mahayiv Parsad Sharma
Parter Lhector Dircetor
M NG O778ET DN 02721580 DIN- 02138413
Datc : 23.05.2032
Placas : New Delln
ali- Sal-
Mlathew Clenrge Lounjan Singh

Chief Financial Gfficer, Compliance Officer



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROIIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR KENDED 31ST MARCII, 2022

'. PARTICULARS

INCOME
Revenue fram Operationg
Other Income

Total Income

EXPENSES
Investment Manger Fees
Prusies Fees
Finance Charpes
Oahier Expenses
Toral Fxpenses

Profiti Loss) belvre Exceptional Tems and Tax
[Exceptionul [tems net)
Prafit / (Luss) before Tax
Tax Expenscs
Current Tax
Deforeed Tax expensed{credit)

Total Tax

Prafit’ (Joss) For the period

Other Camprehensive Income

lesns that will not be reclassilicd o Profit and Loss
Teems that will be reclassified 1o Pyofil il Loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Euarnings per Unit

Basic
[Difuted

LA amounes i § lakh unless oberwise staled)

Significant Accomting Policies

The sccompanying notes form an intepral pard of these financial statement
Thes iz the Statemet of Profitand Loss seterred o e our report of even dide,

For AR. & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no, Q027440

Sal-

CA Naresh Komar Karn
Purtner

M. ANa DT TERT

Date: 23083022
Mlace : New Liethi

INOTE]  YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED |
NO. | 31st MARCH, 2022 31st MARCH, 2021
20 22843, 13
21 [ L2 . =
23 836,87 e |
1.931.71 .
.73 a0
0 3,1 54.43 -
R 115.25 a1.60
5,208,13 | 67.90
18,631.74 (67.90)
I T XEIRT  (e1em
24 B '
436,36
3.16 | . ]
439.52 :
18.192.23 (67.90)
18,192.23 (67.90)
23 3.06 2
25 206 2
|2
346

For sl nn behall of the National Hiphwave Infra
Investment MLanagers Private Limited (Investment
Mlanager of Mational Highways Infra Trust)

Sali-
Suresh Krishan Goyal
Dhrecior
DM D2TIEAHG

S~
Mathew Gearge
Chiel Frnancial OfFficer

Sdi
Mahavir Parsad Sharmua
Dircetor
[N 031558443

Sdi-
Coungjan Singh
Campliance Oicer




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31817 MARCH, 2022

PARTICUL ARS

fAL ameunts me 2 Jakh unless athersise stated)

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED

This 13 the Cash Flow Statement referred win aur report of even date,

Far AR & Cao.
Charierad Accountants
Firm Registration no. 02744C

=il

CA Maresh Knmar Karn
Perner

M. No.NFTERT

Bate: 23052022
Ploce : Kew Dl

3lst MARCH, 2022 31.03-2021
. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profib{Loss) Beloze Tax |'8,G31,74
Adjustments 1o Reeoneile Profit Befiee Tax to Mot Cash Il s
Finnues Cest inetl F 5103 -
Loavss -t e Do Valuahion of Investmenis (7R -
Interear Acornad on Bank PR 5k -
Laterest on Deng Tenm Loun given (A2,842 133 -
Laws [ (Gming on disposal’ write ofVel Tnvestewny (0G]sd)
Operating Profiv{Lass) hefore Working Capital Chunges TR
Warking Capitul Adjustments
Deerease Sleerepase) un Deher Nan Current Mnangial Ases (517081
Decrease £ lrercased im Ovher Cureant Finaneial Assers (R
Decrease ¢ nereasel 1o Oter Corrent Assely 112,40} -
[nerewse A Dcorcose) in ‘Trade & Othier Payables [LAGHT
Lremse S Dezrause) i Other Finansal Liglalivics 75.72
Iwrease S4Decrease) i Other Current Tanbslities Y706 “
lrwresse £ {heercnse) in Current Fox Linbalivies . 0,50 P
{41BHH.'E]_." -
Income tax paid (27400 5
Net Cash Flows fronv{used i) Operating Activities B (5,162.79)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Lt Term Loaos poven {00 S, G 0 0 .
Purchase of MNen Current Investments (12%d401.52) -
Sale of res curvent [nvestiments - -
Purchase of Cunens nvestaents (341320001 “
Sule of Current fnvestmenls SHNOGT 05 -
lucome lroen Sele ol ME - -
Iererest Received from Bans . _
Interest receved an Long Torin Loan givern (3,152 00 =
Net Cash Plows Trom {used in} Ivesting Activities (7.23.172.47) -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procceds gom Issne ot Lo Cepital LS BRIV
One Tane Fapense paid {264,494 -
Proceeds lom Long Term Borrowings (ret of priceasing foes) 147 646 00 -
Repayviment of Leng [erm Horrowings Lo s -
Fimamere Cants Paiil PE [ EN0E .
Mot Cash Flows From! (used in) Financing Activitics s=u 7,33,130.43 =
M Inerease!Dizerease i Casl and Cash eguivalents (A1 B+ i g 2,17 -
Casltand Cash bguivalens ot the Begnnwng of the Yaur = E
Cuash and Cash Eqguivalents at the end ol the Yewr 4,800,107 =

For and on bohallof the Nalional Highways Infra
Tyvestment Managers Private Limated (Investment
Banaser of Natlonal Hishwavs Infra Truse)

S Sili-

Suresh Krishan Croyal Mabavir Porsad Sharma
Irechor Drirecror

DI (2721530 DN 03158413

- Sali-
Gunjan Singh
Conplance (Hlcar

Mathew George
Cheet Financial (4
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRLUS

NOTES FORMING PART O FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31,

2022
IRUSTINFORMATION AND NATLRE OF OFERATIONS

Nutional Hi:lm'd} Pt Trost T st ar Tyl T} s an ierevoeable usl repistered under the provisions o e idian
Teusts Act, | 882 un Ocober 19, 2020, 1 is regstersd voder the Secwritivs and Exclonge Boand of lediy (Intrasiuciues
Investment Trust) Regulotions, 2014 on October 28, 202 having registation nmber 1M/ Im FIY20-2 10014,
The Trust was setup by National [lighways Authority of Tndia {“NUAT or the “Spapser” ). The Trustee o the Tros
is 113831 Trusteeship Services Limited (the “Trustes™y and Tavestment Manoger [or e lul:ni 15 Matonal Highways
Indra Investment Managers Private Limited {"Investment Munoger™),
The Trost By been formed e devest tonfmstioenire aseets primarily heing mothe read seetar i India, The Trusts
road projects are implemented and keld theaugh speciad purpose vebieles (*Trojeet SPYVS"™ *Subsidiores™). The vuits
of the Trust were listed 0 Bombay Stock Exchange and Natenal Sleck Lxchange on November 10, 2021
During the year ended Mareh 31, 2022, the |rast acquired 100% equity control mm National Highway Infra Projects
Privale Limited (the “U'roject SPY 7} from {he Spenser with effect fom November 03, 20210 During the year ended
31,03 2021, the project SPV entered iata Ove Concession Agreements for 30 years with the Sponsar {(Nalional
Highways Authority of hidin - NHAT on Tull, Operole "lll;l Transfer ("TOT"Y hasis.
TI ¢ regislered olfice of the Investment Manager is G-5 & 6, Sclor-10, Dwearka, Delli < 110075,

¢ financial stateracnls were authorsed for ssue iy ncenrdance with reselution passed by the board of dircetors of
Ih.: Investment Manager on May 23, 2022,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements ol 12 | rose have been prepared i sccordance with Indian Aceaunting Standids
as definad in Rule 2(1)a) of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standandsy Rules, 2015, us anended, preseribed
wnsler Seetion 123 of the Compames Act, 2005 (“Trd AS™) vead with Sccurties and Fxehange Board ol Indig
{Inliastructure Investment Trust) Regulaions, 2004, us \L:uuldml and the eirealars issued trereender CSERL Tnv T
Regulutions™) und uther peconnting principles § LrL,ﬂLmlI-,' aecepled in Lodi,

Avcordingly, 1he 1rust has prepared these Standalone Fingncial Statements comprising of the Balance Sheet as on
March 31, 2022, 1he Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended oo Mareh 21, 2022, 102 Satement of Cash Flows
for tse year ended en March 31, 2022, the Stalement of Clumges of Equity for the vear ended an Macch 31, 2022 and
Notes o Accounds (legether hereinalter referred wons “Srndalone Finarcial Sialements”),

These Finaneial Statements have been prepared o aevnu] basie and gnder the histarical enst comvention, except
cotiain financial sssets and Labilities winch have beer measured 2t Faw Valoe Acceunting policies have been
consistently applied, except where a newly issuoed Accounting Standard is initizlly adepted or o revision o anexisting
Accounting Standard requires a chanpe i the accounting palicy hitherts in use. Purther, these stendalone financial
statemenls h'w;, heen prepared on o going concern basis.

The francial stalersents are presented i Fndian Rupess (IMR) which is the Trust’s functional and presentation
carrency and all smounts are rounded Lo the vearest Lakl (000007 and two deciomls theeeal, except as otherwise
slated.

Use of Judgement and Estimates

The plc])}lﬂﬁlil’lll af Nnancial stalements 5 in conlommety witl the generally aeceptod aeeounting prineiples in India,
and requizes the lovestnent Manager to inake estimates and assumplions 1hal 2 (Tect the reported wmounts of assels
and linbilities and disclosure ef contingent labilities i the Cate of the financial stawments aid e resolis of operations
during the reporting period end. Although these estimares are hused upon Investment Manager's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could diller ron tlese astimales,




2.4

Cuorrent versus non-current classification

The Trust presents Assets ond Liabilities in the Balunce Sheel bused on the Current ar Non Current classificanon,
An assel las been elassificd as Currenst il

() itis expeeted o be realized m, or s dntended for sale or comsiation o te Trost's nesomal wperating evele; o
(hyitis eld primarily for the purpose of being fraded; or

(e} itis expected 1o be realized within twelve months afier the reporting dale; or

(cdr 138 cash or cash cquivalont unless it is restrcted Trem being exchanged or used 1o setde a linbility for at least
vwelve months after the reposting date

Allatler assets have been classilicd as Now Cursent,

A Tinbility has been classified as Current when,

(ap it is expected 1 be settled in the Trust's normal eperating cyele or
{hy it is held primarily for the purpose of being radal; o

teyitis due o be setiled witlin bvelve monthe after the teporting date, or
Gy e Trust dows not bave an uncorditionad gl o deler seltament ol U
the reporting date

All other inhilizies hove heen classitied as Non Curren

ae Hadbsaliny fon at least twelve mantls afle

The aperating eyele is the tme between Uie sequisition ol assets Tor processing aod theis realusation in cesh and cash
ecnivalents, The Trust has identified twelve months 25 118 operaling caele,

Dieferred tax assets and Labilites are clussitied as non-carrent assers and lalililies,

Revenue Recopnition

Revenue s recognised to e extent that Jtis probable thal the ceononic benefits will Qow o the Troast and the revenue
can be relinbly measured. repardloss ol when the pryment is being made, Reveaue is mensured o e G value of the
considaration received or reccivable, aking into aceonn vontractually detined terms of payment and exeluding taxes
or dulics colleeted on behallof the povernmens,

The specific recognition criteria deseribed Below must alsy be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income - Interest is recognised oo L proportian basi taking inte aecauns the amaunt oustandiog amd the
ratzs applicable. For all Debt instraments measwed either ol Amortized Cost or Pair Valee through Other
Conpreliensive lncome, merest ineome is recerded using EIR method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts throuph the expected 10 of the financial instriment 1o the nel varrying wounl of the Dnuncial
assel

Dividends - Dividend meome s recopiised when |
generaliy when shareholders approve the dividend,
Fair value gaing vn currenl investments ensied al fuee value sre included in other income.

Claims with National Hishways Authorite of Tndin CHATY and other povamment amberiiies are aceomnled a< und
when Lhe money is received from e reapectuve authonities, ncases ol wonelury conpensalions,

Other items - Olher items of incoine are recognised as and when the right to receive the income arises,

e Trust's right to receive the payment is esablished, wiicl 15

Fin:ncial Insiruments

Financial assets andior lnancial lubilites are recopeised wlen the Trust becomes party to o contrazt embadying rhe
related [nancial instruments, A loaccial instroment is uny contraet that gives rise tooa Toanein! ssset ol one enlivy
and a financial liability or equity imstrument of ansther entity, & Nonncinl asset und @ Tuanvial ability are offset and
presented on nel basis in the balance sheel when there is o current fegally enfarecable vight to set-off the recnmnissd
amonts and it :s mtended o 2ither settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liabiliy simulunecusly.

Financial asscits

[nitial recognition and measurement

All finencial assels are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asscts not recorded at fair value
through profit or less, transaction costs that are atksibutable 10 the acquisition of the Hnangial assel Purchuses or sales

of linanctal ussets that require delivery of assels within a lime frame established by repolation ar convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the frade dare, e, the date tha the Trust comumils o purchase or




sell the asset, Trade receivables and trade pavables that do nat contain & sgailicant fnancing component ate intially
measured at Ui fransaction price,

Subsequent mensarciment

nasificd in [ollowing cateparies;

For purposes of subsequent measurerment, lnsmein] assets are o
ar amortised cast
21 fair value through prafil or loss (FYTPL)

- at fuer value threugh other comprehensive incoie (1Y OCT)

Fiminvinl Assels at pmortised cost

A financin] wsset i classiCed and sabseguently measured ac the amartised eost i bath the lollowing conditions are

mel:

a) The siesey is bald within o business model whose abjective ds 1o hold assets for collecting cantractual cash Nows,
ol

bl Contractual terms af the asset give rise on speeilied dates @ wnsh Toss that we solely payments of principul and
interest (PP an the proneipael amonnt outstading,

L his eategory is he most relevant 10 the Trost. All the Loans and other receivables ader finzncial assets (except

avestients) are non-derivative fimancial assels with (xed or determinable payvments that are not gueted man aclive

market.

After pitind measureoment, suel Mmancial assels sre subsequently measired at amortised cos) using the effective

interest rate i FIR method, Amortised cogl s ealenlated by mking into sccounl any discoint o areniinm on acquisition

ardl lees or casis that are an integral part ol the L1R The losses zrising from impaitment are recognised m the

Satement ol Profil and Loss,

Investments in couily insteuments of Subsidiaries are recognised at original cost in secordance with Ind AS 27,
Tmpainment testing of Investmend in subsidiary that are aceounted for at cosl @y per Ind AS 27 are within scope al lnd
AS 3¢ Impaitment of Asseis. Aoy impairment in value ol imvestment in equity investnenls i Subsidiaries s

pecomnized in the Statemenl of Prolit and [ess,

Finuncial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCL)

A finaneial sese 35 closalied asd sybsequently measured at FYTOCL AL both of the fallowing criteria are met:

g The asset 5 eld within @ business model whose objective is achioved bl by eollaeting conrae il cash Mows
and seliing the lnancial assets, and

by Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specificd dates to cash Hows that are solely
merest (5P

savients ol prneipal and

Invostment in Debt inarraments ineluded within the PV TOCH catepory are measured initally ns well as al cach
reparting dute @ o valoe, Faie valug movenients are recognized o the other comprebonsive meome OCT. However,
the T'rustrecognizes iteresl ineonme, imp;l it lnsses & reversals and l::)rL:-i.J-_f‘L'I exliange g_EliH o Joas o the Statemeant
of Prolit wd Losg,

JR miethid.

Interest carned whilst holding FYTOCT debt instrument is repocted as interest income usimg e

Financinl Assets ar Faiv Value theough Profid and Loss (FYTFL)

A Onancial asset which 15 not elassilied tany of the abave catepories are subsequently fair valued thiough profit or
loss. Firaneial assets imcluded within the FYTPL calegory are measneed al fair value walh all ¢hanges recognized 1n
the statement of profit and Toss. The Trust measuces 13 investments which are classified as equity instruments (othe:
than fnvestment 1 shares of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates}al Rirvalue theough profitand oss aecount.

Any debl insuument, which does not meet the eniterin for categorization as gt amorlized cost or as FYTOCL, 13
classificd as al PVTPL. In addition, the ‘Frast may elect to desipnate a debt instramenl, which otheswise meerts
amortized cost or FYTOOT ariteria, as al FYTPL. However, auch election 15 allowed aoly if daing so reduces or
cluninates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (eforred toous “weeounting mismateh™). The Trust bas not
desizrusod any debl instrumens as at FVTPL.




The Trust has investment in debt oriented munal funds wlich are beld for adieg, and the same e classitied ns af
FVTPL. The Trust makes such election on an mstrument-hy-instrunient basis, The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable, The gaind loss on sale of invesiments is reeegmsed i e Swlement of Profitand Loss,

Reclassificatinn of Financinl Assels

The Trust determines classificatton of financinl assels ab nitial recognition. After indtia] recogrition, no
ceclassification s mude [or finanzial assets which are cquity insteaments and finaneial Habllities, For financial ussets
which are deht instruments, o reclassilication s made only i theee i o elanee m e business madel for managing
those assets. Changes 1o the business model ave expected w be infrequent, The Tnvestmane Manager of the Trust
determues Clumge in the business ol s a result of external ar intecnal ehanees shich ooe stgnficont e e Trost's
operacions. Such chanpes are evadent o external pasties. A change in the business mode] oceurs when the Trost either
begins or ceases (o perform an activity that 65 sign Qoant wils operations,

17 the Trust reclussities financial assets, i applies the reclassification prospectively lrem the seelussilication dute
which is the first day of the tmmediately nest reportiog period Tollowing the change in hisiness model The 'Trust
ey not restite ary previovsly recogrised guing, losses (inclading Dapaivnent gaine ar losses) or fnlecest

The following table shows vartous reclassification and how they are accounted too:

Owiginal Classification Rovised Clussificating | Accounting Treatment
Amorized Cost FN¥TPL Fair walue s measared ol reclasselicalion  dae.

- Dillercnee between previous nmortised cost and fai
| value is recopnised instatement of profil and loss.
I'TVEL Amartized Cosl Fuir value ar reelassification date beoomes ils new
- o EPSS eIy 2 ool o
| Amortized Cost vac Fair valie s messured a0 reclassification  date.
DhilTerenee between previeus amartised cost and G
value I8 veeopnised o other comprehensive inceme
B Mo Change in EIR due to reclassifieatinng, j
Amartized Cast Fair value at veclassification date becomes its new
SIOss ey amoeat, Dosever cummulative gain or
loss e oter comprehensive meome 15 adjusted
dgainst Fair valie, Consequently, the  asset s
meagired as 00 0 wd always boen measured at
- 5 ) pinertised cost. B
FIVPL FVOUCI - Fair value ol reelassification date bacomies 15 new
N — anrrsing 2], Mo oter udjustinenl is roguired
FYOCl FIVEL Asszts contine 10 be measured lir value,
Cumnlative gain or loss peevioasly recagnized in
other comprehensive  income 13 roclassified o
| statetecnl ol prodiland loss ol e reclassifiention dafe

| Fyod

Derecognition

A financial assel {or, where applicable, s part of g Tinancial assel or purt of Trust's simiilar finaneial assets} s prnanly
derecognised (e remaved fram the halanee shcet) when

e The rehis 1o reccive cash Sonws from the assel have cxpired, or

= The trust bas transferred Hs nehieowe receive cash Aows from the asset or s assumed an obligtion to pay the
recejved cash fows i [ull without material delay 10 a third party under 8 pass-throuzh” arrangemeit, and either
fa) the frust has transferred substantially w17 the nsks and rewands of the asset or (b he trust hos neither teansferred
nor refained subsantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has tunslerred comtrs] of the nssat,

When the Trust has transferced it rigles o reeeive cash [lows o an assel o has calered into a pass-through
arcetizemenl, o evaluates 1 and to what extent ol bas retamed the risks and rewards of awnership, Whes i@ hes neither
transterred nor refained substantiolly all of the risks and rewsrds of the assel. nor ansfered contral of {7z aseet, the
Irust continues o recognise the transferred asset to Uie extent of the trust’s continuing involvement, 1y that case, the
trust alsa recognises an assecined liabilily, The rransferred asset and the associated Hability are measured on 2 basis
that rellects the rights and obligations thal (e orust as retained.
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Continumg involvement that takes the form of & goarantes over e tangZerred ussel 3s mensured al the lower ol the
onginal ¢ .u;l!}fll'l!- aroun of the asset and the maximun smaunl of consideration that the lrust could be required W
repiy.

Financial liabilities
[nitinl recognition and measureoment

Vinancial ligbilities are elassified, at initia! recopnilion, as financinl liabilities at fair value through proficar loss, leuns
and borrowings, payables, us appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recogaised initiolly at fate value and, in the case of loans uad burcowings and puyables, el
al directly atributazie nansaction costs

The Trust's financial labilities ineluade wada and ether povibles, [oang and boreawines ole,

Subsequent measurement

I inancial lizbilities desggnated upon ieitia) recogration ar fair value threugh prafit o loss we designated as such at
the tminal date of recognition, and only i the criteria m Ind AS 109 are satisfied. Foy ||ul~i|ili-:.‘=tiL'H:_I,EﬂHIl'Il s FNIPL,
fniz value gams/ Josses attributable o changes i own eredil visk wne tecognized in OCL hese paing lusses are ool
subsequently transteered o statement of profitond loss, However, the Trost naay L fer LI.». »u'uu].nlln' gan ar loss
within cquity, All ather changes in Tair value of such liability ure recopnised in the slutement of pravfitand loss, The
Trust has nol designated any financial linbilily ax al fair value through profit and Joss,

Toans and borrowings

This is the category mast relevant o the Trust, Afler imitial recogiztion, interest-bearing [npng and borrowingzs are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ETR methad, Gains and losses are recognised 1n Satemant ol Prodit
or Loss when the liabilitivs ure derecngaised as well as trough the FTR amortisativn process. Anwrtised cost is
calenlated by taking inte aceaunt any disconnt ur premiam on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part ol
the F1R. The EIR arnothisation is inelnded 25 Nnance costs m the Statement of Profi and |ass.

This category generully applies to bocrowimgs and seeurily deposits received,
Derecognition

A Craneinl Hasilisy is derecopnizad when (he ohlis ~1||-| vnder the linbitity is discharged or eaneelled erexaires, When
w existing financiud Hubility 1s replaced by aniz lender o substantally different tenns, o the terms
of oim L\mhu;_ linbility are substantially mudﬁml snch an Ladmum o medification is treated as the derecognition of
the ariginnl Hability aud the recognition of & aew Hability, The differenee in the respective canying amounts &5
recopnised 10 the statement of prohi or loss

Offsetting financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net muount 13 repered in the balance sheel where there is 2 legally
erforecable rizht 1o offset the recogused ameunts and there is an intention to seitle loancial asset and liability on a
uet basis or reulise Lhe asset and settie the lability siunulanecusly. The legally eoforceable right must not be mntmkuu
or: Lrare evenls and must be enforeeabla in the normal course of boginess and in the event of defaull, isulvency or
barkouptey ol the Company or the counterpatty,

Fair Valug measwrement

I'he Trust measures fanncial instruments at fair value ar each financial statemen: dule,

Faur value s the price thal would be received 1o sell au nsset or paid W translor a liabilite noan orderly transaction
serween marker pariicipans at te mepsurement dace, The fair value measurement is based on the presumpizen thal
the transacticn to sell the asset or rransfer the lability (akes place cither:

i) In e principal market for e asset or labdlity, ar

i) In the absenee ol a principal market, in the most advanzagaous markel Lor the asset or lisbilaty

The priveipal or the most alvautageons market must be accessible by the Trosl,
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The rarr value of an assel or @ Dability s measured using tre assumplions thal nackel parteipants would vse when
pricing the assel o lizbiticy, assuming that market participants act in their ecaromic best inferesl,

A fair value measurement of @ non-finnneial assel takes lntw aecount a market participant's ability 1o penerate
coonomic benelits by using the asset i s Bighest and best ase or by selling oo another nweket parieipant that would
use the assec in s highest and best use.

The Trost vses valuation techoiyues that wre appropziaie e circumstanges and Ty which suflicient data are
avadlable o measure [aie value, maximdsing the vse ol relevont observable inputs and munimisian the use ol
unobservable npuls,

Allassets and linbilities forwheeh faivvalue s measored ordiselosed in the Tnaneial statements ne caleporsed within
the Lair value hicrarehy. deseribed ag Rellows, basee on the Tawest level input that is stgeilicant w e Tuic value
measurement as a whole

Level I Quarted prives (unmdyested j fn aclive markets e identival aseers o Labilities
Level 2 dnputs other than quoted prices ineluded within Level 1 that are observable ot
directly {Le as prices) or indireetly (e, deyived o prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the assels or Habilitics that are not based on observeble nurkel duti (unobservable inputs),

e asset or liability, eihes

For ussels and liabilittes that are recognised in the linancial statements on o recurring basis, e Trust determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels De che hierrehy Sy re-ussessing calegorisution (hased on the lowest
fevel oput that is signicant to the fair value messerement as a whole) at the end al each reporting period

The Trust determines the policies and procedures for both recurring Laie value measurement, sach as derivanve
: - : ; i

instruments and unguoted financial pesets mensured al Kdr value, and for non-reciring messurement, such as nssets
heid for distribution in diseortinued operations

At each reporting date, the Trus) analyses the movements in the values of assels oud liabilitics which are required to
be remeasured or re-pssessed as per the Trest's accounting pulicies, For this analysis, the Trust verifies the major
iputs upplicd i the latess valuation by aprecing e information o the valearion eomipatation e cantracts ad ofher
relevant documeants,

The Trust also compares the change in the Laic value of ench asset and LHabolty with relevant extermal sowrees o
determing whether e chivnge is reasonnble,

On an anmual basis, the Board ol Dircctors of the lnvestinenl 3Manager prescits e valuation resuits o the Aadi
Comumities and the Troscs independent sudiiors, This ineludes o diseussion of the major assuraplions used in Lhe
valuations, For the purpose of faur valus disclosusez, the Trust has deterntined olasses ol assets and Habilities on the
hasis of the nalure, charaeleristics and risks ol the asset or habilityand e devel of the fairvalue hizrare by as explained
above. This note summarises accouuling policy lor i value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant nnles,

Investment in subsidiaries

[necsiments (equity instrumenms ) io subsidiarics are caried at eost less aecunilated inpaitment losses, iany, exeept
when the investment, ora putlion thereof, s elassified ns beld Torsale, inwhich case 1t is sceammied Tor as Non-cuirent
assets held for sale and discontinued operations, Where an indication of impainnent exisis, the currying amount of
the iovestment is aszessed and wrilten down immediately 1o s recoverabls amoast, On dispesal of investments in
subsidiziies, the Jilference between net disposal proceeds and carrying wmounts are recognized i1 the Staemen of
Profit and Loss.

Cash and Cazsh Lguivalents

Cash and cush equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cask ar banks and on hand and shor-term depesits with an
arigimal maturity of three months or less, which gre subject to an msignifcant risk of changes in valoe.

For the purpose of the stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shovi-tern: deposits, as
defined abave, nel of euistandig bank overdrafiz ag they are considercd un integral part of the Trast’s cash

management.
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Impairment of Assets
impairment of Financial Assels

All Gnaneaal assers excepl for those desimated @l J"'\v"'l'l‘l are subjeel o revicw lin im;:mrmcnl at Jeasl each reparting
date o idensfy whether there is any abjective ovi a lnancial asset ar geoup ol 1 asmels i bupaived,
I accordance with Ind AS 109, the trust applics ¢8 pulml prediv loss (FCLY muode! Tor measuaremaent and recognitian
of impairment loss Tor Hoaneinl assers carvied acamoriecd cost,

For recognition ol impaiiment Loss on other noocia] assars @ exposure, the fust determines ot whether there

has been asignilicant tcrease in the credit rislk since initial ri';:u-;-__nlllmn. IF credit risk Las nof im'rh 50 1 signilicantly,

2 montl LCL s wsed to provide Tor impaivment Toss, However, 10 cvedl rish bas imercascd sig v lifetime

FCL 35 wsed. 16 ina subsequent penod, eredit quality ol the instrament improves sueh thas Ihm'c 1'> ne Jonger @

signe feant incrensa in credit nsk sinee tillal recagnition, then the enlity reverts to recoghising (patrtent loss

allowance bused o [ 2=month ECL,

Laterime ECL are the expected eredit losses resultling sfanlt cvenls ever the expected Il ol o

financial instrament. The | 2amonth ECL s o portion of the 11"11|‘m LOL which results from delals events that are

passible within 12 months afier the reporting dale.

LCL is the difference between all contractual cash Mows that are due 1o the 1rugt in aceordange will the contract and

Al the cash Tows that the entily expecis L receive (e all eash shorthalls), discounted at the erginal IR, When

estunating the cash Oews, e ertity is reguired oo eonsider

e Al cantractual terms ol te Guanein! wstrument (inelnding prepayment, excension, call mud similar oftions) over
the expected Iife of e financial nstrument, However, in rare cases when the linancial
mstmiment carmol be estimated rehably, then the entity is required toese the semaining contractual torm of the
Nnaecial inslrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collazeral held or other credil enbanvements that are inlegral 1o 1he eontractual lerms

FCL smpaivment loss allowange (or revorsul) recognized during the year iy recogized as incomer expense in the
Statentent of Profit and Loss (P&LY, This amannt is retlected under the hend *other expenses” i the P&L.

Impauirment of Non- Financial Assels

[Mie Trust assesses, al ench reporting daze, whether there is an indication that un wsset may be impaired. I oy
indication exists, ar when smmual nnpaicment lesting for an asset s required, the Trostestimates the usset’s recoverable
amaunl, An assel's recoverahle antount is the higher ol an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGLY Fair value Jess
costs of dispesal and i value io use, Recovernble ameurt i detenmined for an individuad wase nnless the asset duoes
not pencrate cashoelows that are h| _Ecly independent el those fran other assets vr Trust's asseis, When fe carrying
amoant of an assel or CGLU exceeds 115 recoverahle amounl, the asser 13 consicered impatred and 5 writlen down fo
its receveralile amonnt. In assessing valoe in vse, the estimated future cash Howes are digeommted Le l|'|:1| nresent value
weing 3 pre ek tseount iele that refleetd current murikel asgessments of the tne value of maney uad the risls
spoecilic to the asset. In detenmining nel selling price, recent market rapsacuons are koo il tu:l:l)'lll'ﬂ-. if available.
I ne such lransactons can be identificd. an approprioe valuadoen model t ssed. hopairment losses ol vontinaing
operations are recopaized in the statement of profit and loss, excepl lor previously revalved tingible fixed assets,
where the revaluation was faken to revalualion reserve. In this case, the impaisment is also recogoized i the
pesaluation reserve up o e ameunt of any previous revalwtion, Aller impeinment, deprec saion 1 provided on the
revised carrving amount of the asset ever 1ls remaining usefd ke,

A assessinenit i3 made ud cach reporting date as 1o whether these s any ineication that praviously reun__,mz-_d
impairmenl losses may oo lomper @xistar nay e ceerensad, [Dsuch indication exists, the trost estimates e 2ss
CGU's recoverable u*'mum. A pl“\fmu-.lhf recopnized impairment lu:-'w 35 reversed only il there has heana chunge in
the a.uumpllum uzed to determine the assets recovesable amountsinee the lust impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that (he carrving amount of the asset does nol (’weed its recoverible ameunt, nor excecd Lhe
carrying amnount that weuld have been determie
the asz=et in prive years, Such reversal is oy ean,nm,d i the stalemnent of profis and Loss anless the asser is carried oy
revalued amount, 1y which ease the roversal 15 realed os @ revaluation inerease,

. net of depreciation, hud no npaisment Toss been recognized for
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Borrawing Casis

Borrowing Cost consist of interest amd sher aneillary costs icured me conoeetion witle the serangemnent of
borrowings. Borrowing costs diceelly atlsibutable 1o the pequsition, constraclion or production of an asset that
necessarily takes o substantial period of time to get cendy for its interded use or sale nre eapitalized as past ol the cosl
of the respective assel

All other borrowing costs are charged o the Stutement of Prafitand Loss in the peried they oceur. I cose of significant
Long term doans, other costs mearved i connecrtion with e borrosiieg o Tunds ure wnortized over the pedad of
respective Loap, Borrowing eost also ineludes exclange differences to the extent regarded as anadjastment o the
borrowing costs

Foreign currency transactions

The Trust's lnancial stiements are presentad in INR, which is Trust's Rmctionul curreney.
Purvign carrency teansaetivons e reearded o) the erebange eate provailing on e dite ol e pespective ansictiong
Berween the funetional curreney and e foreign currency.

Monctuey Torcign correney assels oud Habilities remaining urnsetted anehe Finane sl Sttenent dote e tansluled ol
the razes of exchonge prevailing on thut dale,

Grains ¢ losses aristeg on aceount of realisation ¢ setlement of foreign cumency nnseclions amd on lranslation of
fareign currency assels and linbilites are recognized i the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Exchange differences arising on the seilement of monetary flems at rales dilterent Trom these at which they were
initatly recorded during the year, ar repartad in previeus linaneial statements, are recogiized a3 Ineame or as expenses

in the vear in which they arise.

Non - Monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreipy cuireney are reported
using the exchange rate al the dile of the ransaction: and Non - Monetery slems which ace carried at fair value or
ater sinilar viluaton deraminated ina fergign correney, are reported asing the exchange rtes it exisied whane (he
values were dezermined,

The wain or loss arising oo trenslation of Nep=-Monelary tems measuced ar Tair vilug 15 reated in fne wid the
recognition of gain or luss on change n fuir value af e e (Le., nskilion Gitferences on items whose fair value
aant or loss 1s recognised in OCH or pradt and loss are wlso recopnised in OO ar Pratic and | oss respeciively)

Taxes on income

Fax expenze comprises of Current snd Deferred s,
Cusrent ingonme tax s measared at the avwuyal expected o be patd w the tax aathoriies o aecordinee wa i neese
Tax Act, 196].

Current meome tax assets and liabilites are measured at the amount expected o he recovered from or i 1o e
tuxation autherities, | he fax rates aod fax Tws vsed o comppare the asneunt are Hiose il use enacled or substantively
enacted, al the reporting dale.

Currenl neome Lax relating to items recognised sulsids prolit or loss is recognised ontside profic ar loss {either in
other comprehensive income ar m equityl,

Current s v are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC) ar dicectly in equily,
Munagement perindically evalumes positions Laken in the tax vetirns with cespect @ siuations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject o interprelation and sstublishes pruvisions where approprinte.

Deterced 1ox 15 provided vsing the liatalicy methed om temporary differences hetween the tax bases of assers aod
Hzhddnies and their carrying amonnts for Joancial repocting purpases al the seporting dale

Duterred tax assets and liahilitiez are measured 4t the fux rates that are expected 10 apply i e vear when e asset is
realised o the Lability is seiled, based on ter races (and tax laws) that have boeen enacted or suhsiantively enncted af
the reporting date,




Deferred tix assels ae reeaenised for all deductble temparary differences, the carry forward of unused lax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred wx assels are recognized o the extent that 1 13 prahable thal taxable profic will
he avatluble against which the dedoctible wmporary ditferences, and the carry lorward of unused fux credils and
yonsed tax losses can be ntilised. The carrving amonnt of deferred tax assels (s reviewed al each teporting dute and
reduced 1o the extent tat il is mo Jonger probable thi sullicient taxable prodicwill be available o allow allor part of
the deferred s asset to be nnilisedl.

Deferred tax relatng o items recognised owtsice profit or loss s reeopnised autside profiv or loss jeither in other
comprehensive icwiie of i equity)

Deforred iy assels and deferred tix liabilities are offset if a legally enfurcenble righl exisis b set off eurrent L issets
against eurrent tax Hubilitics ond the deferred taxes relate w the same taxuble eality and the same Lasation authari.

Provisions, Coptingent Linbilities, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitmenty
Contingent Liahilities

A contingent lability 15 o possihle abligation that arises from pust events whose exisience will be confirmed by L

SeurtencE or NON eceurreee of ohe ar more uneertin (e events beyond the control of the Trust o a present
ohligation thal is not recognized bevause i1 is not probabic that au oulflow of resources weall e required to seitle the
chligation, A contingenl Lability alse arises in extrernely rare cases where there is o Labil ity-that vannoi be recognized
becausy 1 eannat he measured rehably. Contingent Linhilitics are reviewed at cach reporting date, The Trust does not
recognize d contingent liakility in the books ol acceants, however disclosos lts existence in tha finaneial staterments
in the notes to accounts.

Contingent Asscts

Contingant assets usually arise fram unplanned or other wnexpected evenls that give rise to the posstlivy ofar inflow
of ceensmie benefits to the entily,

Contingant assels are recognized when the realisaton of income is victually certain, in which case the related assit 15
not @ contingent asset and 118 tecognition is appropriue.,

Contingont ussets are reviewed at cach reporting date. A conlingenl usset is diselosed where an i Mo of ceonemiv
benefits is prohablie,

Pravisions

Pravisians ave recopnised when the Trust lias a present ohlization (lepal or constructive) as a result of a past event, il
i prabable hat an oulflow ol resoorces enthndying comion Senefite will ke egurea toseuly the obligation and o
reliahie cstmale can be made of the ameunt ol the obligation, Whin the Truat expeets some o all of a provision W
e peimbursed. for example, under an insuratee contract, the reimbursement is recopnised as a separale asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virlually certain, Lhe expense relaling to a provision is presented in the statement ol prnfic
and loss nel of any relmbarsement.

Il the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a crrent pre-lus rate that retlects,
when appropriate, the risks speeific to the linbilily, When discounting iy used, the inerease in L pronvision due o
passapge ol lime ts recogntsed as a finance cast

Commitments

Commitments are future fabilites for controctual 2xnenditure, clossified and disclosed us [elkows,

e ostimmled amount of contracls remaining © be exceuted on capital aceount ond not providad for

o funding related commitiment to subsidiary companies; and

o wiher non-cancellable comunitments, i any, o e extenl they are considered materind and relevanl i the apinion

of managemenl,

Ocher commmitments releted o services o be rendered [ procurements made in the noroal course of busmess ae pol
dhzclozed to avoid cxcessive detacls
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Statement of Cash Flows

Statement ol Casl Flows is prepared sepregating the vash Jows inlo eperating, investing and financing activities.

Cash Soaww from operating activites 15 reported using indireet method adinsting the nec profit for the effects ol
= clonges durng the periad in operaring recesvnbles and puyables, Bansactions ol o nen-cush tature;
«  nop-eash items such as depreciation, provisions, delferred taxes, unrealised forcign enrrancy pains and lpsses;
Teets are investing o Tisanceng cash ows

o allother e Tor whicl the cash e

Cash and cash equivalents tincluding bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items wlich
ave not avatlable for general use as at the date of Balanee Sheet

Assels hield for sale

Nom-current assers of disposal tusts comprising of nssets ond Babitivies are clasgilied ps held for sale” when all of
the Tellowing eviterins are mel (1) Goeiston has ke made 1o sell, G e aesets e avatloble Sy oadediate szle in
ts preseot condition. (i) the nssets are bemg actvely maeketed and fiv) sale hae beorn agreed or 18 cxpected 1o be
concheded within 12 montls ol the Balooee Sheet dale,

Subscguently, sueh non-coment assets and disposal lrusts clussilied us held e sale are mensured ot 1he lower of its
carrying value and fair value less costs o sell, Nom-current assets held for sale are aot deprectated or amortised,

L ait Capital

Units are classilied us cquity. Incremental cases artrbutabile 1o the issue of undits are diceetly recoslad in Other Equits,
net of x.

Distribution to anit holders

The Trust recogrises @ Hability o make eash dishibutions o ail holders when the distibution is authorised and a
legal obbgation has hean created. As per e SERT InvIT Regulations, a distribation is aichorised when it is approved
by the Bozrd ol Dircetors of the Investment Manager. A cortespondizg wmounl is recognised divectly in equity,

Earnings per Unit (EPL)

Basic EPU amounts aee culeulated by dividing the profit for the period attiibaeable wougitholders by the weiglied
averuge nuniber of units outstandiog during e ceriod,

Diloted EPLU wmounts are caleulated by dividing the preficlvss) allnbutabic o unithekicrs by the weighled avernge
number al units outstandivg ducing the perod plus e weighied average number of units that would he issued on
cenversion of all the dilutive potentizl units irto ueic eapial,




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Standalone smmnary of significant accounting poulivies and other explanatory information

3, Iavestments; Non Curvent

(Al Ao i A Inkh unless ouhersise s[ltik'l:l

PARTICULARS - ASAT AS AL |
J1st Mareh, 2032 3080 Maech, 2021 |

favestmend in Equity tostruments

Subsidincy company
Jevesanent in Fquity Shares of Project SP'V (NHIPIL) 1,46,533.52 -
G129 0000 pos of Fully peicd op eguity shaves of Paee Yalue Re [0
eachy
Total 1,39,533,52 -

4. Loans: Non Cuarrent
i LAAL amounts 1 2 Lkl vl olberwise stated)
PARTICULARS ' ASAT ' AS AT
st Mareh, 2022 st March, 2021

Unseenresl, Consadered good:
Ta Relued Parties

Leae w0 Projeet SPV (INHIPPL} 6,08 G 1K) -

Odaxinnm acwount salstanding during the year: Bs, 6,05.640; 2% NIT)

6.05.640,00

css Current porlion of Non Cuoent Loans {1Refor Mote #) 2723380 -

Total STRING20 %

Details of fosans and advanees in the nature of kans to subsidiarics/sssociates (inciding interest receivable):

The Trust has geanted long lerm loen amounting W MR 005640 Crore gt the v ol 12205 pa, o subsidinry company
(NP v Facilite Apreement dated 29092021 for franeial assistinee to he wilized foe (ke numoses sad tems oand
comlivions e wenlioaed o the Cenvession Agreement Setwoen NHAD and MHIPPL. 7 e tomn was dishinsed oo
14122071 and is repavable on quarterly basie over |02 gquarterly instwhoents of Prineips] end Teterest up 1o 3 1st March
207,

3. (mher Financial Assets: Non Currend
_ Pall amonrts in @ kb nnless otherwise s}
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
Alst March, 2022 Mt March, TU21

Investment in Fived Deposits
Fixad Depozits with banks® BTET -

Tatal 3AT081 -

= The Fixed Deposiss are carmurked [or Debt Servieing Reserve Aczeunt (DERA L, o be wilized ot the end plienure off

Lo serm hamowings Trom Sentor Lenders, henee classilied as Gther Fizancial Asseis- Non Comenl nrespestive af dite o
= = 14




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Standalone summary of significant aceounting policics and nther explanatory information

B Investments: Current

(AL s i 2 lukh unless otherwise saled)

PARTICLLARS

AS AT As Al
Js) Mureh, 2022 Liat Muoreh, 2021

I Mutual Funds = Quaoted at FYTPL
Urvermight Mutoal Funds
P2R.60 02 nnits G2 NAN ol B, 340613535 per unis)

Tutal

Ty Cash ol Cash Eapuivalents

Gu 16 -

092,16 -

(Al amaunts i & Lakh inleds otherwise statecd

PARTICULARS

Cash & Cash Fqguivalonty
Balances with Banks
In Cumvent Accounts
In Fscrow Aceaunt
Fixed Deposits
ihaving origival muturiey of kess tian 3 montha)

8. Loans: Current

AS AT AS AT
315t Mayeh, 2022 31st March, 2021

A1605% e
1500 -
q,450 00

4,801,107 -

(A mannls 1 ® Lokh unless alhomwise statedd

PARTICULARS

AR AT AS AT
3tst March, 2022 315t Mareh, 2020

Lnsceured, Considered gond
Tur Relatead Partics
Curvent Maturties of Toan 1o Projcet SPY [NELPPL) (Leler Nole 4)

Tatal

9. Other Financial Assets; Currenr

2

-
T

Q5380 -

T 17,153 80 .

podl amorss i 2 lokh unless othorwise stated)

PARTICULARS

AS AT AR AT
st Mapeh, 2022 305l Blarch, 2021

Fierest receivedle on loce wom leans
Fateiest receivable on nvesimen! in Fixed Deposes
Oichers Financial Assets

Taolal

10 Grher Currenr Assors

165113 -
5% .
{10 010

10.656.50 0.10

(Al smounts e 3 akh walsss vinerwiae slated)

PARTICULANRS

A% A AS AT
Mst March, 2022 At March, 22l

Prepaid Expauses

Tutal

12.46 -

12.46 -




NATIONAL HIGITWAYS INFRA TRUST
Stundulone swmmary of sigailicant aeconnting policies wnil other explanatory ledormation

11, Unit Capitnl®
(A et n 8 bl anlesy ellcrwise staled)

PARTICULARS - C O AS AT 35t March, 2022 AN AT 318t March, 2021 |
- NO, OF UNIT AMOUNT | NO.OF UNITS ANMOUNT
Umit Capital IE2 0000 G520 - |

Rights prefevences md vestrictions attached to Unit Capliral

Subnzet @ the provisions of tie vl Rogalotinms, U indentuce of Fads, aad aoplicalile miles, copilabions awl guwbelies, the dghts of the unil
holders include:

a1 The berefieial serest ol veel uanholdor shal baeguul sl lited pCae proportion of the namber of e anins [l by that anithoker 1o

the toti gt o W,

b et e seeeive ineome or distribations with respect to thw unils teld,

v Riele o anend tae somual geeral meeing vad atier meenngs ol w Boldees of the Trust

oy Right tn vele apor any aeredreantntinns propases morelaton W e Trusl,

3 Rt e geeive pesiodic i fetion Taving a beasng on the speratian or performance af tee Troslin secordines with the Inel Regolations

0 Right to apaly to the Trust b Lube up certain ssues nl meslings S unit halles apgroval,

£1 Right 1 receive addionml i fenmation, ifany, inaecordance with InvlT docucents liled with Placenient Memoranchan,

1) The nus-sponsor wnil holders ("Cligible Persons®) o the ‘Trost are entitled 1w reprasentition on U Board ol Directers ol the lrvesimen)
23 directars { NieSpongor Directors”), paovided tha: no Bhgible Person shell hove the right @

Manager through appontisent of up to twn |

momingte mure Hew aee Director ol a time G appoizioent o the Bearsd of Direators

2, ittd there shall

It accerdanze with the bl T Regularians, no veir Tekders shall vinjor supsiior solizg o any ohe rights over any other usil hald
ol b rmulliple classes of units, There shall be ol pee Cenmniation of umis, Mot withstanding the above, subsediate wilis iy be s only
10 the Sponsor e s Assaciales, where such subarémate units shall carmy only yz Feriie volingg or any othier rights contpane o the sther unil

Uncor e peovissons of the Invl T Regulations, sol less than ninety pereent of the sen distebutehle cush Tows ol the Trost is requined o he
detribired 1 the wedelders, and i aceordanes with sneh stalutery obligation e Trost las omaleed a disielutnn policy o declae and
crstribute the disaivaabie cish fows o it unitholders wnce every quarter ol a tinaneal year 28 approved by the Board of Preeciors af the
ser. The distibutions e by Trost w s unithalders ave Desed on the Nel Datribuile Cash Flows (508 o8 e Trast under

[ivestnie st Man
the Invl 1 Regulis

i and pepresant vepayment of proportirmie capital ad shoce o proli

Limitation to the Liability of the unit holders

“Ihe aability of each vnil helders wreards the prermens of ane anwamt b ey aose ferelation wthe st meluding gy lses, dutizs, fines,
lavies, Tiabilities, <asts nr expensas) shall e limited valy 10 the gxtent of the cepitel contnbulion uf secle ault halders ind after such capital
conimlarian saall bave Been said i 50l by e onit helders, the i hoklers shall not Bz ollizated fa make ary Bother peymenls,

‘T he unii holders shall 2ot iave any persenal linka 'y or ehlizatioy with respect w the Trust,

DETAILS OF UNTUOLBERS HODIENG MORE THAN 5% UAECES I P TRUST

NAME OF UNTTHOLDERS [ AS AT 3lsi March, 2022 AS AT 315t March, 2021 |

N, OF UNITS iy NO. OF UNITS % |
Cutarip Livred - 14, 58 10110 25.00% - =
PP Ipvestment Buard Pivate Holdings Inc. | |4, B 00000 00 = | -
ShI Balanzed Advaniage Trust R | i.{wﬁ%.l.lltﬁlt?'lliil 1.54% - J -
Mational Highways Auwthority of Idia {NITAL | 9,56 080 .06 | < z 2

As per teeords of the Trosl, ancloding s registor ot wnithelders and other declaraivn eeeived Gom unithelders regueding henelvial muweresy, e
ahove vnithalding represent hotl femal andd benefeinl eamerlip of wnits,

The Trust has fssued 10051485 ros of units ar the rate af Ks, 101 per unit Tor conziderstion othar e vash to the Sponser (Nalional Thghaays
Authoruy of Indgi, 5 consideration e purchase uf” LG equily shares of Projest SPY - NHIPEL.

M unis were bought back smee mception of e Trusl

RECONCILIATION OF NUMBER OF UNITS OUTSTANDING IS SET OUT BELOW;

FPARTICULARS ' 1 AS AV SIst Murch, 2022 AS AT 30st March, 2021
MOy, O UNDLS AMOUNT NOLOF LNITS AMEHINI
- Caenonyls in T Eakh) ) [ fammpunts in ¥ lakhg
Mumber of Uitz & the beemning of he pecual - - % ,,
Linits isswed during the perd SG.52 00000 LN B HaTH . -
Number ol Units ot the end of the peried 56 5200000 A, L300 - L m




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Standalone summiary of signilicant acconnting policles and other explanatoey information

12, Other Equity** — = LA amunty in ¥ lakh imless otherwise sated|
Particulars Reserves and Surplos | ftems of Other Comprehensive Ineome B ‘Total
Tl ot will nut be L il will be reelussificd
- rectassified 1o peslit or loss | Lo ol or loss
Rettmed Earmings | Rerneascrerment of DeSaed | Fais Value Goin on Prelerence
- Henefit Obliaatwond Plan Slhires .

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - - ) & -
| Profit (T ossy far e peril 67,501 - . T 16,007
Balance as at 3is1 March, 2031 o100 . (67.90)
Proficd (Lassh Joo the pevied B, 192,23 S = - IH.l."JE.H

NS Hme WS 1ssue expense

Balanee as at J1st March, 2022

1001

Lo ALS, 14

1, 704,18

16,415.14




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Stambalone summary of significant acconnting policies and ather explanatory Information

13. Borrowings: Non Current

CALT gt e 3 lukh wiless otherwise stoted)

PARTICULARS AN AT A8 AT
e B . S0 Mareh, 2022 3t Mareh, 2021
Seeural
Term Loan
Frovm Rurds [ A [il‘jnﬂ_-“i: -
Froon ather partics o= s
IR W DERY .
Less: Curreint Maturities of Long Tern Rereowings (Relir Note 14) R KA +
a5 Lranert zed Buoowine Cest® Anuu0? £
Total 145585604 .

*Pransaciion Custamountiuse w s 118 Crone was nol vt paicas ot e el ol reportig peciod @ the Senior Tevders, bowever the
samie las been corsidered for the purpose ol FIR e the loctheoming pariods.,

The Trest had availzd Tong ferm Tonn cumalulizg w INR L8 Crove (sanctioned smonn) Re, 2000 Crore) from eonsentium theee bunks
2t interest tate o T20% pa, vis Bacility Agrcement deted 29092021 S the puipase of imvestmant by the Trnst in the Prejeet SPY
INHIPPL)

Tae loam was iaborsed on 112,202 pred is repavable on guarterly basis over 78 quarerly instalments of Priveipal and Interest up to
3lst Mareh 2041 abere in the rext installment w due an 30k June, 2622,

Secnnts

I'he Tour is seeured by,

- first pari passa chargze on all inenovable assers GFany), movoble assers il recvivaldes of the Trost Deloding but sot limiled o,

(1) the ivterest aed neincipnl repavments o e lrans advanced by the Trugt to Projesy SPV

(ian dividads o e paid by Project SPV oo the Trest

= First pannd passa Seeurity Interest on Trest Fserew ncvaunt and all sub-aecouns theraurder, ineluling 105104,

- first pas Possi s beree an the Senor Debt Service Aocount, Sub-Meht Servicing Aveomt ane Suplys! Disadend Acceunt orany other
pecoant ol the Proee: SPV whers Tree cash Nows ol the Praject 5% are credizer,

- pledgy of 190 equaty shaces of Praject SOV INHIFPL) held by Uie Trast

- asstenment of leaus advancel T the Trost ta Project SV OMHIPPLY and seourilies ereated |y the Trust insheling the assigninent off
piehts of subnrission. terminstion and trvesation of provision ol Pscrow agrecment i cose ol deloull

- negative len on invnavable assets (achuding current assews aod cash flowsy of the Frajea SPAV {NIHPPL) subject to sele ol abaslele

sitan Did tall cgmpaent cie,, ke meeal Business prastice. sulsct w0 masimum gonmladie Valuge of INR 5

A s sl

Crore 101 any financial venr,

The centor lenders of the Trust have also been provided with a comporale murntee i Mrajeet 5P (MHIPPL) 1o guaranies the
repayirient af senize debt by the Trust, The funds have Seen raised ot Teost level by unholders and domestic lenclers, and the same bave
becn lent 2 Preject 3PV (NIPPL) fo: paviment of cencession foo by MHTPPT L MELAL The cosliflows vz, 107 colleclions are Jving i
NMINPPL Accordinely, corporste puarmlee amoanling W INR 2000 Crare via Cerporple Gnacaniee Deed dated 14052022, valid
acress the wnure of the loan of the Trust Lo, up to 31032041, hes heen pravided by the Prajeer SPV [ RHIPPL) s the senior londers of
the Trust

There Lave bees no bregehes in Enancind covenants witlt respeet wothe borrowings from Senior lenders.



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Standalone sunumary ol significant aceounting policies and ofher explanatiey information

14, Deferrved Tax Liabhilities

PARTICULARS

Deferved Tux Liabilities avising on aceoun af
Met Gian o e vilwabon ol invesoments destgoated ac FYTRL

Deterved Tax Liabilities

Ieconciliaton of delerved Loy Assets! (Linbilities)
PARTICLLARS

CAllarouits i 4 bikb Uidess otheowise staled)

AS AT AS AT
st Maeeh, 2022 Nst Maeh, 2001

Opening Batance - Deferved Tax Linbililies

Deterred fax fineeme)’ gapense duging the perisd recopnized in statament off prolic &

lss

Deferned tax {income)’ exponse during the pericd recognised in Otler
Lamprehzasive lncome

Closing Balance - Delerred Tux Lialrilities

15, Hurrowings: Current

310
o EN T
OAEAL AS AT
Mot Muweh, 2022 dlst Moreh, 2026
ER LG F
e e

A s in 4 lakh unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS

Seeured
Current Malvnilies of Long Term borcowings {(Reler Nalg | 3)

Total

16, Trade Payables: Current

ASAT AS AT
31s1 Maech, 2022 st Wuarch, 2021
BRI -
S S -

CAlLmmenmis iu T lakh cnless otherwise stazedi

PARTICULARS

AS AT AS AT

Total gutstondig. dues ol mivro wed small enterprises
Tota’ outstaading, dues of tade payables othier than miceo and small entezprises
(Cusstandivs for less thar 12 nronths frem e dus daie off ARG

Talal

17. CGileer financial liabilities: Carrent

31st March, 2022 3t March, 2021
ERR R -
T T

PADL a0 ¥ laleh tmless slhoradse s

PARTICULARS - AR AT AS AT
S1sf Mareh, 3022 F1st Mlarch, 2021
Others
Pavablos wepands other expenses 143.56 AT
Total 143.56 67,84
18. Other Current Linbilitics
e ALl amourits in & taklunless oilierwise stajed)
PARTICTLARS AN AT AS AT
31t March, 2023 3st March, 2021
Starulory Labilmes (GST and TS LR L1 (%43

Tatal

99,50 E




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Standatone sumumary of signilicant acconnting policies and other explanatory infermation

19, Current Tax Liahilites

PARTICULARS

Provision Tor [ncotoe ''ax

Taral

Weconcitintion of Cureent Tax Tialalities

PARTICULARS

CAlTamonms in T 1kl unless otherwise steed)

AN AT AS AT
st March, 2022 Jist Mareh, 2021
bl
- |
161.77 -

P ammguits B € Dkl vntess ocherwdse stated

Opening Bulunce

Adc, [neoms Tax Pavuble for the vew
Less: lncone txes puid dirivg the yea
Closing Balance

AS AT AS AT
3050 Murel, 2022 30t Blarch. 2021
436,26 .
274.59 "
161.77 :




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Stundalone sumiary of sigsificant secawnting policies and other explanatory infurnation

20, Revenue from operations

PARTICULARS

AL g e % bl leless sl s st )

Operating revenug
Interest i Long Lerm Loon giver

Tolal

21, Other Togomee

" Vanr Foded Yeur Eaoded
3132022 A0
2284313 -

22.813.13 =

UL ansotets d T Tkt ooiss olhe wisa s hatody

PARTICULARS

Interest Income
On Nixed deposils with hanksy

CQther non operating income
Chzin o sale ol invesinenls

Mo Gameon fair veluztion ol cvestrments designated at FYTEL

Onker Incams:
Taotal

22, Finange charzes

Yunr Ended Year Ended
3-N3-20122 31-03-2021
8BGO -
(] B3 2
T.a8 “
JIR.AT -
T "

PAL s ek an less el se stated)

PARTICULARS

lterest e Long Term Bomewings
Otber Firancial Chinges
Total

23, Other expenses

Yoear Ended Yoear Eaded
J1-p3-z0z22 32N
3.149.09 =
L

3,154.43 - i

LAl novounte in T lakhowelee achereiae shsh

PARTICULARS

Legal 2nel Professional lees

Fee, Subsenption & Taxcs

Nank charges

Auditors' rermmneration:
At s

Mizcellancous expenses

Total

Year Ended Yoeur Ended
_.‘L_!__—'_EI_S_--E(IE’E J1-n3-20
111,54 4733
L1 R st 15,27
2.4l 4
E 50 nET
.76 =

115,25 63




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Standalone sununary of sigmificant aeeonnting policies aad ather explamatory information

24, Tan Expense
CALLantenrre in s eeless athicewse stced y

PARTICULARS Year Ended Yoewr Foded
; g 31-03-2022 ) 31-03-2021
{furrent I'ax AdB 36 -
Prisdson lor Taxation - Earlier vt - :
' 130,36 .
Dielerral tex experceerndit) Al =
43451 i -

Effvetive tax Reeoncilintion:
Nutseriea. reeaneilintion of tax expense appleable to (profin loss betare fux al te latest stataany enaeiel s rae i ndia
10 inoomme tay cxpense reporied 1s as Tollows:

Eal st i 8 Lkl wdess othepwise s ey

PARTICULARS Year Endud Year Ended
_ - N 31032022 3032021
Accounting “rofit hodore Tnoome Taxes [E.631. 74 (6N
Lax ot lncéia's skuntory inenme tax sate - Maximum Macgienl Rate

Y 2445 " THHA 95 -
(437447
Tpact of cxeeptinn ws 10{Z3FC) af the Indian Incorme Tex A, {4
1961 aszilazle to the Trust -
Topact of deferred tax on reversable allowanee! disallowange of LIk
business cxpense aed s as e Indiae Tecome Tax e, 19461 =
Proviso for interest on delaved deposit ol income tax - 14.75 ) -
Income tax expense reporfed in the statement of profit aod
loss 439,52 -
25, Earnings per unit
PARTICULARS E Year Eided  Year Unded

- 31032022 A-N3-2021

Basic and diluleyl LPU

Met Frofiz! loss wvailakle Tor uritholders (in 2 lako ) 1%, 15224 [EERt)

weetghied verage anmber of wnis thr BPU computition 20,52,00,0040 -
LU= Basic and diluted 240 -8

26 Commitments

(1o e exiens nas previded for & cerlilied by the manzgentent)
VAL cion s 0 3 Insh rtess otherstse staedy

PARTICULARS Yeur Eoded Year Fded
31-03-2022 31032021

-(‘_"mnmimmms: '

Commilment Tor an o Sebsidinn Company (Mrojeot SPV- 5200000 -

KTIPPL)

52 (00 N K




NATIONAL HHIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Stambalong summary of signilicant neewnnting policies wnd other ecxplanatory infoentinn

27 Rwevenue Fromt condraety with custaniers

A Disaggregation of revenue

Itevenue reconissd renly comprises of ntevest e an hown ao rebied pactios ol diside) Feame oo redites pais. Secoa

aekony w2 the digagrereratton of e Teust s tevenue from conlres with cismmers,

Deseription

Operating reveny
Enterest income on lonn b related paries

Fow el year enided

31 Murch, M2l

For e perisl cuded
21 Mureh, 2021

B B W

[#
| Tulal revenue

e —

e wable belaw presents disapprepaiod tevenws (Tom conwecls with custonters boaed on pature, wesoint mul Vising o the veur enced

3L Nlarch, 2022 anel period ended 31 Muceh, 2021:

SNa. |Types of Products by Nature Types ol Servives b tming

Fioitthe }'tl‘-ﬂ_]" ended

T e period ended
2 Maech, 2021

| Tnlerest ineeme Crey the paics) ol e

A3

B Assols o labilities refated to eontracts with cissrommers
Thare ave o asset or Dabalities nelualod tocontracs with cusiomiels.




28, Related Party Diselosures

A. List of Related Partivs as per requivement of IND AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosures™

Laterprises whote Contral! signilicani Nelional Highwavs [nfea Projeets Private Limided
influcnes exists {Substdiney Company)

13, List of ndditional veliated partics ns per Regulation 200(zv) of the SEBT InvlT Regulations
Parties to the Tros)

s Nutional Flighways Infva Tevestment Manngers Private Limiled (NHIIMPLY - ivostimont Manager (IND ol the
| rusr

o DB Trosteeshp Seevives Linvited (FTS1 < Trostee of the Trust

e Nutianal [ighways Autharvizy of Indin (NHAD- Sponsor

o Nutional Highways InvlT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL)- Project Mg

Pramaeters of the Parties fo the Trust speciliced abuove

e President of India - Promoter of NHITIMI'L

e [DBI Bunk Lintited (1D Baak) - Promoter of 1S

e Presicent ef India - Promoter of NHAL

e National Higlways Awthority ol India (NHAL- Promoter o/ NTHPMPL

Dircctors ul the pantizs to the Trust speciticd above

e  Directors of NHIINIPL

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal

Mr. Vivelk Roe

Mr. Shailendra Narain Ruoy

Mr. Bulasubrmuanyam Sriram

Mo Mabavir Parsasd Sharmn

Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharola

B Aamst Kumar Ghiosh

Mrs. Kavita Saka

M. Bruce Boss Crape

Mr NV MK, Rajendrn Kumar

e  Directors of I'TSL.

i Padma Yinod Beta:

Mr. Samiuel Juseph Jebaruag
ps Madhon Jayant Kulkarni
i Pragdeep Kumar Jain

M=, Fayashree Runade

= Directors of NHIPRPL

Mi. Ashish Asati
e Muralidhara Rao Bugaths




C. Transactions with Related Parties during the period

Name of Entity

Particulars

Transactions with enterpreses controlled By e Trust' onowhom sipeificant influence is exerzised by e 1rust

Natiomal i ,!_'.II‘;m: aye Infra

Projecss Trivate Limited
(NPT )

For the period
cided

| Mareh 31, 2022

tAmounts in 2 lakin

For the period
ended

March 31, 2021

Puarchase  of  aquity  shares ol
NP

Advancemeant of Long Tetn Loan
to NI

Reegipt ol interest oo Logyg Teon
Lo piven o NHIPPL

Reimbuorsement of ROC Fee paid
by NUIT on bl ol NHITPL

[ 204 10,00

0.005,640.00

[2.192.6m

274,95

Parties (o the Trust as per Reoulation 20 10z0) of the SEBL DT Besulalions

National Highways Infa  Pavment of lvestment Mannger e R B | E
Tnvestumenl blsnapers  Fee
Private Limited
(NHITVPL) Renmburserment of  Pre-lssue
| expenses of NTIIT by NHIEMPL 214,80 -
National Highwavs | Reimbursement  of  Pre-lssue STRAO2 G0
Authorivy ef India (INHALL | espenses of NHIT by MHAT
Purehase of gynity shuves o Project 1088382 -
SPV (NHIPPLY by the Trust fram
| NHAI
Tssue of units of Trost o NLAL S6.550.00 - -
[ Trustesship Services Posment of Thistep e 1215
Limited {1TSL)
| Inttizl Setlenent Amomat - 1o

B Clasing Balance widl Relaliéd Parties

MName of Entily

Engerprises contralled by the Trusts om whom sigeificant fnflueice is eovicised by e Tros

Particukars

As on
Mareh 31, 2022

fAmouns o T ukh)
As on |
Maveh 31, 30021

National MTighwavs Tnlig
Projecis Private Limised

{NHIPP'L)

Investment in couity  shares of
NEIPPL

Long Temm Lo te NHIPEL

Interesl receivable on Long Term
lLoan given lo MILIPPL

1,294 10400

GCHRRAE LT EHE

ST B

Parizes W the Trust ag per Regulation 201 1izv) of the SEBI el T Repulalions

National Highways
Awthornty of India
(NHAIL}

' lssue of units ol 'ﬁ'ust i NILAL
{45000 000 gils

A, 33600




8.

Initial Settlemen: Amount (LR 01

L _ 2 u

[DBI Trusteeship
Services Limited

Trustee Fee Puyable

Capital Management

For the purpase of the Trust's capital management, eapiral iveludes issued unir eapital arel all ether reserves
airtbuzable 1o the unit holders of the Trus,

The prooary vbjective ol the Trost s capital naugement is 10 engure Ut i maintuing o Sleong ereedit tating and healthy
capital ratiog in order 1o suppars its business and maximise uni holder value,

The Toust minages s copitul structore and mokes adjustiments to it in lght of changes in ccenomic conditions and
the requirervens of the financial covenams, To momtoin or adjust the capital stroetuee, the Trost may adjust the
dividend aayment {incarne disietbution toounil odders (subjeet 1o the provigions of SEBL IovT Regulations which
requice distribution of at Tenst 90%%0f the net distribulable cash Mowes of the Toast inomit helders), retern capital 1o
vond bolders o issue vew vals, The Trast montors cupiiud wsing o genciog mativ, shich s net debt divided by ol
capital plug net debl While calealating Met debt, we did noreonsider trade and ocher payable meluching ofher fnaneal

liabilities, The Trost's poliey is to lkeep the pearing ratio apliman,

Particulars

As gl
Mareh 31, 2022

(MAmounts in 4 lakh)
As al
Mureh 31, 2021

Net Debt Components:

Loz Term Borrowings (Noeo-Current portion )

|45,556.594

Capital Components:

Current Matarities of Long-Term Bermowings DELEG

Less: Cush and Cash Equivalents - CEEOLT)

Less: Bank Bulonces other than cash and cash equivalents (317081 .
Less: Cwrrent Investments (G210

Net Debt(hy 13757367 .

Ll Capital

b0l 15200

Lttinl Settlement Amount 010
Clher Louity | é 15,14 -
Total Capital (ii) 0.17.507.24 -

| Capital and Net Debt |(iii) = (i} + (i1)]

| Gearing Ratin (i)diii)

1,55, 140.91

18.22%

L exder to aghizve this overall elyective, e Board of Divectors ol Tovestment Manuger, ainongst other tungs, aims
te cnsure thad b meets (nancial coverants atachzd o the intersst-Rearing loans and horrowings thal deline capical
stucture requirements. Breaches in meeting the feancial covenants woald permit the lenders o call loand and
borrowongs, There Lave beea no breaches in e fnaocial covenants ol any interest-bearing loans and berrowing in
the coreent periad.

Mo changes woere e in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital doring the years coded Muarch 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021,

Financial Risk Management Ohjectives and Policics

The Trust s in Uwe process of oomulation of ity risk management policics with an ehjcotve of identification and
anslysis of risks faced by the Trus 1o ser appeopriante nsk hnets and conteels, apd 1o monitor tisks and adherence o
Lonts. Bisk management poelicies shall be revivwed regularly woreleel chunges i macket conduions aod the Trusts
actvines.

The Beasd of Rivectors of lnvestoenl Muasager bas overal] responsibilivy for the extablislonent and sversight of the
Trust's risic management framaework,

In porlorming i1s operating, sovesting and lozneieg activizies, the Trust is cxposcd o the Credic osk, Liguidity risk
and WMarcket risk.




Market sk

Murket risk is the risk that the faie value of fulure cash Nows of a financial instroment will Dueluale because of changes
iz market prices. Market risk comprises Uhree types of tsle interest cale risk, curreney risk and other price risk,
Finaveial instrmvents allected by marker risk mehide loans wad boreawings, Reecivablo ond Payables and livestments
meusured at FYTPL.

I'he sensiniviry analyses in the [ollowing sections relare w Uie position us at Muorch 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
The seositivity unalyses kave been prepared eu the Basis that the amaount of et debt, the ratio ol fixed to foating
interest rates of the et are all constant,

The following assimptions have been made in caleulating the sensitivity anulyses:
he seasalivity ol the relevant profit or loss iwenn iy the elfeet of the assumad changes b espective mwarket risks, This
1 hased on the financial assets und Bnuneinl Habilities hald ar Mareh 21, 2022 & Murel 21, 2001,

Foreign Curreney Risk

Fareign currency risk 1s the risk thar the fair value or (uture cush Dows of an expasure will Quetiate becouse of
changes o Jorcign exchange mtes, The Trost rinsscts business primanily i bidion Rugees eaby, and Lenee, the
sensitivity o profit and Joss ¢f the Trouss oo possible ohange o loreign exchange rates is rop-existent as co 31"
March, 2022.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the visk that the Tair value or Riere eash fTows ol a linaneial ingtrament will Nustuate Yazanse of
clianges in markel interest rates. Fxposure o risk of changes in market inzarest rates generally relates primarily to

longzaterm deb eblizations with floatig interest mles.

Pae Jollowang table provides a hreak-up ol the Cempany’s fixed and Hoating rate horrowans,
Chmounts in L lald)

Particulars '  Asat Macch 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 r
Floating Rate Borrowings A6s3I80 » 1

The Prust's exposure (o mterest rate visk due i varable interest rale borrowings i= as follows;
- ) B LAmounte in ¥ lakhy
Particulars Ay at March 31, 2022 Ag at Mareh 31, 2021

Terin l_(}ﬂj'l. n'l:ll'l.i.i‘l.'-;l_j.l‘{_ ) | ]._T'-&._U .41 - - 1

Sensilivity aralysis hased an average oulslanding Dobi

tAmounts in ¥ akly

Particulars - [mapact on profit/ L]casﬁj; hefore 1ax
As ar March 31,2022 ‘ As at March 31, 2021
Increase or decrease () ILetes] rawe by 19894 5 i
23 basis poinly

i'rice Hisk

Price risk 2 the risk thm the (e value or [ature eash Jows of o Goaccial msleeiment sl Dosluste because of changes
in oracket prices (other tan these arising from imerest mle risk or curreney risk).

The Trust is exposed to price risk due o investments o mutoal funds and elassilied as far value trrough prafit and
loss. The Trust measures risk hreugh sengitvity aralysis, The Trust's sk nanngement pediey is to mitipate the risk
by investments in mutual funds, The Trest have ivestment in muceal fimds amenntlog R 992,16 Lokl 25wl Mazch
31,2022 (March 21, 20215 Rs, Nil) and accordingly 15 exposed Lo price risk




Sensitivity analysis:
TR TR fAmounts in 2 lakhy
Particulars Topact an prafit ! (Iossy hefore tax

Al Mareh 31, 2022 : As al March 3, 2021

19,84 .

Inerease or decrease in NAV by 2%

Credit risk

Crodil misk 3s the psk that conoterparty will nor meet its obligations wisder a Gannein? instrument or custoner conicael,
feading toa financiul Toss. To manuge (his, the Trust periodically nssess the cebability of the receivables, mking inte
aeconnt the finareials conditions, crmrent ceomomic trends, analysiy ol hisioreal bad debts and acing of receiv ables,
With mespect te eredit risk arssieg fromathes Canetal assets o the Trost, wlich comprise Ba Janees with bunks. Trade
Receivanles, Loans and Advances and Investments, the Trust's expusure o eredit sl arses o defasle ot the
cmm.-;rmul_\. wlth maximn exposuce equal 1o the carcying amount af these instiuments.

The cartying value of linancial asseis represenls (e smacnmun eeedit viske The maximuant expesure to credit risk was
Rs, 764814, 017 Lakh and Rs. (00 Lakh as av Mareh 31, 2022 und March 21, 2021 respectively, being 1he toal
currying vidue ol Loaos 10 Subsidiacy, Tinde teceivables, lnvesuments, Balances with bank, bank deposits aod olher
fumancial nsscts.

Liguidity Risk

Laguidity risk is the risk that an encty will encountgr diffienlty in meetdng oblipgationg associted with lnancial
lianilities that are settled by delivering cash or another linaneial assels,

The Trost is exposed o hquidity nsk éue o bank borrawings and trade and ather payables.

I'he Trost mensures 1isx by Torccasting cash [Tows,

The Trost's ppproach o manzging hquidity is to ensure, as far as possihle, that iwill always hove sulfiowent bguidity
to meal its Liabitities when due without jncurring unawceptable losses oo eisking damege 1o the Trost's reputation. The
Urust ensures that 1t has sufficieal funds e meet expected operationa] expenses, serviving ol (nancial obligations.

I sddition, processes ang policies reloted te suel tisk ace avarseen by senior management. Management moenitors Lhe
Trust's vet liquidity position through rolling lorecast on the basis ol cxpeeted eash Nuws

e tahle helow stmmarises the materity profile of the tusts tnaecial habilites based on sontrnetual undiseounted
|'k.",'l]!_':||'_-:
{Amounis in Z lzkhy
As af Carrving Amount <l Yr. -3 Yrs. =3 Yrs.
3i-03-2022

Borrowings ' | A6,537.80 oo 8.000.00 1,37,537.80
Frade Payahilos | 31329 31329 - =

| Oiher Financial | 14356 1£3 56 ] S
Lisbitiges [ B o )
Total 1.46,994.65 ‘ 1,456.71 5,000.00 1L,37.537.80
As ai Carrying Amounl =1Yr. 1-3 ¥rs, =3 ¥rs.
31-03-2021

e———— — ' —
Dorronw ez - - - =
‘Irade Payables | . 2 - :
(¥her Financial 67,84 67 54 -
Liahiluies
Total 67.84 : 6784 | - ' -
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Disclosure pursuant to INDAS 36 "Impaivimcot of Assels"”

Based on management review on expected uure cash Mows and econvmie vonditiens of the asseis of the Trust, no
incicators of impairment of asset ol the Trust exist as on the reportiog date, Henee unpaiment lesting las been done
and accardingly ne provision for impatoent las been recogiised in the hooks 2z on e reparting date.

Disclosure of Financiol instruments by Category
fAmounts in 2 lukh)

Particolars Asal Al
I March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amaortized Cos FTVPIL Amortized RN
AT Cost | At Fair Cost Al At Fair
B T A Virlug Clost Value
Asnets: S =y
Cash  amd  Casly AR01.17 = 5
Eguivalenls
Iavestiment i |39 553592 ) ) |
Prajeet 517V
Other  Finanzial 13,827.3] . < & . p h
Assgis
Loas Advanced 6,05 G000 - = - : .
[ Dwwestmnents in . - 992.16 - . .
 Mutual Fands B
Total 7.63.822.00 - 99216 - - -
Liabilitics: o
Barrowings ' 146,537 80 - - X E E
I'rade Payables 313.29 ) . P 2 5 :
Orthee Fiaacial i43.50 . B 6T - -
Liabilities . ) | _ |
“Total 146,994,685 e | 2 67,54 - :

Defaults and Bireaches

Phere sre no defaalts during the year wali respect 1oorepayrment of principal and paynient of interest and na breaches
nf the rerms and condizons o the borrowings,

Taere are aw breaches during the year which permitled lender to demand aceelerated payment.

Fair Yalues of Assets and Liabilities

The earsying amoue? ol all fnaocial assels and labilities appeating o the nmanzial stataments 18 reasenable
apprasimalion of fair values, Fair valve al the fuaneial ussely and liahilities is the amount ot which the instrumeais
cauld be exchanged o correnl iransuction between willing pardes, ather than i a forced or licoidation salz,

Fair Value Hicearchy

The Trust uses the following kicrarehy for fair value measuranent of e Trasts fnancial assets and labilities
Pevel 1 -Quoted prives (umadjusted) in aciive markets for identieal assets o1 labililies,

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices incloded within Level 1 that gre observable or the asset on liability, either
directly fi.e. as prices) or indirectly (L, derived feom prices).

Level 3 - Inpets [or the assels or Habilities that are nol based oo observable mackel data funobserveble inpas).

Class wise campostion and compurison of carrying anwoantds and fair values ol foancial assets and Tabilites thal are
recopnised in the financial statements along witl Fait Walue Hicrrchy detnils are given below.




(Amounts in 3 ko

| Particulars [ Fair Value Carrying Valne Fair Value
Wicrarchy As al As at As al As at
Level Nareh 30, 2022 | Maech 31, 2020 | Mach 31, 2022 | Maoreh 31, 2021
 Financial -
Assets at
Amortized
Cast:
Cash wnd Cosbi | Level 3 'EUINE] . 1,800, 17 -
Equivitlents
Investment | Level 3 |,39,553.52 . 13985352 | -
Project 5PV
“Other Financial | Tevel 3 |3,827.31 I E T ‘
Assels
Loans | Level3 6,085,601 00 - 6.05,6M000 =
| Advanced
Financial | =
Assels at
FVTPL:
Invesanents level | TR o - EEENE ' -

Mutuad Funds

| Total 70481417 | - 7,64,814.17 -

| Financial

Liahilitivs  at

Amortized

Cosl:

Borrowings Level 3 14653780 | - [,46,537,80

| “Irade Pavahles Level 3 320 + 31320

{hber L inancial Level 3 L4350 G754 143.36 67,84 B
fiabilitics

Total 14690465 | 6784 1.A46.904.65 67.84

I'here are no transter berween level 1 and level 2 during the year,
The policy of the Trust 15 1o recogmise translers inlo skl transler oul of Gir values leevarchy levels as at the end of
the reporling period.

Yaluation technique and inputs used to determine fair value

Financial assets and liahilities Viloation method Inpuls -
Financiul assets: )
Investmend in Mulual Funds KMarket Approsch MAY

Tnvestmends in cquity shares af frcems Cush Flowe

sunsidiaries _

Loans Inceme Lsflective Bate of Tnierest
Financial liahilities: |
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Term loans from Bank Tncone Effective Raze of Borrowings
| Noe-Convertible Debenlures | Inzinne | Fffective Bate of Botrowings

Disclosure of segment information pursuant to IND AS 108 "Operiting Segments"

Phe activativs ol the Trast mainly inelude investing muinfrasiructure nssets primaily in te § sriling o the read
secton o generute cush Sows for distribution 1o unit holders. Based on the paing principles given in Ind AS - 108
“Operating Segments”, tis activity falls within g \1'I'J the opurating segment. Purther, tho ontine aperations oF the Trust
are anly in Incha and hence, disclosure of secondury S geographical segment imformation docs nol arise. Aceardinaly,
reguirement of pravidmg disclosures under Tnd AS 108 dows nol e,

Detaits of dues To Micro and Simall Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

Phere e o Mivro and Small Faterprisas as delined m the Micre and Small Enterseises Developuent Act, 2006 to
whom the Trust owes dies on aceount ol prineipal amoun mg' 'I'| Aol mterest wod aecordingly ne acdditosl
cliselosures hove beer made, The bbave infarmation regar and Smull Enterprises s been determed e
e extent such purtics has been idertificd on the busis of information asailable wail e Trus).

Bisclosure pursuant to IND 23 “Hovvowing Costs™

Borcowing cast caprialised durm the yesr Bs. Nl [Marceh 31, 20212 Rs. Nil)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The prepuration ol the Trust's financial slemants regquires management oomake judpements, esboates and

assumpéions that affect the reporled amounts of revemues, expenses, assels and lubilitics, and the acepmpanying
disclosures, and 1he diselosure of contingent Labilities, Uneertainty aboat these essmmptions sl estimales coulkd result

HL outeomies Pt require & mmaterial adjustment to the carmying amaount ol assels o lubiliies affected in future perieds,

Judgements
Inthe process of applyving (e Trusts aveounting policies, management ls e bwing fudgments, apar Naim
those anvelving estimations, which have the most signiticant etfeet on he amoums recopnised i the lnancial

smtemenltsa:
Classification of unit holders Funds

Lorler the provisions of the SERI [nvl T Regulatioes, the Trust s requived to distrilate 1o s Uit holders oot less tan
ninzty percent of the net distribueble cosh Hows of the Trost for eacl tancial year. Accordingly, a portion of the
wrnl halders” Tunds conlum a contractual ohlisanan of the Trust W pay do ils Unit heldors eash distribulions,

The Uit halder™s funds conld thesfore ave been H:maiﬂrrl as comypowd Tianesal fnstrument whick contain bath
equily and debt components in accordance with Ind AS 22 'Fonneial Tnstruments: Presertation’, However, in
accordancy wilh SEBI Cirealars {Crreular oo, CHUIMIVDE! | 1420 1 dated Qetaber 20, 2006 aud Ko, CIRAMDY
DFA2720106 dated November 29 2006) jeeued under the SERT Lowl'l' Resulaione, the ugit halders” funds have been
< e as equity o order o comply with the mandatory requirements of Section 1 oof Annexire A 16 he SEBI
Crrealar dated Oetober 20, 2006 dealing with the minimum diseloswres For key Gmincin! stulemente. In ling with the
above, the income thstrbution payable o unit holders is recugnized as tability when the same is approved by Board
ol Dircetors of the Investment Manager,

Fuir valnation and disclosures

SERI Clrealars issued under the SEBI Il T Regulations requizes disclosures relating to net assets al fa value and
tolal reurns al farr value. In estimating e e value of vestiments in subsidiaries (which corstilute sehatantial
porcion of the net assets), the Trust engages iﬂ-depundcrll l..|LIir1|iﬁL‘d cxelernal valuers to perform the valuation The
lvesimenl Manuger works elosely with the valuers 1o e iate valuation teelmgues uod inputs to the
madel. The valuation report and (indings are discussed ar l‘l mcclm ol the Board ol T.hru:l:mc an yearly basis w
understand e changes in the fair value of the subsidiarics. The inpurs o the valuaton models are taken from
abservahile markers, where possible, bul where this is nac feasible, o depree of 7 d’J ment s rcc]mlcd i estabilishing
farr values. Judgements include considerations ol inpuls such as weighted average cost ol capital, lax rales, inlation
rares. ele. Changes o assumplinns about these Frotors could affect Use Jdr value,
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4.

The report of independent valuer for estimating toir value o mvestment ol suhsidiares 15 under progress os on date,
hienee managenien. estimates have heen considered for estimating the Tai value of tivastmeants in subsidiaries in the
(uancial statements

Taxes

[ aecordanee with section 10 (2310 of e Income Tox Acl 1961, the ineeme ol business wusts in the oo of
interest received orreceivable from subsidiaries is exempr From g, Accordingly, the Trustis nat required to provide
an current Ly habscliny. Deferred tax Tabelity hos been recounised on fuir valie gain on investmenls.

Expected Credit Toss on financial nsscty

Ag per Dnd AS 109, Finoncial Assets that are measared at amontised oost ara reguired 10 eomgate the Expected Cradi
Loss (ECLY Asatthe reporting peciod, lovestmeat manager o e Trust assessed Ure erediv visk wl'the lnancial assets
apd concluded that no provision lor ECL is regquiredd,

Subsequent Events

Cin May 28, 202200 he Boacd of Divectars of the [nvestiment Manager approvad disteibation of e 0,749 per unit { Return
oncapilal ol Rs 0071 per unl, return ol copitl of Bs. Nil per unit, Dividend of Ra, Nil per unit and other income on
sutplis Finds o Trust of Rs, .08 per vait) forthe period Ootober 01, 2021 1o Marel 31, 2022 10 be paid on o belone

13 dhavs [romn the dote ol declaration,

Contingen! Liahilities

There are no contingent linhilities as at March 3, 2022 (Masch 31, 2021 Rs, Nil)

Pistribution Made
{Amounts in % lakh)

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Interest (Return on capital) 410827 %

Retarn o capitul - -

Dividend — T ~

Cither income of the Trust B Cabklr o - - L
Total o 470208 -

Recowcilintion of Finnnciog Activities in Cash Flow Starement

et Debt Recognition
CAmonnts in 2 lalh)y
|

Paticulans 31 Mareh, 2022 3P Diarel, 2021
(Long Term Borrowing) {Long Term Borrowing)
Carrying amount of debt at the - -

beginning of e searpaod

Additiona] Burrowings durtng 1he L A8 00000 -
yearperiod -
Repayments during the year/period 104 -

Other adjustments/settiomeants - - -

during the vearperiod -
= [mpact L couity R -

- Transaction Cosls 147200 -

- Unwinding of interest 11,39

Carrving amounl of debt at the end l,s.lﬁ.,gj_?.ﬂﬂ - _

ol e yeariperied )
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Additional Regulatory Information

Finuncial Ratios

5. No, Particnlars As o As on
B March 31,2022 Marceh 31, 2021
I Clurrent Assel ratio 2504 -
[Current Assets (Current Liability) o i
2 Drebt- Equity ratio (0,24 -
(Dbt Louiry) T —
] Deht service coverage talio 2.58 -
(Nl Operaung Cash Mows Dokt Serviee
Cibligation) S ST S S
4 ROE ratin 2.95%
i(Net Prafild Lguity ) f
3 Liventony trpover i - INA [ NA ‘
6 Trade receivable trnover rat NA NA
7 Trade payable turnaver ratin MNA NA
¥ Met Capital lrnover matio (57 - N
Tl Ineome £ et Warking Capital)
9 MNet profitratio B 76.22%, -
(Net profit/ Total lucome) i =
10 Rt o capital ermploved ralio 2 RS -
| {{Net Prolit plus Finznee Cost) (Fauity
| t Dabth
| 11 Retur: e investmeani | | 5.09%, -

(Treame on [nvestment £ Average Coscal
Investment)

Disclosure pursnant to IND AN 33 "Earnings per Unil"

Busic and Diluted Earmungs per Unit (EPL campated in accordance with Ind A 35 “Earmngs per Unit™

Particulars

LBasic upd Diluied

Protit atttibutatzle tovmit holders of U Trust (A)
Weighred averngs nunber of wts (B)

Earnings Per Unit (In Re) {ASB)

_FY 2021-22

18,192.23

5,052.00

| Lage valuge per Unit (fo Bs,)

Investmenl Management Fees

R}
1ol

CAumounls in¥ Izllch__j
I'Y 2020-21

i} The mveshmenl muosger’s (ee wall initially be Rs, LIGO Tekh (Rupees Eleven s Lakh) per annune,
exclusive of applicable taxes as per agreement dated 215 Gotober, 2020,

113 The investment manager's foe sct aut in above shall be subjeet o esealanon on an anmuad bases at the rale o 10%,
ol the maggeient [ee lor the previous year,

ur) Acy applicable taxes, cess or charges shall be n addition Lo the irvestment manager's fee and shall be pavable
by Nationul Highways Inlra Trust {XNHIT ) to the Ivestment BManager (NHIMPL).

il The payment of investment manager’s fee shall be made by National Higloways Inlza Trase (NHIT) @ de
mvestinent angzer (SHIMPLY i advanee on o quarter]y hasis,




Previous Year Figures

Frevious year's sumbers have been regrouped / reclnssified, wherover necessory o conform to current Veip's

classification,

ey sources of estimation

Thw preparation of financial statements in canformity with Ind AS teguices the Trust makes estimates and assumptions
that arfect the reported amounts of ineonie und expenses of the perind, the reported bulances of assets and Labilitics
aml the disclosures relating to cantingene liahilites as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and
underlying sssumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rovisions o seeounting eslinates include allownnce for
doubtful Toans /other receivables. fair value nieasurement e, Dilference, (I iy, between the acteal results gl

estinmies 1 recapnised i the period i wineh the resulls are i,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra 1'rust
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
OPINION

We have audiled the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National
Highways Infra Trust (“the InvIT" or “the Trust”) and its ene subsidiary
(hereinafter referred to as "National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited” or
"NHIPPL") (the Trust and its subsidiary together referred to as "the Group”),
which comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
lncome), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity and Lhe
cansolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the consolidated
Statement of Net Assets al fair value as at 31 March 2022, the consolidated
Statement of Tolal Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net Distribulable Cash
Flows ol the Trust and its subsidiary for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanalory information (hereinafier roforred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the consideration ol report of other auditor
on scparate financial statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidaled financial statements pive the information
required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time Lo lime including any
guidelines and circulars jssued thereunder ([together referred to as the "SEBI
[nvlT Regulations”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extenl not
inconsistent with SEBI InvI'T Regulations, of the consolidaled state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2022, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive
income, ils consolidated cash [lows, its consolidated statement of changes in
Unitholders’ equily for the vear ended 31 March 2022, its consolidated net assots




at fair value as at 31 March 2022, its consolidated talal returns at fair value of the
Group and the net distributable cash flaws of the Trust and its subsidiary for the
yvear ended 31 March 2022,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) lssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under these Standards are further
deseribed in the auditor's responsibilities for the andit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordanee with the Code of Kihics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the conselidated financial statements under the provisions ol the SEBI
InvlT Repulations, and we hawve Tullilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We helieve that the
audil evidence we have oblalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinioen on the conselidated linancial statements,

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audil mallers are Lhose matlers thal, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
financial vear ended 31 March 2022, These matters were addressed in the context
of our audil of the consolidated lnancial stalements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report,

i‘;} Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1. | Assessment of lmpan_m-un_t of I_ntangiblu
Assels
The Group operates toll assets which is | Qur Auncit Procedures

constructed on Toll, Operate and Transfer | included the following :-
(TOT) basis.

In accordance with its accounting policy and | = Verilving the

| requirements under [nd AS 36 "Lmpairment appropriatencss of  the
of Assets”, the Management is reguired Lo Group's accounting policy
perlorm an  impairment  assessment by on impairment of
comparing the carrving value of the Lol Intangible Assets,

collection riphts 1o their recoverable amount.
« Study of latest DCI

For impatrment testing, value in use has to Valualion

be determined hy forecasting and

discounting future cash flows, Further, the | «  Assessing Lhe
valuie in use is highly sensitive to changes in assumplions around the
critical wvariable used [or [orecasting the key drivers of the revenue

future cash  flows  inclu projections, Tuture cash




projections and discounting rates,

The  determination of  the recowverable
amount of the 1ol collection right involves
significant  estimates and  judgments  and
accordingly, the evaluation aof impaiciment of
toll collection rights has been determined as
a key audit matter.

Computation and disclosures as
prescribed in the SEBI InviT regulations
relating to Consolidated Statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value and Consolidated
Total Returns al Tair Value

|
As per SEBI InvIT regulations, the Trust is | Our
included the following -

required to disclose statement of net assets
at faic value and statement of total relurns at
fair value. The fair value is determined hy
forecasting  and  discounting  ulure  cash
flows from the operations of the investee
eantities  which  involves  management
cetimates and judgements, These estimates
and judgements include discounting rates,
Tax rates and inflation rates which are
considered [or computing the fair value,

There is an inherent risk in the computation
ol fair value due Lo the use al eslimates and
judgements mentioned above.

Therelore, compulation and disclosures of |
Consolidaled statement of net assels at fair |
value and Consolidated stalement of total |
returns at fair value is considerad as a Key |
At Maller,

Refer statement of net assets at fair value
and Statement of total returns at fair value in
the Consolidated financial statements,

flow, discount rates [/
weighted averpge cost of
capital that were used by

the management

Aidit Procedures

Ohtained Lthe
understanding of  the
reguirements  of  SEBI
InvlT  regulations  for
disclaosures  relating  to
Consolidated  Statement
al Net Assets at Fair Value
and Consolidated
Statement of Total
Returns al Fair Value.

o Ohtnined Management
representation  in o this '
respect as Management
has considered air value
equal to the hool: value of
Mel Assels

Tested the arithmetical
accuracy of computation
in the stalement of net
assets and total returns at
fair walue,

Ensurcd that disclosures
s in compliance with
S5EBI  InvlT regulations
relating to the statement
ol net assets al [air value
and the statement of total
returns at fair value.



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of [nvestment Manager including
annexures Lo Investment Manager’'s Report and other information as required to
be piven by SEBI InvI'l Regulations, but does not include the conselidated financial
statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with oore aodit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsihility is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or ouwr knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appeurs to be materially misstated,

If, based on Lthe worle we have performed on the other information thal we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this repard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT
MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board ol Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statemenls that give a true and fair view ol the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, consulidaled statement of Profit
& lLoss including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash fows and
conselidated statement of changes in Unitholder’'s equity for the vear ended 31
March 2022, the consolidated net assels al lair value as at 31 March 2022, the
consolidated total returns at fair value of the Group and the net distributable cash
flows of the Trust and ity subsidiary for the yvear eoded 31 March 2022 in
accordance with the requirements of the SEBI InvlT Regulations, [ndian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2017 (2] of Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations. The
respective Board of Directors of the subsidiary company included in the Group arc
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting recards for salepuarding of
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and mainlenance of adequate internal linancial controls for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Financial slatements that give a
true and lair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraucd
and error, which have been used for the purpose ol preparation of the

consolidaled financial statements by Ioard of Directors ol Inveslment




Manager, as aloresaid.

In preparing the vonsolidated financial statements, the Board ol Direclors of
Investment Manager and respective Bomed of Directors of the company included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ahility of the Group Lo continue as a
pgoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or Lo cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and the respective Board of
Directors of the subsidiary company included in the Gronp are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are Lo obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or crror, and to issue an awditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, hut is not a guarantee that an
andil  conducted in accordance with  SAs  will always detect a material
migstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the agprepgate, they could reasonably he
cxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audil in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain prolessional skepticism thiroughoul e audit, We also:

o [dentily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statementls, whelher due o fravd or error, design and perform
aundit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
iz sufficient and appropriate (o provide o basis for our apinion. The risk of
not detecting a malerial misstatement resulting from fraud is hisher than
for one resulting from error, as ltaud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations;, or the override of internal
contral.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the ellectiveness of the Group's
internal controls,

= [Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and  the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment
Manager use of the pgoing concern basis of accounting and, hased on the
audil evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant douht an the Group’s ability
Lo continue as a going concern. 1l we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we dre roquired to dreaw attention in our audilor's report to the
related disclosures in the Nnancial statements or, iF such disclosures are




inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence ohtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
evenls or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
CONCErm,

e [valuate the overall presentation, structure and conlent of the consolidated
financial statements, including  the  disclosures, and  whether the
consolidated fnancial statements represent the underlving transactions
and events in a manner that achicves fair presentation,

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group of which
we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated
[inancial statements We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance ol the audit of financial stalements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the ndependent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other auditor
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them We remain solely responsible for our audit
apinion,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated {inancial
statements that, individually or in aggregale, makes it probable that the economic
decisions ol a reasonably knowledpeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our awdit work and in evaluating the results ol our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged wilh governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a stalement Lhat we have
complied with relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought Lo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
salesuards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance o the audit of Lhe
consolidated fnancial statements of the current period ancd are therefore the key
audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we delerming thal o malter should nol be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits ol such communication,




OTHER MATTERS

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary, whose financial
statements reflect total assetls ol Rs. 7,35,774.44 Lalhs as at 31 March 2027, tolal
revenues of Rs, 13,981.33 Lakhs, losses after taxes including other comprehensive
income (net) of Rs. 11,355.90 Lakhs and net cash oulllows amounting Lo Rs,
12,802.25 Lakhs for the period frem 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, as
consicdered in the consolidated fonancial statements. These linancial statements
and other financial inlormation have been audited by other auditor, which
linancial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have heen
farnished to us by the Managemenl of Investment Manager and our opinion on the
consolidited linancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of that subsidiary is based solely on the report of
the other auditor,

Our opinion on the consolidated lnancial stalements, amd our ceport on other
legal and regulalory requirements below, are not madified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our relitance an the wark done by and the report of the
other auditar,

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our auditand as required by SEBI [nvIT Repulations, we reporl that:

a) We have sought and ebtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit ol the aforesaid consolidated linancial statements.

b} Lthe consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
the consolidated Statement ol Cash Flows, the consolidated Stiiement of
Changes in Unitholders” Equity, the consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair
value, the consolidated Statement of Taotal Beturns at falr value and the
Statement of Nel Distributable Cash Flows of the Trast and its subsidiary dealt
with by this Reportare inagresment with the hooks ol account.

¢] In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards as defingd in Rule 2(1(a) of Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent
with SEBI Invl'T regulations.

For A. R. & Ca.
Chartered Accountanl

CA Naresh \
Pariner
Membership No: 077887

UDIN: 2Z2077887AJLTUQG382

Place: New Delhi
Date: Z3.05.2022



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHELT AS AT 3st MARCH, 2022

LA s o & Jald unless atherwise sated)

financizl sialemerns.

Thiz 15 the Corsolickted Ralance Sheet referred oo our reporl ol even date,

[PARTICULARS NOTE AS AT AS AT
N Flst Maoeh, 2022 Ase Mareh, 2021
b)) Non - Corvent Assets
fal Property. Pl ad Tguipment A T -
(1) Goodwill g (LDREER R -
| (c) Intangible assets 5 733,584 30 .
(d) Financinl Asseis
T Other Frnaneinl Assels fy R -
(e} Defened Tax Assets 1 262,51 =
21 Current Assels
G Finaneial Assets
(2) lnvestmenes i 003, 16 "
fir) Trade receivables Y G, T -
{iia) Caslond Cush Equivalents ] S35 74 "
fiv) Other linineial nesets [ KR 1 o
{0) Gllier current a5sels |2 ) 343,29 -
TOTAL ASSETS 754,897,720 ) 0,140
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
EQUITY
Ly Unit Capitnl 13 BTS2 00 =
2} Initiad settleiment smount 10 0ol
3) Othier Egquity - 14 3,050.25 (67,50
LIABILITIES
L Son-Curvent Habilities
() Finaneie! Bahilites |
(i Borrowings | |5 A8 556,94 -
thy Previsions Ifs 00,57 o
2} Current Linbilities
{a) Fineneial Lalalites
1 Borrowinas 17 GRMLRG -
() Teace Pavebles 15
td Total Ousstarding, dues of micrn and small
cnternrisss £ 4=
(00 Total entstanding, dues of creditors oller than 110123 _
micra and small enlerprises SN
i Ohler N ol Babilires 14 24141 67 81
| b3 Cther current labilitics | 240,75 1.0
(e} Pronvisions 2l 403 -
{dl Corrent Tax Lialulities (WNet) 93 (Fri Bl
TOTAL ECHITY & 114 BELITITS - 7154,3‘??_?? f1.10
Sigmificart Accaunling Policies =32
The sccompanying notes Toem an integra ! ot of these eonsalidnied i S0

Far AR, & Co.
Charlersd Accounianiy
Fiem Remsiration no. 0027440

Far aned ote behalt of the National Highways Infra
Investment Munagers Private Limited (Investment
Manager of Natienal Highw ays Infra Trust)

Sdi Bl Sili-
CA Naresh Kumar Ruarn Swresh Krishon Goval  Mahavie Parsad Sharma
Pasner Dircctoy Dhipeetor
M NaOTTERT [N 2721550 - 03158473
Ixaie : 23.05,2022
Place - New Delln
Selie Sal
Mathew George Counjan Singh
Chicf Financial Officer  Complionce Officer



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATENENT OF PROFET AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ALST MARCH, 2022

LA aeges i 2 Lakh unless olhervise _:il:_l_i-:‘d]

Thes a5 the Statement of Pralitand Loss referred to in our report o0 even disle,

For ALR. & Co.
Chartered Accountiants
Firn Registration no, 1027440

Sty

CA Naresh Kumar Kan
Pariner

M N OT7RRT

Daxc:23.05.32022
Place @ Mew Dellu

] PARTICULARS MNO YLAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
N Jist Mareh, 2022 ‘31st March, 2021
INCOME |
Hevenue [rom Operations 23 [ 3,5000.55 -
Otber Incomy 24 [0 51 -
TOTAL INCOME, ' _ lagmses| . |
EXPENSES
Investment Manger ke (b | -
Trusteeslip Fee EREK 4.21
Operating Fxpenses b LA 2| -
Tmployee Denelli Expenses a6 il -
Fironee Charges an 3, 15405 =
Preprocianion & Sonartization Expense pL , 155,05 -
Onber Mxpenses o | SR aron
TOTAL EXPENSES I X T G
Proftloss) before Exceplional Hemms and 1ax U (O7.50)
Excepiional lwms (nel) -
Profit / (Loss) lielure Tux T010.37 (67,90
Tux Expenses 0
Current Tay 436 36 -
MAT Crede Liilized J{Entitlement % =
Provision lie Tax o Corlier Years - £
Deferred Tax expenze’vredit) (202320 -
Tatal Tax 174,04 - |
Profit/ (loss) for the peviod (830,33 (6749400
Other Comprehensive Income
I1ems that wil not be reclaszidied W Prolic and Lass - -
ltoms thiat will be veclissificd to Profit and Loss - -
Potal Comprehensive Income for the period I 1 1 (G750
|
Earaiays per Unil
Bhbk 3' 115 =
Dz - il (N "
S licant Aceoniting Palicies =51
The zecompEuyiag notes oo s integra pan ol these Nrancial statements. A - 56

For amd an Dehall of the Natioonal Highways Infra Investment
Munagers Private Limited (Investment Manager of National
Tighways Infra Trust)

Sali- Sl
Suresh Krishan Goval  Mahavir Parsad Sharmg
Direuos Dhieclu
LN 0272 520 L G5SR4 L

G- Sil-
Mathew Georpe Giunjan Simgh
Chict Finaeeial ificer Compliance Cllicer



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOIU THE YEAR ENDED 3181 MARCLI, 2022

EA arnowils L 7 Jaki unless oliterwise staled)

A

YEAR ENDED
Alst Nureh, 2022

YEAR ENDED
Fhst Yharch, 2021

APERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profd ] ess) Hefure Tax
Sdjustments to reponcile profit before (g (o ner cosle Mows:
Depree stinon aedl Aavorlizstion

1 easd fomin onsale of Investments (nat)

Lasss S iCinang oot Fair Valiaoon of Inveshnens

Inerest Accroed i Bank K1)

Firerce Cusl ety

Operating Profit(Loss) helore Waorking Capital Changes

Waorking Capital Adjustuients;
Deerease S nceased in Vride & Sther Reeejvpbles
Drecrease 7 olnersise e U Ivon Curranl Frinoneiel Asses
Decrzase < ulnercasa) in Oniver Corrent Floancil Assels
Decrease < yinerease] in Chler Cuevent Assets

Sbecreese) m Other Finangial Liabilities
S tDecreesed i Provisions

f(Dzerease) m Other Currene Liakilives
SiDecreage) 1o Corrent Tax Laahilities

leeome Tax peid

Ner Cash Flows fremd(used in) Operiling Avtivities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Marebase of Propery, 2lant & Equivment, weluding OWIP, capilal
Prrerise al Non Cureenl Investmenis

P seaf Cirrent Investments

Sabe ol Corrent Invesiments

Net cash flews from (osed in} Investing activitics
FINANCING ACTIVITLIES

Proceads from Jssoe of Lntt Capital

Oz ‘Time Expeiise prid

Proceads from Doog Term Borpwings [net ol processcng leey)
4 nert of by Tt Horrosings

Firence Casts [aid

Net ensh Hows Trom (used in) Financing activities

Nt Incrense/Decmneize in Casl and Cash equovalonrs { 5—-1-+0)
Cosliad coshecuiaalents at the wesinnine of the year
Coashand cesh aquivadents at the el of the vear

Four AL & O
Chartered Aeconntants
Firm Registration no, AH27440

Sés-

CA Naresh Komur Karn
Puricer

M No{I788T

[Fire - 23052022

Thoss the Cash Flow Staremaent referved 1o0n our ceport of even Jale

LAY

115545
|26
(1)
(5.4

R R

10,524,289

LSt AR
(17081
f)aw
(347.29)
081Uy
(TR A5
405 40
23W50
{050,
(7,37,643,06)

1274001

(7,27,442.47)

s

(L&)
[T B
SRR SR |

IRLERE

a0 000 e
{13004
LAY A O
o O sy

408

EERETRE

5 3RIR

3,580 7H

Forand on bebealt of the National Highways Intra
Investment Munagers Frivate Limited (Investment
Slwnager of Mational Wigiovaes Inlra Troest)

Hale-
Suresh Rorishinng CGoyal
Lyireesal
Dy G272 1380

::\'1‘.[-'—
Mallew George
Chief Franeal Offeer

s
Malavie Parsad Sharma
Dupecta:
DI, 03138423

sl
Gunjan Singh
Complisnee Orffieer
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Disclosuves pursuant to SEBY circulars {SEBI Xasrer Civeular No, CIRSEBIHOMOHS Div3POCH02 001 673 dated 20
November 2021 issued under the Invll

Stateisent of Net Distributable Cash Flows

WNanonal

Hhgivways il Mrojects Privane Lamited (Project SV compinyy

CAI smwonnts i 3 |kl unless othersese stled)

| 8. No. PARTICULARS YEAR ENDED
31-03-2022
| Profit after tan us per Statement of profit and Joss‘mcome aml :-xpmiiimri.' (stanelalone) {A) {11.355,01h
2 A Depreciation sl amaortizatan as el stalement nl'p-rin"lr anel less neeount. newse ol lapainwnl 105565
reversul, somae needs fo be dedueted rom profic and Jogs, u oy _
3 JAddiLess: Doswlprin on sale of infrasuuciun asseis . -
| Add: Procecds o sale ol infastieeire gssets adiugied Tor the Ttk
seluted dhebls selled or due t be settled front sale proceeds;
divectly altributable Lansaction cusls;
proceeds reinvested ar plammed W by ceinested as per Reywlation 1RCT WY al the el repulations | il
oo (Al Proceeds G sale of infrastroeture assels oot disiebobed pumsint o oan ceslion pan o ces vest, -
1 sueh procecils are not intended 1o be invested subsequently, nel of any prols! ess) weognised in
arctit and loss aceaunt
G |Add Less: Aoy ather tlem of non- easl expeesed non cash incene fnel of actual cash Naws Far e Z2ARLES
el i deemed rocessory by the Tuveshiment Managet.
For example, oy decrensed meveass i carrving amwunt ol an asset om0 labity reeoanised i profs
cemel less Sneome and expenditire o measormnent of the asset or the Lol ity st laie vaioe,
Inrerest eost s per effective mterest rate mathad, delzerec lax dease rems renognised on o steaight line
hasis, ¢le,
T |Less: Boepavment of extermal deht {principaly f vedecimable preference shares ¢ debonowes, elg “
| fexchmding relinancing) / not cash set aside woconnply with TISEA requirement uncler loao agreviness
S8 |Teral Addjustmend () 2412650
9 Net Bistriburable Cash Flows () ={A-B) 12.780h61
Statement of Reconciliation of NDCI with disteibutions for FY 2021-22
- B AN o an & akh inless olhersse stared)
s No. PARTICULARS YFAR ENDED
) 31-03-2022
| et Distributable Cash Flows for the vear ended on 3510 Meaich, 2022 1273061
* Ayt dicribited ws Tyierestoon B ety i SEFTT . o 12, 19% 00
| 5 Cashiaud Cay l;quiv_qi_(,_'nl'!i_ al the end of the reporling period 5-33.6_1_‘




NATIONAL HIGITWAYS INFRA TRUST
Disclosures pursuant 1o SEBL civeutars (SEBI Master Cireulur Noo CIRSEBRHOMIPES_Div3PCHLG20L1 1673 daced 29 November

2020 issovdd woder the Inv T repulntions)

Consolidated Statement of Net Assels al Fair Value

14l

| comomydes 1y & bsly o doss olharw s st

Particulars Book value

AL Asa0s 54,808
0 Liab lities (at book value) |48 680
. Net assels (A-1) {06,211

0. No ol unts
[E. NAY {C)

S0 52,00,000

As b 381 Barah, 2022

145

Awat Ay Mareh, !tlz_'l_‘ )

labevalue

LA R
|48, 68
6,211

S0 52 w00
11,85

Ihaul value Uatdr value”

iz values of tulal weseds velusing 1o the Testas ae 31 Meacel, 2022 gs diselosed above ane basel oo the best estimates o the namagersen,

VAL s e # Gkl

e B e slaled)

Furlicukirs

T the puriand entled
Ast March, 2002

For the year
ciled
Alst Mareh 2021

Lol eomprehersive meame for he veas perned (85 per e Conseliduteal Starement
of Profit und Lassi

Al Ochier clanzes b S valug tor thie year *

Tuotal relern

R INEE

R R

(h7

CRTNI

NEiDaEen:

The accempanyiog notes Form an bilegral part of the Consalidared Finaneial Seatements,

e statement, ather chinges in fair value S the yeur ended 31 Maselt 2022 have heen conputal brssd on best estimaes of G

Fam is e Comsulidated Staternent of Net Assets al Fair Valve and Consolidote] Stement of “Tete! Return at Faie Walue relbrred tom our report

of cven dase




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON
MARCIHE 31, 2022

1L GROUP INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The consatidated Grmnvinl sterements oomprise finuneial staremens o NIAT Infra Trast (8w Trose™ e S Tne T and s sobsidiry
(eallectively, the Gronp),
The Trust is anivtevocable tmst registered under e provisions ol the Jidinn Trasts A, TREZ o Owtber 19, 20200 [0is repristered
wonder the Secorities aod Fxchange Board af Teabo (Hartastretuee Dvestiment sty Begulutions, 2004 o Ucleber 28, 2020 linving
registration aumber INAnT20-2 18000 4.
e Prast was serupe by Natienal Dlglwaes Aathoeisy of Tedia U EAT o e *Sponsee an infrasteoetare deovelopment [oust o
Indbiae The Trastee b the Trost i IR Troseeship Seovces Lirited (Owe “Teostee!) wml Tnvestioent Mimgger for e Loost 1s
Fakama] Thghways Infra Tnvestment Manapers Povate Lineed (*hevestment Mannger™)
e Trost T Been Joemed oieest inoanfasimoee sssets priomnisy being, i vl sectae in i, The Toasts raad prajecss
are implemented and hield theough specin] pamoss vehicles (P rojoct SPVEY USubsidiaeies™) The undis al the Trost were Histed
Bombay Stoek Baekonge and Matkonn! Stoaek Dselamge an Novembor 10, 2021
Lresng the year onced Mavch 31 2022, thwe Tevst aeguived 1TO0% equiry comrol in Mavogal Highway Infea Prajects Private Linied
Cthe “Project SPVY) from the Sponsar witls cliee ot November 03, 2020, Doring the wear enead 3105 2020, the project 1PV
entered ko five Concession Agreements for 34 veers with the Spongor (National [lighwsiys Authovivy of India = MHAT on ol
Operate ancd Transler CTOT') bisis
The regustered ollice of the Tnvestiment Manpgor 15 Ch8 & 6L Sator-10, Darka, Delhi - LLOTS,
The conselidated Boancal skytements were anthorsed tor issue i accocdance with vesalubion passal by the board o divectiors of
the [nvestient Manpger on May 23, 2022,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Buasis of Preparafion
The Consolidated linancial stalements ol e Croup have been prepared i necerdumice wil ndiam Accuunting Stancards as defired
m Rule 2i0a) eof the Compaoies (Indinn Acerunting Standards) Rules, 2015, as somended, preseribed under Section 123 of the
Compames Act, 2002 0"1ed A8 eead weh Seearities amd Txehangs Bomd of Tadia (e fastrueture Investment ieoup) Beeselations,
2old, as pmended end the circulars sssued Whereunder (CSERL Tendd T Boegelations™ and ather aceounting principles eenseally
socepred (o Indin

Accondingly, the Group has prepered these Conselidated Finansial Stawments compeising af e Relange Sheet as on Mareh 31
2022, the Stcement of Pralit aml Loss for the year ended oo Mareh 31, 2022, the Statement of Cash Flows i e vear ended en
Barch 21, 2022, the Stewemert ol Chenges of Equity for the vear ended e Mareh 31, 2022 undl Notes 1o Aceounts [ogethar
betemalier relerred 1o oas “Consaldated Finameial Staseniens

areid wnacerua! Basis umler the histerical post convention. execpt cortain financial asscls

ccannting pelicies e been consistencly applicd, exeopt where a newly

an o an masting Acconniing Slandend wequives o change mthe agecunmng
statemisnle have besu preparad dna coing cioneemn hasis,

These Finanzial Statements have baen pe
aml habilthes which have beet measured at Falr Valie
iodl Accmnting Staeclard s inivalle adopred oc acew
pohvy Eillezto i use, Further, these standalone finanzia

The fnuneiml slements ore presenael mondian Hopees (MR which s the Groap®s fuctional ind presentition curreney amed #]]
senonnts cre sounded e tie nearest Lol 0 00,0007 and twe decinals thereal] execpt as etherwise statod,

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

The consolideted francil statemeniz acerpaecate the Teancwl stiements af e Trost and a0 subsidizmy (Projest SPY- BHIPPL)
from dwte ¢+f peguisiion e November 3, 2421,

For the purpose ol cessalidation, o entice which i, direetly o indaectly, contiodled by e Group is treatesd as subsidiany, Cantrel
exists when the Group, directly orimdivectly, has poover aver the investee, i3 exposed o variobie ceturns leom ils invelvernent with
the tnvestze and has the ability b use s power o alfeel i retums.

Corsehdation of a subsidizry bepins whea the Group, divecily or indinect v, obtains conmrol ever the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group, dircetly or indwectly, loses contol of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of o subsidiory acquired ar disposed ol
dumzg the pertod are incloded in the consolidated statement ol praficand lass Trem the date the Groop, dirsesly or mdirectiy, azing
corral watl e date when the Group, dicecty or alivectly, censes ta conmal the subsilany,

Thie consolidkued Rpancial sttoments ol the Gioup censine Ersmeal slitements of e Trust and its subsidiaries on line-by-line
basic by adding logether the like foms of assers, doahilities, oo and expenses, Al inlrs-gronp sssels, Halalites, ticame,
senl profiisdosses an mirgearou ransactions e shmined o conselidation mnless the transaesiom provides
evidence of oo dmpairment ol immsferred assel TAc cacying amount ol the Sroup's vestmenl in cach sansidinry and the Group's
partion: ol eguily ol each suhsidinry are o ffsel with cach ather ln the conselidaed Gnencial Slotemenis.

Inch AR 12 'seome Taxes™ apphios e lemporary dilfersnees that sose roon the elmination ol profite and hsses resalting from

illlrr:;'_m_l_'l frans;

CEROTIN anil e




The zecounting pohicies of subsidiarizs hove been Tarmonised 10 ensume e consistercy with tie aeticies adoplad by the Groap,
The corsaliduled finuncal statements heve been prasented w the oxtent possibile, i the same manner as Group’s standslone
Anaucial stateients. Prolic or less s each componeut ol other comprebensive income e ababuied o the woit helders of the
CGiraup and to the nen-contralling tserests, sven iF s sesulls in e non-eonteolling weerests having o delicit balace.

Non-controlling interest (I°aiy) sepresaitta 1t prct of the tolul ol ehensive invarw arad net agsets of subsidiaries attrbuiahle
to imteresty which are not awned, diveethy o fedivectly, Ty the Geonp and ore excluded in e eensalidawd Bnaneial statemerts
fronm the tatal comprehensive fircome and el issels,

HBusiness Combination! Goodwill on Acquisition

Busaess combimtivns wee aceonmled fornsimg the acquisition methml, The cost ol s o L||||-- it s memsieal we Ve apgrepnte ol
the consilemion Dansierred, mensured al sequisition date i valoe and e wmoont of any nonecontiolling intecesis m the
acquires, Forereh business combination, t Group oleats whethies to measure i nos-contralling infernsts i the ueauivee a L
vl arat the praportionmte shice of the sequivee’s identefalshe ner sssets, Acquisition selited casis e revognised i the satenent
of profic o Toss as ineurred

The sequiree's idewdifinhle assews, Babulives ool contengent lasilivies chen nrees the candivian o recopnition are reznpnised at e
Taic values an the acyuisiten dote

Goeedwall i inially measared at cost, Fene the excess of the oggeegate of the eonsidermtion ansierrsd and the ansount réeogiised
for non-conrralling inferests, and any previous intesest held, over the netidentilioble sssen geguinal ol liabilities assumed. 19 she
fair vilue ol the ne prsets acquived s in excess ol e ageregale conviderstion tongterred, the Group re-assesses whether 15 has
vorrecthy wlentilive all ol the assets acquiced and all ol Llw Bathilities assomes] and reviews e procedures wsed o neasare the
anmuts o be recognead at the sequisivon date. Wihe ceassessiment <01 resulis inan exeess of the for valae ol et assas avyirod
gregale comsaderativg ransferred, thon the gain §s cecoprised inolher comarehensive ineome and aceamulated in eguity
#s caprizl reszrve, However, iU there is no clear evidenee of sain on Bargain purchase, the entily reeogmses the min directly in
squity as eapital reserve, withoul reating e s Gaaigh ather eomprehensive iteonie,

Cwnalwill arising on consalidation is not amertsed, Tosewer, 3 is wsed T enpatment gooually, In the evenl of cessatien of
upel atiens vl subsidinry, the mnimprired goochwdd] i weilten ofT Ty Foe the purpese of medll ne il estisg, goedwill acyuined
i a busiess combilwn is, (fom the '.I,\]lll:s“lﬂ-l'l date, alioented w ench of the Ciranp s vasi-zencrsting units thal are expected 1o
benadit from e combuation, irrespective of whather otler sssets o lisbilities 55 the avguine are assigned 1o those units, A cash
generating wnes ta which "uu-.w.M lias been allocated is tested loe wnpaivsent annudly, o more If;,\llellllu- when there s an
inddizasion that the unit may be mpaired. 00he recoverable amount of the cash generting unin s kess thee s careving anseuns,
et loss ts alloeatod flest o reduce the carevieg amonnt of any *r[.'-nd\i.l'l allacated o the unil and then by the ather asaets
anit pro=rata based on the carréing amount of each assein e enil,

Any ampamrienl loss Far seodwill s recognised we the cansolidued saement of profit or loss, Ao inpaiment loss recegnisad for

soadaidl 2ot reversed i subsequent periods, Where goodwill bas been allosated 1o 2 cash zenerating vt and pacs ol e

ancraton Wtk that wiit s cisposed ol e poadwill asseeiaed with the shepased apersion s inchidesd in the earrving anseunt ol

abien waen desermining che gainor less on dispasal,

Gaadwill dispesod in these clrcmElanees 5 neasarcd b en the relative valwes ol the dispiesed apecaion and the portion ¢ the
2ot relained.

s (.f.:-ufgum."m wid Fstiniales

FPhe presaration of foancial statements s in conformity witl the gerecully accepied accounting principles i lidia, 206 requires
the lnvesomenr Manager o esake estmtes aod assomptions Giasallest ie ceported wooants o wsses and lahilities and disclosure
at contngent linbilitizs ac the date of the Rngocial stotements snd the resulls of aperaions during the reparting perod end, Alihcush
these eamales are based npon Investment Maneger's hesl knowledge of cument events and actions, aelual resals could differ
Irom these cslimales

Current versus non-corrent classification

Azseis and Liabilivies in e Consolidued Balanes Sheet have been clossified as eitber Corrent or lon Cugcent based upon the
requirements of Scaedule [ nokled umder the Companies Act, 2011

An asset s beon elassificd as Conent i

fud s expevted Lo be realized in, or i5 intended for sale ar consnmption in, the Group's nooral spenting eycls, or

(310 is heled pricwari’y for the pumpaose ot bamg taded; or

{opitis expected o be realized withan twelve months alier the reperting dare: or

Llpzlrs cash or cush equuvalent unless i1 s resiricted Sonn being exchanged ar used w0 seitle a laailioy for @ least twelve months
after the reporting dote,

All ather ssaels have been clussifiod g5 hon=Currant.

A Lability has neen elossilied as Carrent when,

a1 il s experted o ke settled in e Group™s rormal operating ¢vele; o
thy 15 held primarely for the pumase o being traded: oo

) itis due o be settded within beelve montha afier the reparti date, o




e
n

1.4

al) the Cropr does poel have anounconditonal vight o deder settement of the Banility for ot least bacve months alles the reporting
date

Adbothes fabilitaes bave been classiBed oy Non=Clamenl,

The vpesating cyele (s the thne between the wequisition ol assels Tor processing aod G realisadwn i gvale s casl ecuavalents.
The group hos sdectified twelvs taonths as 103 opering evele,

Dretorred tax imsels amld Tisbalities ore elogsified o8 aon-current gsaels and habilicios,

Ievenue Recognition

Revenoe s recagnised o the extent it it is pralable that e eeonemie benefits will Mo wothe Cieoap end e rovenae ce be
reliably measuced, recardless of whe the payment is being mede. Bevenne s measueal ob the Gaie valoe ol the consideration
receivaed ar recarvable, taking inte aeeount eantrsctually defined terms o pogment ood exclidine s o Cuties eollectad on behall
ol the gevernnient,

I speeilie recognibon veileria deseriled below must alsa be met befors rovenue 18 resognised:

Fall Hevenue - Toll Revenne T users of oll roacs el sy sobsidiey company s reeapmised morespect o dl revenne seernad
e respective Wl toad projects,

Iterest incomwe - lntorest §5 tecogmsed on Lme proportion Bosis wking o aeeount the smeuet owlstanding and the ramws
cpphieable, Far ol Dbt instruntets messured eihier of Anettaed Cost o Fair Walae Gaeugh Other Conypehensive lueome,
rerest income iy regorded using BIR moethed that ds the rote tat exactly discovnts estimated @rore ensh regoipts chrough the
expecied e of the Goancil instrneent to the nel careying monmt e he fnancin] nsset,

Dividends - Dividend ircome is recopmisad when the Grop's vight to reesive the prament is establishaad, whoch iy genenally when
sharcholders approve the dividend,

Fair valoe gains oo currest investnents carvied an Gie vahee e mneloded oo other invame,

Claims with Macional Higlweavs Aonhorcy of Todia CNIATT andd aother govermment authonties are seeonnted as aod when the
monzy & receivad Tom the respective suthorilies, in coses of inonetary conpeasations,

Orher itens = Othe itams of incone ars recognised se aod when G gleht o recebve the teame avises,

Praperty, plant and cquipment
Preperiy, Mlant and Eeuipnzent {PPTR) i3 recopnised when il s prebabie that Tntore economie enefils assoc
Mo wo e Creoup and the cost ol he item can be messueed reliahly,

[wwith e ilean aall

o stated at acquisition cost less gecumaiated depreciation and cunsulative impacment. Such cost meludes the cost of
replacing pour of the nlaot and equipment and sorrowing coses for long-lesm coltstzuction projects i te cocopniian eriteria are

meent shall be revogmised v g asset il and only if;
assnrited witl re it e 1 Doy o the ity ol

il ol property, plant wnd ¢
fad ot poebaile thet [Llnee ecanomiv ene
th e costod the aie cait be measared reliohly.

When siznificant pares of plant and cqueprment ave required to be rephcead at intervals, Cioup denveciates tham separately basad oo
their sace fie usafinl lives

Gizins or losses arising from des - recagninion af Proocrty, plant aed eouipment ars imcasieed as the diflerence betweasn the net
disposablie sroceeds amd Fwe cwrrving aneamt ol the aesel wnd are cecognized o0 the Consalidhued Stoement of Proehe and o
when the asse s deseenazed,

Deprecialion on Froperty, plant and cquipment
DPeoeaation on Proaary, plant ael seuipment U PPE) s presided v sbaieht Jng mwtlod, up Lo e cost ol the assel oel ol
sesdual valued, in acoordance with the vsehul lives prescribed under Scheauie I 1o the Companies Act, 2012

Uzpreciation en additioms s beimg provided on g pre-vata basis trom e daie of suck addsiiens, Snolaly, depreeiation on gssots
soldfidispaied oV during the year is being providksd up to the dates an shich such assots e solddlisposed of D Madifcation or
dension o an existing assel, which is ol capital noore and which becomes an integral part theren! s l.|:3|1|'='JL'J'aLt:l prosnectively

v the remaing uselul He ol that assew

The estimatec resicual value ol die PPE has been aken as 3%in line with e provcsions of Sebedule 0w e Companies Act,

2613,

Frsed gesots mmounnng up lo IE 3000 are recopmised o Consohadaled Sturement of Poobit and Lesg inoentivery i the first vear of
puLcimae.

The res:dual values, useful lives and metheds of deprecietion ol properly, plant and eguaipment aoe reviewed at ench finencial yvea
end wid adivsted prospectively, IiF appropiaic.




g
-

Depreciation charge for impaived assets i adwsied in filure periads insueh o cenner that thee revised carrying smount of the gsset
s alloented vver s remmning usetul hie.

Intangible assets
le accomcunoe willt Ind AS 38 “Intanmble Assas”, Tnangilde assets e pecagsed when o probubile that e fature ecimume
beachis that are atwibuteble we the wsset will o 1o the Cronp and e cost o he asse gan be measires mlinbly,

Frocependive expenses including adimimstrive imd other goresal averhend expenses il are specifienlly atteibutable 1 i
development v acqusition of inteegible wssels eee allaepred mod eaplialisod s a par ol e cost of the intaingille asscers,

Itangibile tssets vob rendy Tor the intended dse an the daie ol the Corsalidated Balsee Sheet are diselosed as Sntimgible assels
wider development™ [ntngible assers are dereeoginsed whe ne lnsee cemmmue renefis ae expered hom use or disposal,

me st el it e assets acouived i amalgenation in Cre nruee of purehase s gair Faievaloe ze a0 the dase of amatgamation
Fallovazp “nitins vecognition, intangible assets are carvied ot cost loss aceomuluied ametizativn ged aceomlaned ipainent
losses 1 any,

Phe csetul Lives o imtamible tssets are aesessod aa either Gnce or inmleli e

Iights wieler Sevvice Concession Arvanpements - Toll Collection Rights

The Grap Bas acquived rights for Tolling, Opesation, Mainenance and Transter of five ol voad poogects S peiod of 30 years
bases Tall Comession agreements sith NEAL ol the sume ive heer recegnisod a8 Otlter Ttasahle Assets in the finaneinl
clatenments,

le T the Group ave copitalised as part of Toll

Il estension inche coneession period as
o ek csincessinn pevied is established ot ile

Extension of concession peciod by the Autherioy in compensation Tar clainne
Callestion Rights an aceeptance af the claim, Whiere ihe Group has @ coniraciug
por the coneession apreament, the same s copitalized when (he vight o exte
watirmbal amonnl el eligible elaims,

Amartisation of Intangible Assets

stanhle pesets wath lince Eves ore amortised over the usetil ecomnrae 1ife and gesessed Tov Dmpacaent swheseyer iere i an

andization that the stangible asset may be impeired, The amertsative perivd und the anmecisation method for an imanpible psset
with 7 froite useful e aoe seviewed ut lepstal the end of sach seprartng pecied, Chinges inhe esneeied vaelul % or the expected
patert of corsumpton of futre econamic benedits cmbodicd 1 the nsset are considered womadily e airerisation peried ey
peethesl. we appropriste, and are reated as changes i scermnbing estinmtes | he amoisaton expense on inlangible sssets with

1 ol
inn

e lives is recagnised o the Consolidared Sttement of Profil aed Loss unless sueh expendiouee formg pait of careying value of
amtlher assel

Lo acendanes with Lick A5 38 “Tetangible Asseis™, Intangible assets shonlid be woartized by o method which reflects the patlem in
erhic the asser’s faturs econooie benelits are cxpoeled fe be consuced by the entiv.

Tell Collection Rights shall be amaitzed basis o Conswmpien based model {usiag Passenger Car Ui, (PO prajecions) over
Uhe terume il the Cancession Agrcoment e 30 yeais.

] & et

prisd el heee s powson saeiehl lne bess Tane e meanh

e - " L e i ; P -
AR PIGOEses 18 dinaruiaed ave

Orllicr ntangilbs
e wehite the additien is made,

Gaoins or lesses arising from derceogniticn ol an intamgible geact s awasured as (e differemee hetween e net dispesal proceeds
angl the cerrypimg ameunt of the asset and are recopnised i the starzren: af peeficon lass when (e asset is derecopnised,
Amerlisation i impaived nasels i provided Gy wdjusling e smerisiion charse D e vetrainicig perimds sieoas b allocae the
woamannl over s remaieg useiul Liz

assels” revisad can

Emplivee benelits
Emprlovae hancfits include aravident G, pratuity, compensated absences, long serswce wwaeds and medical benefirs,

i. Short term emplovee benelils

Eroplovee benehis such as salaries, shoct tecm coonpensaled shesress, cxpected cost o
rewanls falling duoewhally within rwvelve montilis of rerdering the servies ars classi
are expensed u the periad in which the enipleyvee renders the relued servive

Dunas, ex-prkis il performance lirked
e as shon-termn esmloyee benelits and

i, Pod-Employment Benefits
Defined contribution plan: A defined contmibition plan & & podl-amplovment pan onder which an entity pass fxed
costributions and will have no Jewal or cimstructive ohligatiens we pay lecther snmunts, The Group contrilutes 1o provident
fund ad soplavess depesit Tinked fosoranee sehome, sod have no fether pblipnions bevand making ite contesbutians, The
Uiroun’s cortteibution w e abapee fands pre charged 1o the Coosolidated Stement of Profit and Less,




18

2.11

Defined benefit plan: The Group has an un-funded beoerm plai G post-eraployment erebils e e T ol Grataily, The
vine of abligation under the plan 13 determined by ehe gaoup based oa best estimale ol the present value ol The estirmaled Tature
cush Maws bwands e pratuicy obbgaton. Detined benaliv costs compuisiog cuimenl service cosl, st servive cost anmd gains
ar lesses on seltlements are pecegnised 1 the Corsalicdated Stawentent o Te(iand Liess as employves benelils expense, Gains
o Basses am She curtaitment or settlentent ol any difined bene i plon sve vegogndsed when the cotailment or setthenent veeors,

i, Termination henefits
Fermivanon benetiss such as compecsation andere eronlisees sepurnticn schonws (whaorever applivable) are recognised ns
cxpenge i the Consalidatod Statenent ol Peaolivamd Toss Liabiling o the s s cevsginised ol the earlier afwhen the grougs
< na fenger withdew the ofver af the emiation beoetil

iv. Other lnng=term employ e henefits
The present value of the oblipgaom ander long teerm employee Banelit glans cuch as compensiated abscuces 14 datermined and
15 reeogiased o sumular wogaer as in e cige ol delieed henelit plns,

Leng term employee bepefit cosls comprising cument seevive cosl sned poing ar lsses on eorlailments and seulements, re-
surements nre reeognised (e Conseliddated Srateent e Prold and Toss oy emploves Beneilespenses. Tnlerest eas)
tmpbieit i loog tevmemplogee beoe0b eost (s recegnisad i e Consolicated Staement ol Prodi usd Loss undar Gnenee cosl,

Tesses
{1y The determination of whether an arrangement 15 o contens o leise i3 bayed on the substoce of the prmogeraent al e
mneeption ar'the Jeass

1) Praperty, plant, and eoupmant acquued undee legses wiily lease lern o tan 12 months is Jong fevm lense. The lease
lability is recaenised for the ablrantion s make the lease payments and a dght ol vse ol asset T the uedelving propety,
plant amd equipment Tor the lease e, The lease lability is measored 20 the present value arthe lease paymen:s 1o be mule
over the lease term The sight of use propecy, plist and cowsprnent wre initinihe measured a3 the amount of the lesss Halbslisy,
adjusted for lease prepaymaents, lease teentives received and Che initial dirget cosis such a5 cammissians and o cslimate cost
of restombion, remeree] and dismantiing of property, plant and equipreest. Desse Tabilities see inerensod g relleel the feres
costand nre reduced with leuse pryments.

i Property, plent, and equipmen: having lease teem 12 manths or less than 12 mosths are recognised s astraighi-line

i) Prozerty, plant and equipment leased s ueder operating leases are canticued 1o be capialized by tie Grovp. Rent? incams
15 rocammized an g straizht-line basis over e term al e relevine lease,

Borrowing costs
Borrowing Cest constst of mterest and oher anculioy costs wenrrslin connecton witl the arrsngement of barrowmgs, Borrowing
vosts dire trilautabde o the acquisitios, constuebon o prsduction o wr assel hal necgssarily lies o sobstannal pened of

e 1 polopesmdy for ity intembed gseor sele e copitslized ss pest ol the cost ol e pespiective asae!

All wller busiowiig casts are charged wo the Cansolidated Statoiear of Profin and Loss i the perlocl they eoour, In case of
signaiicant Leag e loans, eller cosls incureed o conneetion with e borrowing of funds are amaortized over the periad ot
respectve Lean Barrowing cest also includes sachange Gerences o e exent regaeded as an adpsinient loothe barrwing

cosls

Financinl Instruments

mzacial pssels wmdfor Baangial Hakilives are recognised whon the Cranp bocotes parly Wea conmaet embaadying the related
nancial imstgmens 18 gy eantract that gives cse woo Enaca] asset ol oee estivy el a loancal by
i ther entity, A financie] assel and o Gnancial Babioty e o500 and presentzd oo nel basis o the
Consalidoted Balance Sheat when there o current Tepadle eoforeeghle sight W set-oflf the recogoised amounts 85c i iz intended
w other settle an nat basis o te raalise the assot and settle the Habiliby simuanzogaly,

Financial assets

Luitial recognition and measurement

Al Fnarcsal sesels are recepnized inrially actaie value plus, in the case of financiz] assais not recaidad o Bie valae Dough profi
or s rensnchon cose thar are artibotasle te the acoulsswon of e Unancial assel Pocchases ar sales ol linancial assels tha
reguire delivery ol assets within a lime frame established by cegulation ar cenvantion I the macket place (regulan way tades)
revopmised am the trade date. e the date thit the Group commits w purehase orsell the asset Voade recervalles and leede payables
that do cel cantain a sighilficant Tnancing component sre inifislly messared 20 tew vansachon price.

L

Subseguent measuremend

For puposes of subsequent messureient, Traneil assels wee elassified in following categorics:
al ammartsed east
al fair valuwe theongh prolit or loss (FVTPL)

- ol Borvalue throngh sther comprehensive eonie (1001

Financial Assets at amortised cost



A linanvial nssel is elassitied and subsequently measured ot the amorissd cost 1 both the thllowing condilions me met:

al The asset 15 held within a ousiness model whose ohjeclive 1 o hold assess for eolleting conteatual cash Tows, and

by Comtractual termes el the sssel give rise on specified dates to cush Tows thatars salely pavanents of princpal and nerest {(SPP0
o2 the proncipal wmeent eutstanding,

This cotegory o the mest relevant w the Group Al the Loans wod atlier receivalles vncler Rupnein pssets Teseept lnvesinsanis)

ele nen=lerivative nencial sasets with xed e deseensmable paymaents it are vt guotel i i sive ket

Alter ol weasurerent, such foaneial assets avs sabseguently nseasured at smertsed cost using the efeclive fnteres e (E1RY
wethecl Aptised cost s ealeulated by cahieg ok peecpunt any diseonnt or prenniam o acquistion aod ties or cosss that are
interral pint ol the IR The [osses arisiog dont iapuiiment ane reeonise| ||1.:hc{.'m1.=.uild.1|:d Statamaent ol Prelicand Liss

Irveatments inequity istouments ol Sabsidiories are ceeognsed o ozizins] cost o aecordmce with Ind A8 37 Impairment testins
of fmvastment in subsidiary that aee sccounted Toral cost as per i A% 27 e willan seope of Tnd A% 36 Impairment of Assels
Any inapairment i value of vestieent i egaity ineestients in Sobsidocen 8 recepnisad in e Consslidnesd Stemes af Pl

wd Loss

Financial Assely ot Pair Yalve throngh Other Comprehensive Inegme (FVOL)

A Lnseeial asset s classitiod and subsequently maisorae ot FVTOCT T otk ol e Fillowdng crierin are med;

Al The ssset s held witbin o business model whise objzerive is acheved botl by eallecting contractunl eosh Dows and selling the
Vimaneia. ossels, and

Wy Contractunl terms of the psyet give rise o speciiivd dales o cash Bows thist ane solaly payments ol priveipel amd e
(seen

Investment i Debt imstonments ireluded withon e FVPOCL cawpary s measuned dnitially as wall os ab snch repocting dale al
fairwilue, Fair value mevements soe recognized mihe ather eomprehensive income (0T, Hesaever, the Gronp recommizes interest
incams, 'mpﬁ'?rlm?'n? losses & reversals and loreipn exchange gain or lass e Consolidated Stbement of Prafi and Tass,

Intenest cnmwed whilst helding FVTOCT debt instrument is reporled ns rderest meame vsing te EIIL et
= I‘ =

Finaacial Assets mt Faie Valye through Profit and Loss (FVTP1)

A (nancial asset which s oot elussilied i gy al e sbove categesics ane sebsegeenly Bie vithied heogh profil or loss, Financial
asscts incladed withu the FVTPL catewnry arn mensurad al i value with o)l clanges recogrizad in Uw Consolidated statement
of profit 2o loss. The Group measwes its investments whicl are classified o curaty zdvwzents (other an insestonent in shares
sidiaries, Joint Ventures and Asseciates) an ki value theongh pref and less accouut,

'lelfl aatromest, which dues not meet the cedtersa S cawegarization a8 ol amortived eost or gs FY 1IOCT is classitied as ut
additivm. e Group muy elect to designate o debt insiument, whichatherwise mests amaoctized cost or FYTOCT arcena,
FVLIL. However, such election is allowed only tf deing so raduces or eliminites o measarenieet o eeo gnition ineonsistency
cred te as taccounting mismatch™) The Croup has net designated any deli instrwmend as ol FYTPL

Ihe Group has cavestment w debt ovented sl funds which are held) o teadiag, e the sase wre clasaalal ws w FYTPL, Lhe
Gursrup tmakes sueh slection on an instruntent by asteament basis. The clossiGeation s masls oo dmitial recognition and i revocakle,

The e [oss pisale ol mvesimenss are recognized [0 e Consalithae] Stetaneet of Profit and Loss.

Ruchssilivadion of Finaneial Assels

L e Groug deterennes clussileation ol Rnancin] assets an ini al revognition, no rezlossification i3 made
fer finanzal assets which sre eguily matrmenls and Gnancial Labilites. Fo 'm;u ial ussels which are alel instruments, &
reclossification s made only o there @ oa clange i the besiness medel Tor managae those ages b e business mndel
scpected lo beinfreoyent, The Lvvestment Munager ol the Croup determines ch1|1gc: in :hb L ssiness itiodel s aresaltolexiemal
1 e which are significant fo the Group's uperalions. Such changes are avident 1o extermal partes. A changee in the
buziness madel accars wher the Gooup either bogims o cepses 1o per oo weliviey Ihat iy siznificant o its aperations

Frthe Grovp ceclassifios financial nssets, icapplics the reclassideabon prospectively Gon the recligs Nentioe due which s the firs
day of the mmedizrely next ceparting, period felkewing the chunge in busieess pedel, The Group does nal restate any praviously
recoansed pans, lasses {including impainvent poing o losses) or inlerest.

recognitione. Aller b

The Sllowing table shows various reclazsification aml hiw they are apconnted for;

(riginal Clussification | Revised Classification Acesunting T restment o
Asmeiieed Cest ENTPL : W js messured at reclassification dote. DifTerence

between previons ammovosed postand laie valus s recopmised
i Lr.ma-u Udbiated staement of prahit cod loss.

; e ul reclostificntion dae hecomes s new e
- : .Id b0 TRLEN § S !
Armrortized ast [ Fvoct Fair value i= messured al reclassiliculion date. Dillerence
hetwsen provions amertsed cost and fair value is reconised
m ber comprehensive ineama

| M Clrangae i ELR < to ceclussification.

FTVIL _=;l|:'nriiy’mi.t4c‘|5l




FYOCT [ Amantizal Cast Fair value at reclassificotion date becomes s new pross
callying amonnat, Fowever cumulative gain o loss a ather
comprelensive inecome s mljinstad weinst Fac o value
Cropseguently, the assel is mensured ss i1 i hiod @lways been
:I'I].\'."l'.:-l.ll".‘ll 11§ I|||ll||:i'.\'L'¢| Cilst. : e

[ FTVP] FVOC] Fair walue w reclusailication date beeaines its new carrying
e, Mo acher adjustment s reguived
FVOCT Pyl Agacns canime o e mensurel e vilug,
Cromalanive e o loss proviously reeognized inoather
comprehensive ineone a8 reclisailicd 1o Consolidated
sbaternent ol pralit ad boss on (he reclassifivation date,

Derveagnition
A timencin] asser fore where applicable, & part o 1 fineneind assel or pael ol Group's somllin Bganea
dorveapmised (e, removed fram tae Cangolidaresd Balanes Shee) whess

msgals) e prinaly

s Thecohteta receive cash Toaws fom the assel bave axpared, o

o Lhe gronp log transtorred it rights 1o veegive cash faws from the sssel o las assumed an obligation 1o pay the reeaved eash
o in Aol seitbows materinl delay oo thivd party uneler o Saagsabroagh areseenent, wd aither () the graup bas transtened
suibstntiadly at] the riskesond veverrds o the assel, or Thy e gioop bas neither cansfereed aoreetuned sobstantinily il the visky
cond rewends ol e asset, T Do dansteceed contiel ol ths asset

When the Group has tonsferred its plghis ooepeive cash ows thom aa ssaet ar has entercel mte o pass-heough arrangsment, it
evaluntes £ and 1o what extent it bas retained the risks and rewards of ewoersiip Whin i1 hay nevher leansfecred nor retained
substantic !y @'l of the risks and rewards of the assen, nor fransfernsad conteul el e ussen, e group canfinees o recigmise the
transterrad asset o the axtent of the group's contirpag nveleement, n thal e, the geoup also tecognises an asseeiated labili,
The trmsferred exset und the assacinted Tabiling are meascned wnn basis iat relects e elghs and obligations thal g group bas
retained

nuig involvenment G lokes the Gonn el o pueeantee ever the rznstorred asser 18 messured an the lwwer of the origioal
sying amosel ol e geset and e ned s aneunl of consideration tat the group conlad be reguined 1o repay,

I'inancial Habilitics
Initial recopnition and measurement

Financizl linhilities ave classifed, an anitial recognilton, as \mancial ltaldlites o i valne throngh pralit e loss, loans amd
bormewings, pavalles, as approp:lale,

AT fnancial Hadhdtives ae vecagnised initally ab v value and, i the czseaf loans aned Lorrwimgs wml papables, cet of drectly
altnibutabls travseetion casts,

The Greup™s financtl labilitics melude mrade and other paynhles, lonne sod borresangs sl

Subisequent measurement

Fimanze Hahiltdes destonared apes dnilal reciilsm an e waloe hroagh neollan leseare designntes
ol recigmibionn, and only 17 1he eriteriam Tnd A5 109 aie sabished, Foo Halulites designated as FVTRL, i value
altributable o changes mopsn eredivnsk are eevanized 10 OCL These gansfosses are ot sehsagrently mnsferrad 1o Censolidated
stutenent ol profit wnd loss, Hewever, die Gronp may uanstiy the cwmulative gun or loss within eguity. AL aler changss i fas
value ol such linbility are recognised 1 the Consalidated statement of profitam) less, The Ciroup Tis nol deslgnatad any financial
Lzbiliy ag al e volug troval profzn and loss,

| pssuch at the mifal dane

e

Loans ad boreowings

[his 12 the ealepary most relevenl ta the Groupe Aller indbal veonnition, inlezest-beating leeas and borrowdngs wre subsequently
mwzsired al amortised cest using the TIR method Cains e losses ane cecopiised in Staement af Profitar Loss sehen the Lahilicies
eoe derecazaised a¢ well 2 through the EIR amartisaricn process. Amortised cost is caleulered by waking tn account any discount
i prerian an acguisitien and fes o costs ot ace an wsgral part of'the K The BIR amortisation s ineluled as Branes cosls
1 the Corenlidaed Statement ol Profir and Loss.

This czteeory generally applies w barrowings wud security deposits received,

Derceagnition

A fnsoewl lability is derecomnised when the ablizstion under the Tishilily js discharped e coeelled o expives. When an existing
Anancal Jability s repleced by anether from the same Jender on substentinlly dilTere lerms, or the weons of wn existing Gability
are sebsigaliolly madife:d, such an excliapge or modifivalion is eated as the dezecogeition of the ariginal lahility and 1the
recagnition of @ new Hebiliy, The differencs nthe reapective comrying armounis s seengnized 0 the statement aFprafil er logs,
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Offsetting financial instrument

Fimaneial agsets and Labilites are oftset and the net amont s reperted nthe Censolidated Balonce Shest where there is o Icg_ullj.rr
enforceable right to pffset the recognised anwunts wd there is at intention 1o settls financizl assel aml lability on @ rel b ..Ibl- or
reahise the wxselaml selle the labaliy simultaneoustv. Tlee legally L'II\\lli.l'llllll“ll,}_! ¥t et be contingent on lueee evenls aml
st be enlorceable i the normal course o2 business and i the event ol defiult, fnsol viltey o bankiuptey of Use Comparty v the
counterpurty,

Fair Value measurement

I be Group vneasures finoneml s toumens ot e value af ech Mnageial soemeat date,

Foirvatoe is the price that wanld be secerved wosell enomsset ar paid toeranstira Habilicy i an orderly tamsaction between market
porticipints at the meserement date, Che e value meosorerent is hased on he presumptan thae the wansactinn w sell the wsel
ar tansfor the Lahilily takes ploce either:

iy lie princepal market foe the et or Tability, o

u) In the absenzce at'a praceipal market, in the maost advingeeus macket o e wssel or Lalslily

Phe prineipal or the most advantageoss iakel nust ho seeess bl by g Gy,

e faur value of anassel ora habalivy 15 measneee vsiog the assumptions that warket partiv ipunts would uye when pricing the psgel
or Dalihity, sssuming that marker pauricipants act n their ccananmie hest ineeesd,

A fur value mepsuremees of o non-linaneial axsel ks o secount a market sarteipoe s alilite W pensute eoonsmice beoefits
e singg e asseelin s highest anel best use or by selling 100 anathe: macket pacticipant td would use the sesel i its highest aml
besl use.

The Group uses valuation techiigues Bat arg npproprint2 in the cirewmsiances and ewhicl sefieicet dutaae available o measure
fair walue, maxioising the use ol elevant shservable inpuds and minimising the vee ol ihservalie inps

Al assets and liahilites for wihich Fair value 35 mensured ar diselosed in the dnmein] steinents ire Gateporised within the fair
velue hisrarchy, deseribed as follows, based on (e Toseest lzve] input that s slgnificant o the lsic value messarement os s wh
Leved | — Qunted prices (unadiustad) o aeive markets for idenlical nsssts or zbilites

Fewvel 2 — Toputs atber than quaesed prices ineluded wiiin Level | e are observphle for the assenor Habality, eitaer divectly (e
as pregs| o widieeily e, devived fron prices)

Lewad 20 Laputs o i assets oo Babilites chat are noc basecd on observable market dab fomobseryale inpuets),

For assels and Habilinies that are secogassed in the Tranzial satements o g seounieg basis, Gie Geoop dwermines whather
wens Fers hawve vecured berween levels o the hivrarehy by re-psseseing categorisation {based an the ket level input thal i
ficamt o thee G veloz messurestent as a whaoled al G end of exch reporting period,

e Iiie vl mnessneemnent, soch asdernative nstrumsends and
grneasurairenl, such ae desety held for dasoribution in

Thwes Cienne detenries the palicies mnd procecures tor both ez
unguoled [1na suredd at feir value, snd tor nog-recurriz

discantinual aparations.

cial assetsn

Al

= the Giraup analszes e nevemenls in I|1c- walues of pasets acd liahilies whicl ae n:qmm] liy b

s por e Gooop’s acconnliig s sl M poulysis, e Crop vonles e s Rapais appbisd i
rrecing (ae infbemation 50 the valualion computation 1o conlmzls and eibel relevaot decuments,

(R 2 g S

hn Iniesl \hlu i by ag

Lenternal soucees w doterming

The Group also compares the change inohe B vatue ol each assel amd lahitity wilh reles
whiether e clange i reasomable,

O an ennval basis, the Boand of Direetors el the Tovesimen: Manager peesents e valuatizn resuls o the A |:,||I Commibes pod
iz Greup's independent audiwors, This inchules o diseussion of the majar aszamptons teed o he valsio arpose of
sl diselosores, the Groop bas determuned classes o asset and liabalides an the bass of the natwe, chuoetenstics erd
risles of e assel er labiliny and e level of the uie valug hisrerchy as cxplained abave. 1145 note suminacises accounting pelicy
for fair value, Other fir valus releted diselosures ae given w the relovant notes,

Cash and Cash Feunivalents

Cash and cash squivalents in the Consalidated Balanee Sheet comprise cash at banks aml on hard and shor-samm depasits with
an oneanal mEtirity of theee imcmtbs or less, which are sebiect toan megaemt nek ol ckumges in value,

For the purpose of the Conselidated statement ol cash Nows, cish and cash squivalents consist o cash and shorl-tenn deposits,
as defimed ebove, act of outstanding bank overdralic s they sme considerad an Integeal pant ol the Group®s cash nenagement
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bmpairment of Assels

Ipairment of Financtal Assers

Al Enancial assots except fr these designatad of FYTPL ane suljeet ke tevienw fin mwivmest o lenst cact weporling date 1o
rlectily whethier there iy any objective evidence it o fronginl nssel or group of fnancid asseus iy inprared, D aecerdanee with
Indd AS 109 the granp applies expected eredir loss (EC T model for memsurement and rec enitiar ol inpeimiet less @ linancal

srsets carried at amortissd enst,

For recommition o impairment Toss o otber Baaneial assets and risk exposure, the gronp determines that whether theve his been a
stguifivanl merense e credin sk sinee ingiel recopnation. 1 cmedit vigl hos we inereesed sipnificantly, | Z-nwmh ECL s used
toprovide Gorimpairment boss, Tlowover, 1 eedil visk has neisasod stenificanmly, Hlecime BET e nsed, 10 0 subsegient petiod,
eredit quality of the instrugent inproves such hat theee 15 na looge: . signi feant inervease in eredi nsk ginee ital recopnition,
then the entiy reverts 1o recagnising impainmens loss allowanee Based o 12-month ECL.

Fitelime BECL are the expected credit fosses wesullieg T all posaible defanlt evenls over e expezied Il af @ fnaneinl
msireenl The 12Z-menth TCL s a partos of the lifetime 10T, whieh tesults (o defaull events thal s prssinke witlin 12
o ths aflar the repuling dure,

ECL is the differenee between all eemeactusl cosh Tows tiat wre due i il gronp i acenedinee wicl the contraet and o) the cas!
Hows tal the enliny expecis W reecive 0o, all cast shor Talls), diseounted at the origial FIR When estinwting e cash Dows, an
ety s requoted i consider:

v Albcontractual wems of the fimancial instoment Qnelusdiog prepayment, oxeension, cull and simlng optians) ever the expeeted
Lte o the financind imstrurneed, However, in re cuses whea U expected [t of the Gnimein] instrunient conmat be esimated
seliably, then the enlity is seguired to use the remaining eoatzactal weam arthe Dnimele! nstument

o Cash fiows fom the sale of collaters held or etier eredil enhareements it ace mitegral o the contmactual terms

rzized during twe year is secognized as income! expense in the Consaliduied
wiestin the I del.

COL impatrmens loss allowanee (o reversal) o
Statenzent of Profi and Lass (P&LY Thes wnount is relleeted uider i bead "ollier eape

Linpaiement of Non- Financial Assets
The Group assesses, al cach ceportng date, whether there is an idlention i s gsser may be aparec 1y inddi
ar when annuil impmirmant testing o an assel b8 required, the Ciranp estimates the assel’s recoverble amounl, An asset's
coverahle aomount i¢ the higler of an assets o cosh-penerating uns (CGLY fair value loss costs o [lisposal and s value in ges,

rablo anwuet s determimed o an indivsclial asszt inless the assel does nial generate coshinflivas ther e larpels
indepaendent of thase lvom other assets or Group's assets. When the rying amwnn of an gssel o COL eazecds iis recovershiv
amwounl. the asset is cansidercd impe_red and & wrilten dows W s reeoveradle ageunt Tn assessing wolue in nse, the eshmated
{ture wash Howes are discounted o their present value sieg 2 pre—hx discount rate that refieets current murkel assessments ol
the time value af money and the visks specific b the nsses, i determining net selling prive, reeent markal lrinsactons are fakan
mite aceount, tavailable 1ne such mseetons can be fdontified, an aporoprate valualion nwedel 15 usad, Lnpanent lnsses of
) sing opaations aes recoanized in the Canselids steeraent al s i zed loey, exeeps o reviousy rovaluad tarebie Faed
assets where the revaluation was ¢

Lion ey jats,

et Torevahiitan reserve, T this case, the impainment is alss recopmized in she revalustion
reserve up te the anwunt of amy previsus reviluatian. Aller impairment, clepreviation is pravided i e wevised earrying sooues
ol the assel over s remaning usefal e

Anassessmnenl s made v each reparting date as loowdhether tere s any indieation il previonsly eenaneid impairment [osses
iy e bmper exist or may have decrezeed. 10 such indicetion exials, the proun esComtes the sssel’s COL'S secuverdhle amagnt.
A previcusly recognized impairmen! loss is eversed onhe i there has heen @ chainge i the assuraptions wsed b delermine the
assets recoverable amonnt since e lestimpairment less wis recepnized, The reversal s Loited sa tha the crring amounl af the
assnt does not exceed ils recovorahle ansni, nor cxceed 1lie carreitg sowil et wonld have heen determinad, et of deprecintion,
Fral ne amnaitnent loss been recopieed forthe asset o priee venrs, Soeh revenal iy recognized 1w U Consolidaied stafemeni of
d Loss tnless the assel §5 cacried at o revalued ansun, jnowhich case Tie reversal is treated 5 o raluation ineresse,

prefita

Fureipgn currency transuctions

The Group's Fnanzial statements sre presented in TNE, whizh is sroup’s functiong! currency,

Foreipn cuency wansactions are recarded at the exchurgs e prevailing v the date of the respective transactions helwesn the
functienal curreney incl the theeign comensy,

Monctary toreige curreney assets and labilites rerwining unsettled at the Finpneial Satement dute ave mranslared al the mat=s of

exchanze arevaling oo that date.

=4 losses artsng on accannt o realisation | sortlement al freipn cucretey wansastions and on Wanslation ol lereign Cueney
cogmized i the Consolidated Stuement of Profit wd Loss,

Gar

assets and liakalities are «

Exchunge hilTerences arising on the setlemaent of mongisry e s ol ves differenl Som thase atswhich they were milially recorded
during e year, o seporled i previous Ginancin] statements, are recognized a8 incwse or as sxpenses i lhe vear in which ey

nose,
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Non - Monetary wems which are carvied moenms of historical cost donewatated inos foreym curreney are reporied using the
exchange rate at the date of the wonsaction: wnd Bon - Menctary wems which ave earvicd ab G ealue vr other similir valuatiom
denominared in a fereign curveney, are reportod using the exchampe e et cxsted whes the vilues were determined.

The gai ar foss arisonge endeenslaion of Nov=haebeesy imsg measueed an Gaie veloe is weated b line with U ceeognition el the
ain er loss o the chinmge in Fair visdoe ol e e o, tansilion dallereses ooodens whose Fale valie gion or loss is rocoghised

i OCTor predivor less e also neeugnised i OULar profil or loss, esprelively)

Taxes an income

Tax expenge comprises of Current and Deferred 1oy

Cuceent ineame tax s measored al e amoond l."(nl.‘l'!-\"-ll lan b :‘I-Iill 1o e tox aonlborities o accordance with the Income Cax Act,
1961

Current income tax agsots and habiltes ace meagared a1 the amannt expeeted ta be cecovered Trorm or poil w e asation
authenizs. The s vates and s laws use \| o eowpre the amount ars those that wee sraeted ar substutively ensewed, ol the
peporticg date, Tha tox rres and 1ax aws vsed 1o campute the amount are these thae ave enacted or snbstanlively eoacled, ol the
etz date

Curvent income fax relating W tems recopnisal outsude prolil or loss s recognised outsade prolle e Joss {ewher in other
corarhiensive neane orin equily

Currenl s items e recoeguised i corcelation w e code: Ly ing ressaeoien ealbe i QUL er divectly i e, Hly,

Investmzent Manager periodienlly evaluates pesitions tuken in fhe wax retores with respeet o silgetons in wihiich epplicahly tax
wegnlaans are subject o interpretation andd establsbes provisions where appropriote,

Deterred tax is proveded uamg the basil oo method on temporary dillerenees etween the tax rases o8 assels and labilicies gnd
ther cammyinge amounts S lrancial veposting purpases 50 e reparting dale.

Diefired tux assets and Habilivies are measored ot the tax reses Wat ere expseed saoapply in che year when he assel is realised o
the Lty is setiled, based on lax rates (and fax laway that have been enacted ar substaniively enscted ni the reporting dote.

Lyeferved lax asseis ane T sedd Farall decduehie wmporary diferences, the varry Beesand o unosed seeredit and any unused
tax losses, Deferred g assels are recopnised o the extent thet it s prabable tha lxable peolic will be available sgainst which the
deductible emperary diflerences, wud lln.' carry Tarwned ol waesed tax credits g unoged s tosses con be utilised. The c'.lrr\-lni_.
amauns of deferred tax assets 13 reviewed al each r epariing clate ancd reduced 1o the extent that s na Innger prabobic that sl
tczhle protit will be avallable to allow all or o af the defierred tax assat ta be wtilised

Dieferrad tox reluting e items revogmnised outsidle profit or liss i reeommsed sulside praficar loss tesher i athar compreihensive
INCEITIE Al 10 Cquity)

Dcterred b ssseis ol deferred ten Habilies are olset af o depelly enfoceable right exsts to st off current fax assets azainst
et Lex Tiebilities gl the delerred et velate o the sane Gealble entily aud the sane taesio

Pravistons, Contingent Linbilitics, Contingent Asgeis and Capical Commitiments

Conlingeal Liabilities

A contrzent Hablity is 2 possible ablgabon et arises o past evenls wlisse existanee will e conlinme COCNTCRCE OF
non—ocsurrenee sl one or nere uneerta Giere events beyoad the conteol ol the Growp o 2 present obligatian that s nolrecognized
becanse 11w wot mrebable al a oulllew af resouices will e regaired 10 sentle e oolgatien A contingenl liabilitg alsa arises in
exirernely nwe cases where there 15 a Lability that connes be pecepnized beeause it conootl be messored relinhly. Coetingent
Laabclizier are reviewed al cech reportiog dole. The Grovp dees poy cocognize o t‘miiubc-n‘ Lzl e bt liscloses it existenee i
ez sl stements, hewever discloses s existence i e Onaocial salenmenis in he noles looacoooels,

Conlingenl Assets

Continzent ssols nsaally arise from unplanned or other onespected events thal grve rise to the possilsLlity oo inflow af ceanamic
benefis (o the entity.

Cortinzent 435818 are recopnized when the ealizaticn of incame s virtaally corain, o wiich case the melatid sssel 15 not a
enl asset and Irs recognition is apprapriate,

enit assets are reviewad at each reporming dater A continzent asset s disclosed whers aninflow ol weanerme benelits is
I:mh.il-lz:

Frovisions

Provigions nre reoognised when the Gron has a present chligatios Olepal or conslrective) as a resilo ofa [HIST BWCIL, 1T 15 o shabie
thrat an ontfes of rescuress embadying sconomic henelils will be recuired wosetcle the al:lgation s a refiable estimats can be
o When e Geoup expecls soone o el ol puovizlon e be reiinbuersed, for caample, ander an

irsuranze comlreel, e reimburseent is recigmised as o separale assel, bulanly whe te reiebursement s oeimually cemmam 1he

madde of the amomt o the oblis

cxpense relaling o e provision is presented i the Consplidated stalement ol prolit und loss aet of oy reimbursament
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IT the elteet of the time value af meaney is material, provisions aee discovnisd using 3 cwsrent prestas rate that rellects, wher
appraprizle, the rsks specilic W the Hability, When discounting 15 wsed, e inerepss 1 *he pravision due to e passege of time is
terupnised is i [inames cost

Commitmenis

Cometraents are Grlure labilstics for contractual expenditnre, olissificd and disclosed ws Gallows:

o estmated amount of contsets remain g fo be eseculed oo eapiual secaunt anl not provided T

= lunding related commitiment w subsidiary eompanics: o

o olher num-cameellible sommitments, 6 any. o the extent they are considesed smerial and ralevant in the opinien of
IEmagenent.,

Onher commitmerts relited b services 1o b rendeced ¢ prociements muade in ke normal cowrse ol hasmass are st diselosed o
nvaid excessive details,

Conselidnted Statement of Cash Flows

Cansolidated Statewe of Cash Flews is prepased semegming the east iows oo aperaling, investing sl finaneing actvilies.
Cash flow fram opernting pelivities is ceported wsing, wdiveet metod adinstine the nat sl foan the elleels ol

#  chonges duveg te peeod inapeeacing veeeivalies ol prgables, ansoelions el o nen-cash nalure;

o min=ehshitems such a5 depreciation, provisiony, deferred tixes, unreslised foregm eumeney gaing and losses;

& allotherilems forwhieh the cash effeels are mmvesting ar finatelne cash Oows,

Cash and cash equivalzets (reeluding benk Belancesy shov in e Consalidaod Statenent ol Casl Tloses exelucde items wheh are
not aveilablie for peneral wse as at the date of Canselidued Bakinee Sheet

Assets held for sale

Mon-currenl assels ar disposal groups comprising ol issets ad lakilices ae clissified as ekl for when all af the fllowing
criteras are mwe iy decision has desn made wosell (7] the assels are avaiiable for isediae sele in it present eondition, (i) the
asselsatebeing sctively warketed acd G sale has been agreed orgespected wo be conziuded within 12 manths of e Cansolidael
Balauce Sheet date.

Subscquanty, such not-current sssers and disposal groups elissified ns held for sale ace weasuced al the lwer of its errrying value
anel Fair walue loss costs wosell Nowecwrens assets heud toc sale ave not depreciated or amorisad.

Unit Capital
Ulits ave classifiod s cquity, eremental cosls aiboable ta e fssue ol unisore diveedy reeorded in Orhey Eguity, net ol s,
Eristrilvution (o unii holders

I'he Group recognises o hability to malee caslydist initions o unt kelders when tee distibution is anlharised and a legal ablization
fas Been eromed. As per the SERL el Regulanions, a distibution is anhorses when it is appraved by e Basnd of Threotors of
Ui Imvestment Marsger. A canespoling wnount s recognized dirsetly in gauity,

Earnings per Unit (EPL)

Basie EPU smsiunts are ealeniated by dividing the profic for the poried sitribawtable woanithoklers by the weighred average numlisr
al aneds oulstunding during the pariod.

Diiluted EPL ameucts zre ealenlued by dovidmg e poolivOass altribyiehle @ uaitheliers by e weighlue aversre pomber of
waits sutstinding during the period ples the woightsd avespe somber o nis il would be sssued an eoversion elall te diluive
il unils fnte undt capital,




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Consalidated Samivary ol sipnificane pecounting policics aned athee cxpdaton infirmtion

A. Property, Plant and 1 eipment

LAl arnonts o & Jukly wnless otherwse sichad )

Particulars

Tanlal

sross Carrving Am

Bakmee as ad March 31, 2020
Adilitivns

Less [hspasiis

Balanee as al March S0, 2021
Adi thans

Less Disposals

Balance as al March 3, 2022

Avcumuolbated Deprecisifion
Bidanee as ol March 81, 2020
Addinons

Less: Irspasals

Balanee as at March 31, 2021
Addkditions

l.esa Disposals

Balance as at Mareh 34, 2022

Net Carrving Ameun

(.30

(h.50

1160

114k

Aas ol March 3, 2020

As at Maveh 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2022

0.d6




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Consolidited Summary of significant acconnting policies and orher explanstory information

A Gawdwill wrising on Cansolidatian

sl i 8 Lk uhess alhersise stiled )

AN AT AN AT

FARTIMAS e A1 Mareh, 2022 318t Mareh, 202
Coross Carrving Aol

Badanee o5 ol Mureh 31, 2020 i
Additiens i g
Less Digposils . X
Less hnpainnent : s
Balanee as o Mareh 31, 2021 S 3 T
Atlditions” 10, b4 40 =
Less: [sposaly 4 i
Less lopainnent - -
Bulance awal March 31, 2022 ' TNLERET .

The cerying deount relates 1o gracwill arising coacquisition of Projeer SIV cowpazy (5 HIPRL) [y b Tmst and s
heer testzd for impaitment sgainst e respeciove cas) geserating o (CGUL The saleulaion ases cush Now (hreeas:
smsad onapproved Rooncie] bwlgersfratepic ferceast whick cover fiture periods of 30 ywears,

Based 21 pevicw ol the Tutore dizecniced cesh Qs of the inanzible ssaets (Tall Crllection Beghts) held by e
subsidiars INTIFPLY the reeoverable amounl is Bigher than the cavrying peaennt of the assets, and accondingly no

tpairinent Joss bis been recagnized T the statenent of profit and Loss Qi die venr ondes Magh 31, 2022,

FReter Note 34
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NATIONAL HTGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Consolidated Swimmiry of significant weeosnting polieles sod other explamatory inlormatinn

fu Crbier Fimancial Assets: Non Current

O s v okl wnbess tbere stinedd

PARTICULARS

Investment in Vixed Depasits
l'ised Deposits witl hunks®*

AR AT AS AT
A1st Ylarch, 2002 Ahst Moreh, 221
LR -
117081 ' é

“ The Pl Devosits are crsarhes for Debt Seesicing Beseree Avenunl (SR b e utibaed ab e el af seoure of long tarm boieovings

ooay Senier Larders, hence cinesires ax O P et Son Ciorens 10 es e

7. Pelerved Tay Avscly (Nel)

PARTICULARS

el nl e ol b iy,

P mepurts i 4 kb anisss aileriage slatedd

- Ex

Taral (A)

- DM ienee

Totul (B}

AN AT AS AT
Alst Mg, 2022 sl Mycuh, 2021
Delemred Tax Assets an SHHE en account of
sorse disillowed g per Income Tax Aoz [961, allowalbsle v e meins (TRIRY -
- Loaisorbed depneciation & Cartied Torssnd s losses REW o R -
i 312441 -
Sretersed e Loabilives avisig vosevounl el -
- Dilieience beseeen book & tax base relered 1o Tranaitle assels JLHERT -
b beok & lis base szleted o hvestmenis 2l
- Lapense doss bowes carlier as per neome Tas Act, 19600 alloswed row 003 -
T T
Al 2

Ner Asset (A) < (R)

Recenciliation of Delerred Tas Asset? (Liabilities)

PARTICLLARS

chllamennls 2o € Lk vicess othervise stated)

Gpening Bakuey « Delerrand 'L ax Asset
(BT
(B}
hiane

Clasing Widance - Deferred Tax Asset

comed fexpense) durmg the seiml recopmsed inprotil 8 less

a3

# Ievestments: (Current

< mmamed fexperss) during the Se Tl nacopnised 0 0 her Cerpre ansive

L AR AT
Man Aiaeh, 2002 s Bl 2021
PR a
Tyl el -

PA sty i 2 Jekh oaless nthernise s lated)

PARTICULARY

AN
Alsl March, 2022

In Motunl Funds - Quated at FVT,
Crverarht Bne! Funds
2850 02 units @ HAV of Rs 3407 3538 per unil)

Tirtal

S0 16 -

UL 14




NATIONAL HIGIWAYS INFRA TRUST

Consolidated Swmmury of signiticant seconmimg policks s atwe coplomiary infevimstion

O Trode Receivables: Current
EAUL et it kb ey mlweretse siaedh
PARTICULARS A AT AN AT

A1l Mueely, 2122 st Ml 2021

Ortstaniding Tar Che foliowing periad Teom the dwe date of pay mont:

ilispeted rale seceivables- considered ynod® il 4 -

(Ourstanding for less than & meitha Tioci the dae date ol pusazent)

Mrispured tade reeeivables v sidisal g - -
I

* Ehdegpuned Toede Receivables inehagie unb e receables amonieting o Te 401 10 Taldh

e Coslesod Casle Fyndvnlenis
AL e e A Rkl anless aoemyize sted)

PARTICULARS ST AR AT
= B e Mhagely, 2022 3s0 Marels, 2021

Casho & Cash Equivalents
Jikareces wth Links

In Carvent Acqouiy [ AEA -
In Fxerma Andimnls 150 -
Vixed Deposiis
” y < AED N -
v cognel e iy o ese Cran 3 montas) b
o S .

11, Oihier Vipaovial Assets; Current
S s in T lakr anless athorwise saeed)

PARTICULARS A AT AS AT

™ = = e 3lst March, 2022 A Lst Muarch, M1
Iiersst reconvathe F. -
Teerzst recervable o avastmant ie Fied Dopuasity N .
Chazr Fiane ] Asaets ER ] -
Toeal 558 v

12 Uhker Curvail Avsers
o Lol s 0 & ikl omless o erwass stated

PARTICULARS A= AT AR AT
st Mapels, 3023 Mt hlagch, 2021

Prozail caponses MTAG -

Taiad T2




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Consolidated Summary ol significant aveonnting palicies and other explanatory information

13, Unit Capital™
COTlameonios B B Takly onfess aiberwise stored)

PARTICULARS i AS AT 31t Mavch, 2022 AS AT 314t March, 202] |
S o NOLOKUNITS | AMOUNT NOLOFUNMTS | AMOUNT
Uit Capital A2 | G SR 00 = : J

. — | —

Rights: prefercnces aud resteietons attaehed to Uit Capital

Sulgeet e the pravesons of e oy T Regulations, the indenture o fads, sed epplicehle vules, regoliisms sl gostelnes, e dghs ol de it belders

Tt LIRS

al The beveficial interest o each uaicholder shedl e eguat s limited woode prapoeton of the numhers of tha i Beld by b caithelder to

b teanl sasaber al e gnils

I Right moceceve ingame o distibutions with respueut to the anits beld

o) Rl v attond the aonual goneral mecting and othes nrectings ol the wnit Boldes al '] rest,

o | gl e wote upan iy natieradresonons propused i reldie s the T,

o Righo o receive penodic wlsrmstion hidng a heariag o the aparation o perfnmanee of the Trost inozeordnnee wik the I T Regulations; ane

) Bight to apply to tha "Umar o ke np eectain issues al moetings o unil holders g pooval,

g1 el o receive aodibonal e lomation, 1 amy meoaceordance sl DI T docurments e with Placement Memorengd:m,

by he omespomsor unit holders ("Eligible Persons”) of te Trost ure entitied to repeeseatation on the Beand of Dézeetons of the Investmen Managet

o

throug! apparstment of np fe ten {21 divcctons {"Nun-Sponser [Directors™y, provided that ne Eligible Person shall huve the right ta napmete more thas
ome Director gt a dme Tor appointzient oo the Board of Directors,

I eccordanes with e LT Reguiations, noounit helders shall eapoy supezion vouing or any etlize rights meer any other vnit holders, and Jese shall me
I= mulnple clissez of wnits. There shall be only s denmimution o units, Moo withsiasding the above, subordingte units may he issued enly w e
Spenser aned iis Assocmles, where such subsrenate units shall carey only infertisr viting eracy ather tehis canpare 1o e other units,

Limiber the prosisions af e Toel T Regadations, not less Uua ninely percent of the ret disteiboale cash flows ol the Trust 3 requirsd o be dissrihered te
e wmitholders, wud i eccordmee with sucde statetory ol:bgaton the Treost has fomedied s dstebien poliey e dzelne amd disteioute the distribatable
cagin o s unitimklers once every guarte ol o finoeinl v as approved oy e Bond of Dizectors ol e Tovestmens Sanager. 't he distilitions
misde By Trost o i amitholders are Sased oo she Nel Distriboble Cash FPlows (NDOEL of the Twst suder tie balT Repulutions ané represont

e capital o slee ol srof,

tepayinent of propart

Limitation tu the Lisbility of the unit holders

7 e babihty of erelt unnt nolders towands e peyinent o any amooms (ml noy oise
wiilities. cmls ereapensesy shall be Simited enly mothe extent of e vanial conlriloti

D eent panc g Gkl by the ot helders, s unil habders shall net be sblipated o mike sy Turther payments.
Uiz it hofders shal! mat have any personal Babilsy er obligation with respees to she Trgat

celiton L e Trost fnchwling woy xes, cubies, Lges, evies,
Cofsuch et hodders cod alter sueleupital contribution sy

DETAILS OF UNITHOLDRERS ITOLDING MORE THAK 8% SHARES IN THE COREANY

ANAME OF SHAREHOLDER — AS AT 3151 Mareh, 2022 AS AT 315t March, 2021 =
N NOLOF INETS o NO.OF UNIES v =
Onzno Linutes IR E fE R IRE Y 25 0 g C
CPP love ! Beard Frivate Holdings loe .“4_‘45.(10.'30.'} el . - - £
SBI Balsueed Advantage Func 58 U0 | ___#s | = e
Naticnal Hizlvways Awchoriny af hndda (NHAT = 856 00 Q0 | FL | : 5 —

A per records ef G Trust, includimg il register oF wnithalders and other declevation recelved oy anithelidlers regard g beachicaal mieresy the abioe
unithaldinz rapregent barh legaland benelicial swaership el onils.

The Trust suod TUGSLARS nos of nits ol the rale of Bs 10) per gnil T vengidgration other than cash e the Spamser (Rarional islavave
Autherity of Indiak, g5 consideralion for purchase of LO00DD eyuily shares of Projest SPYW - KHIPPL,

e umis were bonghl back since mseption of the Trst,

THE RECONCILIATION O FHE RUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDRING 15 510 0L RELDYW:

FARTICULARS [ ANAT st March, 2023 A% AT 3Est March, 2021

in B /e T N(L OF SIIARES | _AMOUNT O OF SHARES AMOUNT
Mumber of Units o2 the Beginning | z = =
Uhiils dasued during the »eoe SO 00000 a0l 18200 - =
Number of Unils et the End S50 0G0 a2 00 - 5




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Consoliksted Sy of sigadfieant secanitiog polieies snd other explanatary infarmationg

14. Other Equity *¥

SOl et T T Bk b v e s sl

Parlicubars Roserves Hieans o Other Comprelensive lieanie Tutal
Surpilus fems thal will el he | Tiems thiss will e
ek ed te prefiver | reckisgilicd Lo protit ar
= R PSSP [T SRS St [\ lass s

i Retgned Forngs | Remgosyrement of Faw Ve Elain on

Frefimeel Henela Preferemes Sl

Chlivgatien” Plan &
Babucensatistapritzoze | - [ .1 : -
Protit 1 osst o the year 107NN - - (750
Balance us at 31si March, 2021 (03N o - (07,500
Proliy {Lasast lor the yewr HEM IS - | " (1,440,413
O tinwe units Issuc exponge LTS I8 - - - 1,70, 1
Balunce as at 35l March, 2012 8.059.25 - - 859,25




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Cansefidated Sumpary of significant peeomting polieies and other explanmioes inloros bon

15, Barrowbogs: Non Corerent
LA o n 8kl e less orlarwi e sated)

PARTICULARS AN AT Al AN
) . 051 Mareh, 24122 M Maweh, 2021
Secured
Fermm Lonn;
From Banks | Ady s -
Froim ot puitios s — - -
o T —
bess Corent Matucioes o Tung Tezin bingusdngs ( esir Note 17, GROEG

]

Less homuactized Borrosing Cuosl

Lot C LAas5084 5

T action Costwmeuting 1o Rs, LEE Crove was non eer puic 08 at e end ol remarting period e the Sendor Landecs, owever
“he seme has been considersd Lor the purpose of KN i the forheoming periods,

The Trust Bad availed loan cumula‘:liug o INE |t Creoee (sanenonesd proows Ra 2000 Crore) fom three banks ag the rie of
T2 pa via Faciliy Agresmest doted 29002020 tor the pospose o ivestent of Toegis in Pruject P8 (INHIPPL).

The lean was disbutsed on 122020 wmel is repayntale on quarterly basis ovel 78 guarterly inslelents ol Prncipel sl Interes:
up 1o 3 s Mareh 2041, and the cextinstalnent due on S0 June 20273

SOCHtYS
Pl Jevm s secored by,
= et part prssu charee on al? remevabile assers O aoe, vwovelile assels el receivables ol e Tros e lnding bt pot Lawed o,
i the imerest ad principal repayiments oo e Teans sdvaneed e e st W Project 81
(it dividends o b paid by Project S0V Lo the Trost
- lizst part passu Scourity fowerest oo Trust Eserow aceount and o0 sub-geeonnts tievomde, including CRRA.
- st pac. Passu caarge on the Seswor Debt Service Aeons), Sub-Debt Servieing Aceuacst and Suiplus” Divaden:d Aceaunt or any
cther aveewn of Ihe Project EPV wliere [ree cash Nows o7 the Project SPY ame cealited,
cquity shares ol Project SPY INTEPPL) held by the o,

wothe Truay o Tooject SPV (N UPPLY aed sesurines coemtad by the Toss neloc_ng the assi
e ease af dofln
51 of rhe Progcer SPW (S HIPELY subject o sale of
ex, ala tall equipment ele,, wuler novmal bress pracrse, subjsen womazinam conularive vae

- pledge of 1004

pper

ammeTralbicansaovanged 4

el rghis of suomisson, lermination and ivesation of provision ol Bsemes

- nepative len on immovable asseds (neluding cwment aegens ard cash iy

=t o aesd zmbola

550z in Iy Gnnss YA

The senia landees ol the Trust lave also been provided wih 1 eorpovie pusrsinies T Projest SP O HEPEL) 1 anmaniee the
remamen ol seaior debt by e Trose The fonds have bean el ot Tousl level by anibelders amd domesie lenders, amd the same
rve beew Tt 1o Project EPVRTIIPPL) for paymert of concesain e by BHIPPL o MIUTAL The cashilows v, bl collecizons
are lying in WHIPPL. Accondioply, corperale paaraziee snoonbng o [NR 2000 Crope vin Corpaate Guammies Teesl dived
i Leen rvecided baoale Project 37% ( NP

L3 2022 validd acrass the 1enoce of the lian of the Trost o e 51 03 2041,
1o e seor lendars of the Timst,
There have beoe no bircaches i linancial covenants with respoel o the bovorsings [oom Senior leaders,




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Cungolidated Summery o signilieont seconmmg polivies nad ether axplaees ol o

16, Peovisions: Nowo Current

PARTICULARN

CLAE amoue an ® Lakh ueless othervise stated)
Ab AL AS AT
A0t Vek, 2022 Il Mareh, 2021

Provisian For emplovees bepofite

Liamiy RN -
Compensated Alseroes a0 -
Pravision for Yajor Muiionmice®
Al Road- Swacoopgan| 1.5 L
Al Road- #alanper A =
R AT RTEETAT i -
Chinorgch- Kaota 264,32 -
Eolthakota- [Kumeal TR -

Provisien Tor Major Muaintenanee®
Hhe Cemipany has & contraciial obligs
guadily nod atlizd messures as per the por?
such oblignrac 14 mcaswed wl Uie hesl estimate of the cspenditure seguived te setle the shligaton at the balazee sheet dals and
orla s csrimated o be catvizd oul wsing Diseonated Casl Flows methad with:

i o maimtain the perfomianee steedands of the Progeer Highwsss inorespect ol jiding
e Barselery hli[ﬂlliLIc!l'. nnar the reapeetive Cuneesson Apreenyents, Lot or

repogsvised aver the seriod at the exd ol wlach (i

U eliscommt rote tnken as the visk free nmerest eale e, GO A0 v Boanwd Yieal, The neal nworoverlay T ome of the Project
Hiz! 5 15 expented to be carridd ool in BY 2M24-25,

Detnils of mesement in Provisiens

CAN connis i ¥ Jakh unless o se stated)

PARTICULARS i AS AT AS AT

. A 1st Mareh, 2022 Al Marel, 2021
Omeining Balinee y
Acals Acerstion during the vear A -
Less: Lrilized dutdig th weus : g
Closing Balsare i ETERL =

17, Borrowings: Current
Pl ancants e © Lklombess ulheredse stled)

PARTICULARN AS AT AS Al
sl March, 2422 Slet vbarch, Mi21

Cierent Matumitios of Long 'Term borrewises (Reler Wers Ne, [5) SEN N -

RHILEG e

I8, Trade Payables: Current
Al isunts 2 bakh urless atereise seicd)

PARTICULARS A Al AS AT
At March, 2023 30t Nbureh, 221

Potal pustandizg, dues ol micra vnd sma!l ecterprises & L
Toal meatondmy, dues of credizors otleer U meere and small enterprises [ o) 5
(Ouisamdany for less than 12 menchs trom the due date ol paymeent)

Total LI 23 i




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Consolidnted Summary of signilican) decomting policivs and other explanatery informatino

19 Ol Flomaeial Diabititics: Corrent

CAN amvoints i @ Jekly o ot wae siated)

PARTICUHLARS

Oihers
Cazh Tal £ allection myahe (o N1LAL
Favalles toverrds other oxpenses

‘Total

25 Oher Coreent Liabilitio

PARTICULARS

AS AT AS AT
M Moure, 2022 Mt Muech, 2021
AT -
KR nYHl
VLA O

VAot i &L tiless atlevise sioted)
AR AT S AT

Stomery Lawtsthioes (GY 1, TS, TOS and P17
Tatal

21, Provivions: Curront

PARTICUHLARS

Ml Wbk, 2023 308t Mareh, 2021
205 1
24475 009

Pl n @ lekh s alirwse staled)

Pravision Far Lapleyec Benefits
Coinoscasted Absences

Tutal

23, Current Tax Llabllities (Netd)

AS AT AR AT
Jlst Mareh, 2021 st Mareh, 2021
0.3 o
et

A monnts o2 fakh ualess adiers ise statedi

PARTICLLARS Asal AN AT
. sl Magee, 2022 1wt Marel, 2021
ket SR TR B B EI =
Fotd 16177 =

Recenrifinttan of Corvent Tas Linbilities

PARTICLULARS

I'_,-\Il amaunls 0 T lakh unless aheswise stted)
AN AT AR Al
Yzt Rlareh, 2032 Slst harch, 3021

Opening Ralance
Addd: nceme Tax Pavabls forthe vear
Famx: Tornaes Paidd

Cloging Falanee

RN -
2EG -
16177 -




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST
Consolidated Swntary ol signifieant aceonting pofivies aod oiler explamatey infarmation

21 Revenue fram operations

PO TE S Y (AL mnonals TRt o less oclerwise Sy
PARTICULARS AS AT AN A
VNN Rareh, 3022 314t March, 2021

Sale of Services
Revenue from Toll Cullection R T B -

Other Operative Revenne
Tuteraston delpy in ol Ramitimee IN.01 -

Totul 13,9410.35 g

24 Ocher Inesmae

— . CALL G s e G Gl o Ll wl o ahidedy
PARTICULARS AR AT AN AT

Alst March, 2022 3140 March, 2021

Interest Tncome
O tixed shoposits with banks .80 -

Orlier nou operuling incone

Bt Giamn s Bar waluation o investeenss destanaled at v R 7.3 -
Chitizs eo snle ol invesimenis GR2.62 -
Other [ncenwe ALREAT &
Yotal - 1.014.53 ' .

25, Operaung Expenses
= = B e it @ Dk s b arwise stited
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AL

s Mureh, 2023 318t March, 2021

Srojeet Banageme:t Tees U0 »
Uperatzon and Maintenanes Expenses Ak g
Prosis o b Mo Matsenanes Obliaten 4033 25

Total 1,140.21 _ &

6. Emplovee Benellt Expenses
: allomaeme i T |:I$C__|'| L s s shatl)
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
Izt hlarels, 2022 315t March, 2021

Subanies anc wages 1.75 ~
Contribulien wo prrvident and sther Cends 015 .
Giratuiry [INER) -
Cempensatey absenees 1h1i) -
Stall wellure expenses o2 -

Total B A




NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Congolicated Summury of sizni Teen) peconnting policies ned oulec explonstury informalicn

27, Finance Clarges

P A nonaanns (i kb aileas Ston ise stited)
PARTICULARS ANAT ASAT

Alst Moreh, 2022 30t Maureh, 202

[ndevest on Long Lerm Barowings fo Ty -
COthar Famoneial Churpes 524 -
Total LAY -

28, Prepoeciation pud Awortization Expenses

o T, . CALL s Skl s vihasgise sued |

PARTICULARS ASA r Kh;\T .
A180 Mareh, 2022 318 March, 2021

Depreciation un Property, Plant and kquipment A0 5y -
Amortization o Dfangble Aseels 10,55.01, 37295 -
Totat 10,5505, 103,54 =

28, Other Eaponascs
—— _ Al w4 lakh unless onlaew e sl
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT

3150 Mareh, 2022 Xst March, 2021

Addvetisement expenacs AT 2
Prafessioral loes 203003 { !
Foo, subseription & laxes 20163 1522
Insurznoe cxpenses Jod0d .
Bank charges .04 -
Audiors pemutieralon

Steintay dncht fees 459 o

Tax Audil fees iR TH -

Cortificanion and ather charees Az -
Dt Meonzsment Fxpondes 157 =
Flisecllancous expenses A =

Total GTRRE bAaY

Ak Tax Capense

VAT s o ¥ fab o onedess e s staeh

PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
— dlsrMareh, 2022 3t ¥areh, 2021
Curremt Tax 43046 -
Prevision fin Taxation-Carlies yeers = -
A3 0.3 -
Drelerrad lax expenssioradiny el i -

17444 - 5



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST

Corsalicdoted ey of sgmideant accommsing palicies o other explinatore infmation

Eftective tn Roeconeiliation:

Nuereal receseilinten of tax expenae applicahle e (rredit Joss efore i at the lrest statutogy engened we rale

ot Inddia tecome ey expanse rapocied 15 ae Rollows:

PARTICLLARS

(B
As Al AS AT
Alst Mureh, 2002 3 st March, 2021

ol 2 kb i leas onheratiae srsed)

Acvonniing Prol beiove Incoee Tuses

Tax al India's stewmory imeema 1ax rate oy Compn o 125
Fax ar ludia™s <totatory ioeme s eate Tor Bosiess Trouss -
Masnwn: Marginal Rete (42,7445

Inercase! (reduetion) in faxes en accnunt ol

Impac: of deferced tax on voversible allewimeer disallewunoe ol

Misness Cupense s incomey e per Indien neoma Tas Acl, 1961

Izpact of exemprion w'z WEIFCY of the Dudien Tneome Tax Act,

196 1 available w e Trost
Pronasion for wererest on delayed deposit of ineone 11y
Income tax expense reported in the statcment ol profit and loss

31, Earning per Unit

oy
(2,025,11

TGS

L TR
(158234

A

174004

PARIICULARS

AN AL AB AT
d0st blavel, 2022 3150 Muarch, 2021

Basic snd diluted FPU
INeL Prolitd loss aaclable Tor amicholcders (e 2 kb )
Woigheer avarage puinher ol T BRLY eonputation

EIML - Basic and diluted

31, Contingent Linbilities

IR RN ) -
S AINLGIR .
115

LRI 13l 0 G B8 A TR TSVl

PARTICULARS

AS AT AR A
Ilst March, 2023 31wt March, 2021

Crntingent Fiahilities:
Corporete Crommneroe sssmed by e Pooject S8 commpany
iNVIHPPLY o the lendems of NHET

Toetal

200000

2.00.060.00 -

The Praject SPV company {NITPPLY has wausd a0 Corporite Guamcles smaunbing 1o INE 2,000 Cre on

14633022 i Cavour of len
term lean of INKE 2,000 Cra
tesre ol the foan 2] March 31, 2

availed by NIT fromeestermal lopders

S7, Nl the external loans of the”

s ol NHIT az pard e debl covenanis of the loan reesived Bom NITT, & secore the
e Curprale Guarantes is valid aorogs Qe
st e sished,
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Consolidaed Sumny o sighilicwnt seconndag policies sl olier esplanatory informadon

33, Revenue {rom contraets with custnmers

TAL wantonibe B0 & Bukls anlass s hieewiae slated)

Disaggiregation of revenie

Reverue recopnised mainly comprises ol vevenae from tall collectivns, claims with NHAL sonteact raverie Setont hilow s the

disazaregation of e Trust's revenne o contracts weath wuslimaers:

Desceription Fovthe year ended Fuor the year ended
- S Jst Mureh, 2022 st March, 2021

Cperating vevenue |

Gud Poll meonse friom Esprosswiy [48d] 94 -

b fnerest om decay i ol Beminuee [ -
[l olal revenne - | 13,9005 «
The table below presents disaggeogated revenues e conracts with custamers based ou nature, amoonm am tinting for the veqr ended
31 Mepch 2022 o 31 Mareh 2021
T ~ Trypes of Produces Forthevear ended. | Foril ded

: ypes ol Products hy : e ; | Co the vemr enile For the yewr ende
SN 2 2 Types of Servives by timiog 2
Nature el - ] 3151 Murch, 2022 st Mareh, 202

| ! ol fncame cer e period ol time [ o 135000055 -
Agsets and Habilities velted 1o contrnets with custemens

The Tellow g whie provides informaton abogr eeervalles, contrel assels and eontae lobilitles Domesten will euslymers:
I - : ¢h, 2112 s af 315t March,
| Descripdion Asad Sl Mareh, 2022 | Asaf 3 Eﬁ.r_ Tarch, 2011

. Current Cuirent

(Contract assets

Trade seceivahles.

Reeersnnbes under sovice coloesaon arrangements ) AN e . -
Total ) ) GOLAT | -
Conteact liabilities
Trade Payables .
Otlee: TPayabics ~ : A
Favizl L3464 &
Perforaince obligalion
Epeome lron ol colleetion
The perfimmmmee obliiion in service ol toll collecton i recordal 2 por rates tonilied by NILALnnd approved by roanagement and
ey s gencrally due at e tme of providing servce
Coutract revenue
the poronmance ehlization tndes service concession pgrooments CSCAT e due vn complating nfwork as por ters of S04,
Disclosure under Appendis - © & D o Ind AS 1S " Service Coneessinn Arrangements"

Al the Beles eryvice cincession arrangement save ben secounied under intangitle agse nade!
Name of Concessionaire Stavt of Concession perind | Fnd of Concession period | Period of Concession
under enmeession agreement wniler gincessinm sinee the appointed date
CAppuinted Date) dpeocineal {in days) {
Natvenal Highveays Infra Projeors Privag = :
Al 15, 12.205] AELE
Linuites
The abave TOT prejects shall have following rahts £ ebligatisng in aceordines wirh the Coneession Agreemen! entered it with the

respecive Govsiment Authorites

2. Richn o nae tke Soecilied Assets

b Oinligations o provide oo rights e except provision af services

<. Oblizamens o deliver ar piehes 1o receive ot ke end ol congesilon




NATIONAL INGITWAYS INFRA TRUST
Cowsolidated Summary of significant accannting policies and other explanatory information

34. DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO IND AS 103 “BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
CAL amonts in 3 Takh nnless atherwase stared)

a)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
1) Pursuant 1o the Share Purchase Agreennent dited September 30, 2021, the Trust acquired the entive squity share capital el the
the Project SPY company (NHIPPL)Y an December 14, 2021 Tar an pquity considerntion ol Rs, 1,39,553.52 Lakls,
Accordingly, the Tinanciul statements of the subsidiary MITPPL L the periad from December 14, 2021 to Masch 31,3022
have been considered in the consolidated financinl stiements of the Trust. Funding for the sail aequisilion was rased
through preferentinl 1ssuc of units of the Trust, The Group has carried out a faie valuation of e net nssets of the Project SPY

ab e tme ol aeguisition and accordingly the goodwill lus heen recorded i the consolidated fravcial skiements.

it} Details of the purehase consideration;

IParticulary B _-_._ _.-.- L3 e - | 'l'r:tgl\l‘q

Cash Consiceration - S BN 1,29 400,00
’L’ni!. ;-:é-piml issued o ) - R 14),153.52 |
Tatal purchase consideration o 1,39,551.52 |

Ihe lair value of Rs 13955352 Jakhs paid for aequisiton of the above mentioned project SPVs ineludes considesation in
casa omounking W Rs. 1,294 Crory and consideration in ernt of issuanee ol 10.05 Lakh units of Trust al the tale of Rs, 107
per unit. Issue costs of Rs 1,52 Lukh direetly attribulable o the issue of the units lave been added 1o (he prchase

consideration

e

i) Assets aequired and liabilities recognised on the date of acquisition arce as follows:

Particulars Awmount
Non - Current Assets:
Inangble assets
Deterred Tax Assets {net)
Current Assets:
Financial Assels
Cash and Cash Eypuivalants | (1.0
Total Assets 7.35,050.21
Current Lighilities: ' :
Firancial liahilities
Other financial labilities
Other current Tiahliies

Total Linbilitics _ 7.35,041.14 |

TAL040,00
0.zl

TAE 41,12

0nag

Nel assels acquired oA I
iii} Calenlation of Goodwill ! (Capital Reserve)
Particulars 3 Amaouni
Purchaze Congideration 1.39,5352.52
Less: Fuir Value of Net Assets acquired _ Q.07
|Less: Acgusition of fresh ssue of shares of NIIHPL byt Trast [.29.300 0
|Goadwill 11, 144.46
it Gaadsall s acquistion has been accounted far under oo Current Assers o Uie Balaee Sheet,
v Entity wise Revenue and Profit after tax from the date of acqguisition till March 31, 2022:
_ Particwlars Amount
Revenue _ B 13,960.55
Prafit after Tax 683633
vi) Enfity wise Revenoe and Profit afier tax for the fingncial year 20240-21
i Particulars Amount
evenue :
I'rofit after Tax (67.810)




=
tn

Helated Party Disclosures
A, List of pdditional velated parties s per Reaulation 2010ev) of the SEB] Iovl'l Resulations
Parties to the Trust

o MNananal Highways [nfra lovestmsnt Whinagers Private Tamited (SNHITMPT Y < Ievestrocnt Mennger (080 el the st
o IDBI Trusteeship Services Lunited (T8 « Trustee of the T'rs)

s Radtongl Highways Avchorty of India (NTHAT- Sponson

o Nabwnad Highweys InvlT Project Manegers Private Linued (NTHPRTP LY Projoct Mamager

Pramoters of the Parties to the Troust specitied above

s Prescdemt of Tndia o Proameter of NETTMPL

« 1B Hank Limitec (1B Bl - Pronmter of TT4T,

e Prestedent sl Tndin - Promaoter of NHA)

o Navonal Thghways Autheesiy o Indha (SHAL- Promoter af PRI,

Irirectors o the pardies to the Frost specifiod abnve

e Dhreetnes of NHTIMVIPT,

M Suresh Krishan Goyal
Mi. Vivek Roe
Mr Shaileodm Narin oy
hir. Bolosubramanyan Sricam
N, Mshavir Pacsad Sharma
W, Pradeep Singh Klinala
{r. Amit Kumar Cihosh
Krs. Kavita Saha
k. Bruee Roas Creane
Mr NRVY.ME Raendrs Kumer

+  Directors of ISL

Mr. Pacima Vieod Betn

Mi Sumuel Jusepl Jebarj
25, Madhurd Jayam Kulkarni

o Misdeep Fumar Jain

M Javasheee Rimede

= Direclors of NHIPMPL

M. Asbush Asae
Wz, Muralidhara Rao Buzatha

B, Transactions with Refated Parties dorving the period

wouns in 2 lakly
Particulars For the period ended Fuor the ol endeq

I I
March 31, 2022 | Murel 31, 2027

Name of Fn ii-l__\?

Partize to the Trus ag per Regulation 201z ot'the SERT el T Regalztivns

MNatonzl Ilzhways ol [ f’ag.-:ﬁcm of levestment Manaper Fae 1,931.71 -
Investment Managers Privale |
Limited (WHUMPL) Retmbursement of Fre-lisue sxpenscs

of NIHIT by MITIRPT
_ o _ 214,80
INatinna’ Highways  Heimbursament ol Pre-lsswe expenses SIRAG (I
Aurharity ol Indin (NHATL) sf NHIT B MILAL
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Purchase of equity shares of Trojeer 10,153.52 ' n
SPY (NHIPPLY by the Trest oo

| NHl
S lssue afimits of Trust w NHAL . Wi, 550,00 -
INBI Trusteeship Services | Pavment of Trusley Fee 2ok .

Limited (ITS1)
S I Il Settlament A [ R ] A _

L Closing Balance with Related Puarties
CAeun L i 4 lakhy

Name of Lutity Particulurs ' T As o I A on N
= | Mhareh 31, 2022 Marceh 31,2021

Panties o the Trust as poc Reeulaton 2000 ol e SEBL (T Regulitiong

Navony, Uighways | Tssue af units af Trast o NHAL | By, 554000 .
Authrity o Incia (NITTATY | 09 56,000000 nitg) . = o
BB Teastesship Services | Initial Sertlecent Amonn {10 1
Limizec

i, I Othes Maynbles ) 2.7 [ -

Capital Management

For tie purpose ol the Granp's capital nanagement, copilal tncluces wsued wnit cipatal gnd all other reserves atrributable Ly the
wnil loblders of the Lo,

The primwey ebyective ol the Croup’s capital mnmagement is W ensure e o maintains o sivang eredit eating aed healthy canitl
raies iy order loosuppect its business and maxinise unil zolder value.

The Group nonages dls capial struetore and wakes adivstnents w i m light of <l ped o veamamic combdioms wndd the
requureients ofhe feancal covenamta Fa maintain or adjust e cupital sireire, the Group may adjust the dovidend pavment £
mcome disiributizn oo gt hoklers (subject 1o the provisions of SERI i | Repulatons which reguire disteitation of o least
P%eaf the net distributable cesh lows of the Group w unit haldess), return capital 1o it hnlders o isse new s, The Cironp
mositors eapital wsing o perniog ttin, which 38 e dell divided oy tolal capital plus net debs The Granp’s paliey is o keep the
reating ritie optimum,

FAmounts 4 Lakhn

Particulars Asoal Asal
Mareh 31, 2022 Narch 31, 2021

Net Debt Compunents:
e Terin Barevsings (Noa-Crurrent pottion) [ 43

6.0 .

' Gy 188 5id i.l.‘-.i!_g- Lerm Bomwaings ELHEAT -
Less: Cush and Casi Equivalents (238573 ) = =
Lzss: Bank Batances other than cosh and cash coubealents {3, IELY -

| less Currsn inseshnzits [(H52 1) | — - ]
Nei Delu (i) 136285104 ) =

£a pital E_n}_mp:;neuts o

Lril Capilal B0, 05200 2
Il Seilement Amonn R 2 - =
Other Couity 505925 =
Towsl Capital (i) _ 6.06,211,35 s
Capital and Deld [Gii) = {i) + {it}] 7.40,363,55 -
|
| Gearing Radin (i)iii) | 18.35% - B

I conder woachivve this overall ohyestive, e Boand of Dirceters ol Investient Blaniger, wremgs! ether things, aims Le ensare i
it meels linancial covennns alluched 1o the mtecestbearing leans and harrawings thal define capital stractose regniraments.
Breaches momesting the Baancil covenaats would pernit e lenders to cell loans and borrowings, There have been o breaches
i the Wanciad covenants of any interesl-bearng Lo and barrowin s i the eureent periol.,

oo clanges weere made o the eljectives, policies or processes tor mesaging eapical auring the yeers ended Bach 31, 2027 504
March 21,202].

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Lie Groagris inthe process ol [oomaleticn of it ris mamapeneat galicies with s ohjcctive lidentificaton and soalyssafrisks
faced by the Group, woset appropriale risk limits and controls, and o moniior risks aud sdberesce 1 limits, Risk i ement
pelcies sl be reviewed reealacly 1 reflset cliatnges i marker combitions and the Growp™ welivilies,




The Boand of Directors of Investment Manager has overall responsibility for the estabbisfhunent and oversipht ol the Group's risk
manmagernenl lramework,

lie perfozming dts operaticg, nvesting and lesmeing activities, the Group is exposed tothe Credo vsk, Ligaidity risk and Markel
risk.

Market Risk

farket risk s the visle that the G valie ef futone cush Qe o Gnameial isteonent wil e eeose el elanges i markel
prices. Markel risle comnprises three types of righ: inlecest rte risk, currency risk and oller price visk, Pramein] sastnaments alfeeied
hywarket risk include Loons and borrowings, Keceivable and Payvables wed lnvesisents measured ot FYTPL,

The sensilivity analyses in the llawing seetiang relie (o the position as o0 Maceh 31, 2022 and Maeh 31, 2021,

The sensitovity analvses have been prepared on the basts chat the mmannt of net deb, the ratio o Nxed o floating inwerest mies ol
the delst are all constant,

The Tollwing sssumplions have besn miode o caleulating tie semsitivity nolyses:
Uhe seostlivily oF hw relevant prealil or loss gem oy e effeet of the assumed chonges i respoctive niahat oks. This is based an
the Dnancia! assels and Nnuncal bakslioes held at Mael 31, 2022 & March 37, 2021,

Foreign Currency sk
Foreggn curreney rigk is the vk taat the i value or futare cash Nonwes o sn expesine will fuemate beeanse of changes in foreipn
cxehange rates, The Coroup transacts buswess paimaedy i Togdian Rupees andy, anl lrenee, the seestvivity of profit amd Toss ol the

i)

Grovp toa pussible chigige i Garotgn exchange mtes 15 new-exlstent ag an 310 Muach, 2022,

Interest Rate Risk

Imterest rate visd a8 the visk thad the Bar value o rotoes easly fews of 2 doaseial wstzument wall fleetuate becanse of clianges in
marlet wierest rates. Exposure o 1isk ol changes i market ingrest rates generally relites primarily va long=rerin debt ebligations
with doating interest rales

B follewing table prevides o breakoup of the Coampany s Ted and Roating sale borcowings:
Mol facnounls in T Lkl
Pty As at March 31, 2022 As at Mareh 31, 2021

Floating B alss Do ings ] LAGE3T5) “

The Group's expesurs 1o interest rae nisk due w varsble mileces male barreaings is o8 fillows;
tarasants in ¥ lukh

|' Particulars As ot Mareh 31, 2022 Asul Mareh 31, 2021
| Lerm Loan from Rank _ e e e — .

Sensilivity analyes bused oo avesnee oadshoch

fAunounes m2 lakh)

Particulars A ut Murch 31, 2022 [ Asat Warch 31,2021
| Mpesease o decrease i inerssi rpie he 25 - SRh - |
| leames paints |

Price Risk

Prace rizk = the risk tha the G value o it cesh Tows of o Gnascinl ingrment will Toateats beeavse of changes in market
preees (othet than those ansing from unerest e rsl or varmency risk),

Lhe Groap s exposel Lo priee risk doe o dweestents inonaacuad Tueds and elessifisd as L value Teeagh proe and loss, The
Group mwasares risk throngh sensitivioy anplyais,

The Croup's sl management policy s o mibigate the risk kv ipvestments in ool fencs, The Group hos investioent i ol
Tmls armounbing Re 99216 Takh as e March 3], 2022 (Mareh 31, 2021 Re, Bil) and aceordingly s exposes w price sk,

Senslivity analysis;
(Anounts i__n_ _?’;_Ifriill}

| Particulars Limpact on profit { (loss) before tax

et March 31, 2022 As i Mareh 31, 2021

Incroase or decrease in MAV by 2% 159,54 =




aR

Crodit risk

Credit rish is the risk that coumerpanty will nol mest its abligatives under a Boaneal instenment or customer conleaet, leading w o
Iinaveral loss, With respeet to eredit risk arfsing fom other financinl stk of the Caroup, which comprise Balanees wich banks,
lrade Receivables, Loans and Advances and [evestments, The Crroups exposure o eredie visk anises Trom default of de
counterpary, with mexinam exposure cqusl ta the carring i of these instrmant.

The carrying value of finonein] assews represenrs the masSnmm eredst visk, The mesisem ex s o oredit risk was s 10, 158,50
Lakb and Rs 0000 Lalkd: as ot Masel 71, 2008 and Much 30, 2021 respestively, Deing the sl cerying value of Luses and
Advanees, Trade seceivables, lnvestments, Rilances willi ok, bonk epostta imd other finanenl assels,

Liquidity Risk

Liguidiy ciak i the risk that ao enlity will cneonnier dliffieahty i meoting obligntinns sxsovinted wits Gnancial Babitities tha ave
settled by delivering cash ar anolber Gnancial sssets,

Tl Group s expasedd o liquudite sk due to bunle borrgwdngs and 1y ond other payakhics,

The Goonp eusures rigk by Barevusting eushy o,

The Croup's appreueh o managiog lieuidity s 1o eosire, ws fae as possible, i it wiil by T sulfieient lguidaty e meet s
liohilites when due withaue meuicing anseecprable losses o risking & sl U Chroup®s nepuletion, The Groun susures tha: it
has sulMieion oods @ et expected operational expenses, servicing af teancial ohligulions,

I acdition, provesses aid policics related to such risk are overseen by senjor fanagement Managameat moniters the Goaup's
licuidiey pasitivn Croagh rolling Torceast or the basis of expeeted cish ows,

Fhe table below summuprises gie maarity protile ol ihe proups Goancial liabilities based on eontietind wediseouied PAYINCLS

{Arounts in ¥ lakly

As al ' Carrying Amount <1 ¥r, 1-3 Y =3 Y18,
J1-03-2022
| Boowings  1.46,537.80 [L00 L £, L, 0] 13753780 |
Timde Favables 1.101.23 ' 101,23 .
Other Finsncial 241 41 24141 ] . -
Liabililies - | s ==L
i Total 1.47,8R0.44 I 204204 | slno a0 1,37,537.80
[ Ayt Carrying Amount <1 Yr. 1-3 ¥rs, ¥3¥r.
31-03-2021
“I}um_\'.\-i:q_!:i - - -
Irade Payables . T 5
Qthe Fanincia Bl | WrR ] = ;_ -
Lizhilities
Tutal TR 67.81 - -

Disclosure pursuant fo IND AS 36 "Lmpairment of Assets”

Baserd an managentent revisw an expected Mg cash s and seonamic conditions of the assels ol 1he Gironp, o indicitars of
impaiement of assets exist 2e am the repocting date, L case of Goadwill, the vacoverable amount is Bigher thie (e eamving amennl
as on reporting date, Henwve no pravision lee mmpaizment bas been recognised in the books o3 oo the reporting date.
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Disclosure of Financial Instroments by Cotegory
[amomnts m ¥ Lakhy

Particulars Axoal Asoal ‘
M allj_l:}_l__.ﬂ.. 2022 Mureh 31, EIJ_Z _l__ ]
Amortized FEVIEeL Amortized I'IVEL |
Seot Al Fair Caat ALCost | Al I-'airTﬁIﬂE—‘
N Yalue |
Assels: L - .
Chsh and Cush AR08 L
Lgmivalents
| Erade Reccivables G0 AT - ; e
Ohiler Finnecis! Assels [ & i ~ - JE &
Investnients  in Myl | | 992,16 - -
Tinds I .
Tl O, T 48 - 4826 - - -
Bomrowings LA 33T N - - - - -
Trede Pavables 1,101.23 | - - - - -
{Other Financial 24141 : = (ol |
Lizbililivs T
Tolal 14788044 - - [7.81 - -

Detaniis and Breaches

There 2re na deliulis daring the year with sespee Worepayment of prineipal and ooyment of interes) ged fo beeaches ol the werms
and conditwns ol the booswings

There are o bresehes durme e year whicl peconiited lemnder e dermand secelermied pasiment,

Fair Values of Assets nnd Liabilities

Thes carrving srinnd of all financial assots sad labdinies appeasing o the Pnancal statements s reasonale approgineion of S
values, e veloe el the Goeacis] assels and Dobitilies is the amouns ab which the instument conte be excltanged i a current
vansactiog: bebweer willing praties, oCer thar o foroed oe Hguidotion sale,

Jhe Group s reqaired fo aresent the Statement ol el asseis al Faie salue ansl Skt of el selurms at laie valoe as pe: ST
Crreular Noo CHUVIMDYGE T EE 2816 dated Ceober 20, 2006 a5 a part ol these Gnanzal statemerss - Reler Starzment of Metassols
a7 tane valee and Sticemart of Total Refurns at Ty value

Fair ¥alue Hivrarchy

All finencinl instmoments Ter which Gir value 15 100
as tallonwe, Based an the loweest level fnput thal &« sip

Level 1= Ouoted prices (unadjusied) in active reckels G blenlical nssels or liahil

el ar disclaszd are cateporised within the for waloe hierarchy deseribed
b e walue mensyremend £5 1 whinle.

Tees,
Level 2 — haps other than guoted poaces welusded seithin Level | ilal aes observable Qo the asset o linhility, @ither divectiy {ie.
ag precsj or indiresty (e, derived oo prices).

Lewel 3 = Inputs bor che assets or Habriges tha are not bosed on obeervable maket daw (unolgersable inpus)

Cless wise eonnpasition srd comparison of carrying amannis and faor valuss of Gnancial assees amd Lahilines e are reeagniaed
e Lnaneial stataments along with Foair Value Flicrarehy details ars given bekawe:
Pavmounts w3 lukin

Particulars Iair Value Currving Valye | Fair Valee
Hierarchy Awad As ot Asat Asat
L_B'.-t‘l Mareh 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021 March 51, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021

Financial Assets
ar Amorhzed

Level 3 S AKETR - 3 3EL.TH -
Trade Recetvahles Tevel 3 Han A7 “ Gl A -
Uther  Fuaneii | Level 3 LAT6ITE = ERECHE: .
Assels o - ! o
Vinancial Assets -
at FVTPL: | o _ |
[nvestiments iy | lewel | 997 i " e 4
Mestnal Funds -
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Tatal | 10,158,59 . 16,158,59 -

Financial ' f .

Liabilities

Amortized Cnst:

Boftowings  Teveld | 1653780 . 1,46,337.80 . l
\ﬂk Payibles Leveld | 110123 | - RITEE . -

Other  Funmoiul Fewel 3 T 24147 07,8) T M4 6781

|..'.!|.|i|'_ii_ll_.'_.-:'___ _ e i I - |

Total | D 14788044 | 6781 | 14788044 6781

There nze e eansfors between fevel | and level 2 duningg the vens.
The paliey altise Group is 1o necognise tremslers inca sl wansfer out of T values ivenrehy levels s ne the ond ol the seperting
prerind

Viduation technfgue and inputs used (o determine e value

l;ill-:l-lll.‘i_:il :mvl&_.-_n_mﬁi:a_lni‘lil_i_t_-.s __\"lllmtlhm medhod _ Inpts |
| Finenciel assets .y g - o
| Iovesmaent i Muteal Funds E Markat Appronch - _ NAV N
livestinen s in cquity shares afsubsidingies | o Ll Plow o
_Luis;g’ ' _ . m e _ Ellevhive Rate of Interest
Financia! liabilities
_ len Joans (rony Baak P Lllkelive Rare ul Durrowings
| Mon-Convertible Deberrares licoime Fffeetive Rale of Berrowines

Disclosure of segment information purseant to IND AS 108 "Oporating Scgnients!

Thenctivites al the Grovp macly include trvesting (o ufiestroctune assets primarily in the Sy aperilng in the read secler m
penerite cish flows for disteibution o unie holders, Bosad on e poiding primeiples given in Ind AS - 08 “Onerming Segments”,
s aetivine falls within o single vperating sepiment, Fuether, the entice eperntions of the Ceonpoore anly in India and henee,
disclosure of secondary ¢ gevgraplical sepment infirmation does nal asise, Accordingly, cesprirement of providing diselosures
coonr Ind A8 108 docs nol arise

Details of does To Micro and Small Enlerprises ay per MSMED Acr, 200G

There erono Micre wnd Small Eaterprises e defined in the Miora and Small Enterprises Developament Ael, H006 te whiss e
Craup owes dues om aceaunt ol principal gomeun: trgether weth interest wd aceerdingly no additowal disclosnres have been ade,
The above nfernation regarding Miczo and Smuill Eitetprises hes been detormined 10 the extont such prctics s been idensified
o e Susis of nfoneabon ovagdable wish e Ciroo,

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 “Employce Benefits”

Drelined caniributivn lan;

Contributions b Provident Tund seheme amd he Enployes Depesit Linked Insuranes schomes of e weermnment of Tndia, 5s o
sperified percentige of menthly payrell costs comprise the only abligations of the Cirenng with respeel o defined contrihnfion
plans fom the employees

A ament of Bs. 013 Lkl for the reporting period (Ma<ch 31, 2021: Rs, Kil), being cottribution made 0 these funds is
recopniced as expense under Emplovee Benefit anfrenss (Mate 26 in the Cogsnlidhaed Statement of Profit amd Lo,

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuily:
The benefit is governad by Payment of Ciatoily Ace, 1972, ind 15 saleuluied g3 Tollows:

Compaonents Particulars

Benefits elleredl 15820 ¥ Salary « Duration of Service

Salary Defnuion Bazic Salary iIIEtJ.:'|¢.li|:|._', Dearpeas Allvwsmice (U any)

Vesting Conditions 3 years of continuous service (ot applicable in case ol death/dizaailing
! Bencir Bligibiliny Lo Preatly or Resipnation /W hdrawsl o Befirement 8
| Retirement Age 38 veary

Disclosure pursuant tn IND AS 23 “Boremwing Costs™

Bormowing cost eapitalised doring the year Rs Nil [March 3 I, 2021, R SNal]
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Dietails of Project Manogement Fees and Dvestment Management Feos

Diatails of fes paiil 1o project manager and investineet mansger ag requived pursuant e SEBECiveclar Mo, CHRAMDIRE L 222014,
dated Novembar 29, 2016 ane ss imler:
Project Mamngement Fees

The Project Muaoer (NEPMPEY for mamaging the il peecfolis o sssets soenbitled e Projeet Manpgenent Fee which awa
prrcentage of Uie pross sevenne eamad by the prajeet SEV (NHIPPLE The sarme is bused on tha Project biplementation and
Moapagement Aerscment (1A ) spned By ol dae pariies dated 30V March, 2021

[he praject SPV ENTIPPLY proposed a fees o Bs 70,00 Lakd (tupees Seventy [ulcs Only} per inonth, as prenest mamger's foes
azainst e services plierad by e project manager, S0 a period of L8 wenths stirting Trom e dae of the Cansession sgreement,
[ e Proseet Munuper s Lees dor the petiod affer the expire of T8 muanibs shall Tie a percentaee ol grogs revenne eumed by te project
SPV ONEUPPLY, whiclt s mutually agreed hetwean the parties in e PIMA,

Investiment Management Iees

0 Uhe drvestment mamger's lee o will fnidally be Ba 1100 Lakh tlnpees Sleven Hurdred Lakh) per annge, exelusive of
ppplicalle taxes as per agroement dated 217 Octaber, 2000

i1 The investient manager's feo ser put in abhove shall b subgect o esealotion oo o anual bases a0 e vate of TR of the
nagemant fee for ihe previons year,

s lee and shall e payable by Manonal

iy Any applicable venes, cess or chinrges shall e o addivon wotke investiment mameg
Highways Intrn Trast CNTET ) o the Bavestrent Musager (ML)

iv) The payinent ol investment imanager’s fee shall be nde v Wational Fighwags Tolvs Teast (v HEEY o che i
(NHTIMPLY i acdvacee on s quarterly basis,

selenl manayer

Simificant accountig judgements, estimates and ssyompliong

Che preparation of the Graup's Greocwl stoemans requires nueagement womake idgenents, eslinzaess and assumptions thal
atteat the repored snoonts ol everies, ey s descts aod Labilitzs, and the avcampanying diselesures, soc the diselisune of
cantimgrent linbil ties. Uliteenainty abaut these assuniptions snd estimates cou ikl resnll in oueamas tat reqaive o eaterialaljustment
to the careyig amoant ofassets oo labitites affected in Sinere periols

Judgements

g ncEents, apt Boog thess
wial statements:

I the poocess of apriving thie Gronp's seeonnting nolicies, e eement os made the 1nll
invalsi simatians, sehich have the most sgailizans elffect cn the amewtts reeognisad in i

Classification of unit holders Funds

Lomder the provisiens o the SEBL avel 0 Bempplabions, ©oe o i veguived o datrilite oo s Linge molelers nol less than ey
perrent ol the net denibutable eosh flows of the Group fer each Tnancial vear Accardingly, o poeticn of e unit beldess” Tunds
comtain i cantrietual shlanion of the Croup o pay o ils Thit boldecs sasl disaibutisns,

The Uit helder's Aonds conld thereTore hove been clussifled os somgound finaneinl instroment whick contans botl equity and deat
cemponents in accordinee witl: Ind A8 32 "Finzncal Instouments;: Presentation’, Flewever, i aeenndance with SERI Circolars
{Cirevlr po. CTRAMIEDT 142016 dated Octeber 20, 2016 and Mo, CIRARMDE DUZT2006 dued Movember 24, Ml sssued
under the SERI Tnad T Regulations, G unit hokdees” funds have been clazsifed as aoguily imovdes o conply wilh the mancdalnry
reguitements al Secticit 1ot Annaxure A o

the STEI Circular dated Octabher 20, 2016 dealing with 15e panimum diseloswes for key finerein] stalenients In lne with the
sbove, the income dizmribotion pavabic o unit bolders i recognized ax lisbilior when the same is soproved by Doard of Divectors
af the lovesiment Manager

Fair valuation and disclosures

SED LT Repulations requires disclosures relaling toonel ssaels al fan value and total retioms at
for walue, T estimating the i value of investments in subsidiaries (which constibute substanizl portion of e nel assels), the
Groop sngages independent qualilied extesnal valuers 1o perform (he valuation. The Investinest Menager werks closely with the
waluers o establish the appreprate valuation techniques wod inputg wthe model, The valualian repors and fbings are discussed
57 the mzeting of he Board of Diveetors on yeacly basis 1o undersianed the chimges i the Ricvalue of the subsidia
o the valuation models ace taken from cbezrvable parkets, where possiblz, but wheee tlus is not feasible, s degres of july
i reyuired 0 establiching faiv valves, Judgemerss inehels consideratinng ol inpuis sucl as weighted avernge vost of capilal, tax
res, inDalion fates, e, Chanees in assumptions ahout fese Gtors coukd allze the B value.

SEBL Cirenlars issued undar the

s The dnpls
teepal
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Tixes

Inaccerdince with secton 10 {23FC) of the Invome Tax Act, 1961, the leame of business groups in the form of inlerest received
or receivable Fum subsidiories is exempt fom fax. Accordingly, the Citeup s mot pequired to provide any curent s lbiling,
Purther. deferred Lex asset on carry forward losses is mot eleatd simee there 14 e reasorable certiinly ol reversal of the sume in
e near future,

Mujor Muintenance Expenses ! Resurlacing Expensos

As prer imdusivy practice, the company 1 required to carry sl rosurtaciog of ke couds undér (he Comcessinn. For his puspese, o
regular mamtenasnes along with peviodic malmnenimaes iy pepnied e b perfioemed Moy, peviodic msaimtesames inelades
resartace of pavemonts, vepairs ol strveides and oflig chmpinent and mainlenanee of seeviee rends, The malntenanee cogt £
Buumminous overliny may vary based on the actual wsagre duing mesinlemance peciad. Adendingly, v the Lrovncg ol matehing ¢ost
woneept med based oo eehnicol estimaies, o poovson foe imaion mainlenanes expenses iy reviewed wod iy provided s e the
aveamis zanualiy

L pected Credit Loss on linancial asseds

As per Lk AR 109 Financial Assety that are ewasized at amortisod cost ore cequired 1o covite the Expevted Credit Loss (0L
As ELLe reperting pariod, vestment mnsager ol e Ciracg assessod e credibrisk of the nancial ussets oo concladed i no

provision for BCL s requiced

Contingent Liabilitiey

Ihe Project SPY company (NHIPPL) Bas sssued 5 Corporate Guarantee amounting to s, 2,000 Crote an 14033022 in frour of
fendess of Use Trost as part of deht covenants 01 the loaan received from the Trust, 1o geevze te tenn loan of Ra. 2080 Crore availed
by tke Trust fronn extermal lenders. The Corporse Guarantee is valisl B11e extersal Louns 1o the Tres) ave sntlsfiod.

Suhseguent Events

On May 23, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Tnvestment Manager approved distibution o R, 0,79 Pz sl (Rt O capila)

ol Re 71 per units veturn of enpital of By, Wil pec unil, Dividend ol Ry, Mil perunil anel o

A

wr incame oo swplus funds al Group

ol Re. 008 per anie) Jon the period October 012020 10 Mareh 2. 2021 w0 e Pl e beliere 15 davs fron the dae T declaration,

Capital and Other Commitments

There are ne capital and ather cammime

Distributions Vade

ek

(414

Axl Mareh 31, 2022 (March 31, 20210 Rs, Nily

iAot in T Laich)

Particulars

Iy 2021-22

Inersst (Ketum an cupila]]

409627

Fy 2420-21

Beten ol capital

b5 - + |
Chizer tnecme ansaplus i at Group AR - I
| Total _ 470208 z |

Reconciliation of Financing Activities in Cash Flow Statoment

Net Delst Recagnilion

fAmouats in  Jukh)

I Particulars

3 bk, 2022

3 |"'T_\\‘_'[:ir:_'.h, 2021

(Laong Term Borrowing)

(Long Term Barrnwine)

Carrying amaune of debt al the
bzganaing of the yearfperimd

Addmional barrwin s during i
arperiad

LA Q00 i

Repavirints during the yearperied (100150 -

Orher adjustoreniasettlenents durine - -

the yearperiad

- Trnpact in equity - .

- Transaviion C;onsle: (lva.nng -

- l_,.!"!“'i'.lldilu:', alinterest 1139 ]

SE amaut ol debt a7 the end of
the yuar

Ly

14653780
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Additienal Regulatory Information

Financial Ratios as on March 21, 2022

S.No. | Tarticulars A 0 As on |
Murch 31, 2022 flarch 31, 20210 |
i Courtenl Agsel risti 200 -
P vrrenl Agsels Aourrent Liabilily ) B ]
2 Dk Bty ratio ba2d -
Lk Equityy i |
1 Deln servive covernge tilia 2.58 -
(Mot Ohperating Cash Mo Delsl Sorvice Ohlicatim) | | e
4 ROE riio L2 -
| N Peafil Fanity) . =
5 loventary tenoves o - -
i Trade recarvable oy ratio - .
b e penole turnaver ratis - .
# Net Uapital tamover ralio SLH -
Cloted Dneome / Net Workang Capival)
Yy et profit ratis 45 HAY "
| INet profis { otal Income) :
it Return v caprial cinployed vatio |.38%% -
AgNet Protit plus Faanee Cost) {Equily | Delbt) _ o
11 Rt on invesiment |5 0ty -
| (Tmeoeme om Ineestment § Asernpe Cost of Investmant) L.

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 33 "Earnings per Unil”

Baste and Dilned Tareings per Uail (TP compuiel i accordunce with Tnd &8 33 “Eumitnas per Share"™
faraoumts in T Iekh)

Particulars o I FY202022 [ FY 202021 ;
Basic nad Diluted [ o .
Proefo adributakle b unil Bollars ol the Fund 140 | [T =

_ uad gverage sumaer afunits (B) 305300 =n - :
Eaunings 'er Unic (In Ks.) (A1) 1.15 - !

Face valie per Unit (1o Rs) L -

key spurces of cstimaiion

The pregaration of finsnciul statements ncanfirmity sith Tod AR reguives the Greop noahes estinsetes and assamptions thas arfect
e and exenses ol e period, Do repocted balanees of meets and Vabilitles and the discloziies
zn:lu_'jug Lt \Ll_..'lili!l:_."i_"lll_ Lehilizies s ol e date ol e i thymy ;j:;zljt.’u_;]lituls A oy
an an angelng basis, Wevisions o accounticg estinaies nelude allowance Too deubtlul loans fetzer reccivables, faic valus
measuremant ore, Difference, if any, between he somial tecalrs and estimates 3 recapnisad in the periad in which the resulis e
Koo

the reprrted amwanle of

wizl stalenmenls, The estmates and g
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Previous Year Figures

Previous yead's tuembers have been regrouped ¢ reclassilicd, wherever AECESEArY fo ConSirm o curest years classilicalion,

For AL & Co,
Charrered Accountynts
Firm Registention no, QU2Z7440

i

CA Naresh Kunsr Kurp
Partnern

M. O?TRRT

Date. 23.03.2022

Place: New Delhi

For and on behall ol the Mational Highways Tnivs
Investment Manngers Private Dimited (Investmend
Mamaper of Natlonal THghwavs Tnfra Frust)

Sudd-
Suresh Ieishun CGoyal
[ricevor
DI G221 580

Silf-
Maihew Gearge
Clhrel Financial (e

Sdi-
Mlalavie Parsud Sharma
Threstor
DN Q3155413

R
Gunjain Singh
Connplinee Offiesr
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Care=dge
RATINGS
Mo, CAREfARO/GEN/2022-23/1023

Shri Suresh Goyal

MD & CEO

National Highways Infra Trust

G5, 6, MHAI Corporate Office, Sector-10

Dwarka
New Delhi
Delhi 110075
April 28, 2022
Confidential
Dear Sir,
Credit ing for bank faciliti

This has reference to your emall dated April 27, 2022 on the above suliject.

2 In this connection, we Invike your attention t aur rabing letter no. CAREJAROJRLS 2021-22/5289 dated January
15, 2022 assigning the rating to the lang-term bank facilities and issuer rating of your Trust, We confirm that the
following ratings are oulstanding for your Trust,

Ampunt

Facilities

(Rs, crore)

o 200000 CARE AAA; Stable
Leng Term Bank Facilities | . (Triple A; Outlook: Stable)
' CARE AAA (Is); Stable |
Issuer Rating# 0.00 (Triple A (Issuer Rating);
Outiook: Stable)
2000.00
Tatal Instruments (Rs. Two Thousand Crore Only)

#the aoove Tssuer Rating’is subjact to consolidatad dehifentenise valus not exceeding 49%
Please refer to CARE's Rating symbols at Annesxurg 1

oA CARE Ratings L, reserves the right to revise/reaffirmiwithdraw the rating assigred as also revise the outlook, as a
result of periadic review/surveillance, based on any event ar information which in the opinion of CARE Ratings Ltd,
warants such ar action. CARE Ratings Lid. shall alse be entitted to publicze/disseminate all the afore-mentioned rating
actions (n any manrer considered appropriate by b, withous refarence to you,

4. All the other dauses vide cur letter dated January 25, 2022 would cantinue to spply for the abave rating(s).

If you need any dlerification, you are welcome to approach us In this regard,

Thanking you,

Yaurs laithfully,

Nishid Khemka Maulesh Desai
byt - Associate Director

maplesh.desal@carsadae. i

CARE Ratings Limited

31, Tlasinn, Frahaladnagar Corporate Rezd, dth Floor, Godre) Calisaum, Sormalw Hespital Raad, OFF
Sateliile, Arvnedalnd — 380015 Festern Express Highway, Son (East), Murmibi - 400 522
Fhans: +9Z-79-402h 5050 Pl 032267513450

Friik: care@careedge.in = www.carseadge.in
CIN-LOT 20595 R L 071691



Disclalmer

The ratings issued by CARE Ratings Limited are apinions on the [kalibaodd of timely payment of the obligations under the
rated instrument and are not recommendations te sanction, renew, disburse or recall the concernsd bank facdliies or to buy,
sell or hold any security. These ratings do not conwey suitability ar price for the investor, The agency does not constitute an
auclit on the rated entity, CARE Ratings Limited has based iks ratings/outlooks based on nformation obtalined from rellable
and credible sources, CARE Ratings Limited does not, hawever, guarantes the accuracy, adequacy or camplateness of any
miormation and Is nol responsible for any arors or omissions and the results obtained from the use of such Information,
Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by CARE Ratings Limited have paid a credit rating fee, based on Lhe
amount and type of bank facllites/instruments, CARE Ratings Limited or its subsidiaries/associates may also be invalved with
other commercial transactions with the entity, In case of partnership/propdetary concerns, the rating foutlook assigned by
CARE Ratings Limited Is, inter-alia, based on the capital deployed by the partners/ proprietor and the current financlal strength
of the firm, The rating/outlook may undergo a change in case of withdrawal of capital or the unsecured loans brought in by
the partners/proprietor In additon e the financial performance and other relevant facters, CARE Ratings Limited s nat
responsible for any emors and states that it has no financial lability wiiatsaewer to the users of CARE Ratings Limited's rating.
Our ratings do nat facter in any rating related rigger clauses as per the terms of the facilibg/instrument, which may invelve
acceleration of payments in case of reting downgrades, However, if any such clauses are introduced and if tiguered, the
ratings may see valatllity and sharp downgrades,

CARE Ratings Limited

32, Litanwum, Prahaladnagar Corporate Road, Ath Floar, Godrej Collseum, Somalya Bocpltal Hoad, OF
Sateilite, Ahmedabad — 330015 Feslein Express Mighway, Bion {Ezsl), Mo bal - 400 022
Bhone: +91- 784026 5556 Phcne: 101-22-6754 3155

Email: careicarepdgein = weaw careetdra n
CiN-LA FI50MH1993 PLCDF 1651
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Annexure 1

CARE Rating Symbols and Definitions for Long /Medium Term Debt Instruments

mbols Rating Definition =
CARE AAA Instruments with this rating are considered to have the highest degree of afety regarding
timely servicing of financial obligations. Such Instruments carry lowest credit rsk.
CARE A& Instruments with this rating ere considared to have high degree of safely regarding timedy
serviang of financlal obligations. Such inskruments carry very low credit risk, )|
CARE A Instruments with this rating are considered to have adequate dearee of safety regarding
| timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry low creditrisk,
CARE BBB Instruments with this rating are considersd to have moderate degres of safety regarding
__| timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry moderate credit risk,
CARE BB Instruments with this rating are considered to have moderate risk of dafault regarding
| |timely servicing of financial obligations, N _
CARE B Instruments with this rating are considered to have high risk of defaylt regarding timely
servicing of financial obligations,
CARE C Instruments with this rating are considered to Fave very high risk of default regarding timely
. _Servicing of financial obligations,
I CARE D Instruments with this rabing are in default or are expected to be in default soon

Modifiers {"+" (plus) / "-" (minus)} can be used with the rating symbols for the categories CARE AA ko CARE C.
The madifiers reflect the comparative standing within the category,

CARE Ratings Limited

32, Tarum, Frahaladnagar Corporate Road, Ath Floor, Godref Calsewm, Somalya Hespits! Road, OF
Saelite, Ahmedanad — 480015 Enatern Express Highay, Son (East], Mumbsi - 400 022
Frone: +21-75-4026 SAL6 Phiare: <532 2-6254 3456

Ermali: care @careedge. in » weww caresdge in
CIN-LETI90MH1994PLO0T 16D
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Prrmese uve TT1

IndiaRacings I tChGI'OU,p
& Research

A =ch Group Company

Mr, Suresh Goval

MD & CEO

National | Tighseuys Infra Tnvestment Managers Pyt Ll (On Belal of Naona] | Lighways Bnfka Truse)
G 3&s, Secwor 10, Dwarka,

New Debhi- 110075

Mav 11, 2022

Dear Siv/Medam,

Re: Rating Letter for Bank Loan Ratings of National Highways e Trowi

Thix is in reference to the rating action commentary released on 110 March 2022

Inclia Rarings anxl Research {Ind-Ra) is pheased to communicate Matimul Highways Inlra Trust's rupee tem Joan rating at \IND AAA", The
Oudeok s Stable.

In ssumng and mainlaining its ratings, India Ratings relies oo fctual infarmation i@ recelves from issuers and yndersriers and from other sources
Indin Ragngs befieves 1o be credible. India Ratings conducts a reasonable investigation of the factual information reled upen by i o accardanae
with dis ratings methodology, and obtains reasonabks verification of that informtion from independent sowces, to the extent such sources are
avatlable Tor a given securily

The manner of Indis Rulmgs factual investigation and (he seoge ol the thivd-party verificarion i abfains will vary dependmg on the mature of he
rated security and #s issuer, the requirements and practices i Indin where the rated seewity m olfered and sohl, the availabilly snd maoue of
relevant public information, neeess to the management of e suer and iis advisens, the availability of pre-existng tind-party veeifications such as
awdit reports, agreed-upan proceduses leters, appraisals, setsrial reports, enginescing reports, kpal apinions ane olber reports provided by chard
partics, the availabiliy of mdependent and compatent thind-party verification sources wilh respect W the particular security or i the partioular
Jorsdicnion of the issver, and 2 variety of other factors,

Users of Inda Ratings’ ratings should understanst thar ne#ler un enhanced fctual iewesligntion noy any (hird-party verilicatin can ensure that all
of the mformacon Todin Ratings rehies on in comection wilh & ratiog will be acourate and complete. Ultimelely, the sseer and s 2dvisers are
respomsible for the uccurmey of the information they provick: 1o Tndi Ratings und to the marke! in offersy dcuments and ollier reports. In wsuing
its ratings India Ratmgs must rely on the work ol experts, inclulng mdependenl auditors with regpect to lnaneial staterments and aftorneys with
respect to legal and wx matters. Further, ratings are mherently Brward-looking and embody sssumptions and predictions abwed future events that
by their nature cannnt be verified as facts. As a resul, despite amy verification of current lacts, ratmps con be affected by lulure events or
conditins that were not anticipated at the fime a rating was Bsued or affiimed,

Ingie Ratings seeks i continuously improve its ratings criterly arl methodologies, und persdically updates the deseriptons on its websis of its
critera and methodalogies for securdties of o given type. The criteri snd methododgy used o delermme a rating setion ate tese in effect at Uhe
tme the rating action i taken, which for public raungs i (he date ol the refated mimg seton commentsry, Bach rating aetion commentary provides
infarmation aboul the criteris and methodokgy used W arrive at the stated tating, which may differ fom the general erieria aid methodology for
the appheabke sccwrity type posted on the website a1 & giver time, For this reasen, vou shinld abwass consull the applicable rating acton
commentary {0 the most acourste information on the hasis of any given public rating,

Ratmgs are based on estublished criteria and methodokysics that India Ratings i« confinnously evalisting and upditing, Theretore, ralmgs are the
collective work product of Tndia Ratings and no indivikhe], or group of individuals, is solely responsible for a ratinge Al India Ratings reports have
shared authorship, Indvaduals identified in an Indim Ratings report were invebied in, bul are not sulely responsible fur, the opmions stated there,
The mdividuals are named iy contacl purpuses onhe

Rarings are nof a recomimenclation or sugpestion,

direcily or idiectly, 10 you o any olher persan, (o buy. sell, imake or hold any ivestment, lan or

India Ratings & Resaarch Private Limited A Fitch Group Compa ny 13 E

Wockhardt Tower, Level4, West Wing, Bandra Kurta Compler, Bandra (E} Mumbai - 400051
7al: #3122 2000 1700 | Fax:49122 4000 1701 | CIN/LLPIN:UG7 100MHISS5FTC 140045 | wur ratings. couin



IndiaRatings F itchGroup
& Research

A Fitch Group Company

security of 1o undertake any mvesiment strategy with respect o any investment, loar or seeormy o any ssuoc Ratings do nol comement an the
adequacy of market price, the suitahility on any ivestment, an or securnity for & paricular invesuor (neludmg willond Bvitatiae. any aceountmg
andior regulatory rreatment), or [he lax-exempt nuture o tebility of prymiens made i respect of any nvestment, kian or security. loehin Ratmgs
is not your advisar, nor s Todin Ratngs providing to you or any other party any finaseinl advice, or any legal, auditing, accounting, appraisal.
valuation or acluaral services. A rotog should not be viewed as o rephicement foe such advice o services. Tnveslons miy find Todis Rolings
radings 10 be irportant informatke, and Inda Ratmgs notes that you are responsible for communicating the contents of this letter, and any changes
with respect 1o the rating, 10 investors.

1t will be important tial you promptly provide us with all mformetion thal may he materal to the rmings so it oue ratings: coatmue to- be
appropriate, Ratmas may be raised, lowered, withdawn, or placed on Rating Watch due to changes i, addions 1o, accuracy of or the madequacy

of mformation or faramy other reasen India Ratmes deems sutlizwenl,

Nothing in this lelter s intended to or shoukl be construed as creating o fiduciry relationshny between Indi Raotings and you or between Todia
Ratings and any user of the ratmgs,

In this ketier, “India Ratings' mcans India Ratings & Research Pyl Lid, amd args sugcessor m mierest,

We are pkased w heve had the opporfunite to be of service 1o youw If we can be of (urier assistance, please emal us o at

miverpa indiaracngs. co.n
Smeenehy,
Inda Ratmgs

&

Abhishek Bhattacharva
Senior Director

MarionalHighwaysInfraTrust 11-May-2022
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Annexure: Facilitles Breakup

Iostruwment Deseriptiva Banks Name Rating Saanctioned Avmaunt (INRE o Han)
Term kan Steme Fank af Tiads INEVAAAS bl W

Term Loan A Dotk Linite IND ASAStable G0

Term s Hank of Mabamshine IND AAAS e AUk

KatiosalHihwaysInfraTrast

FitchGroup

Crubs baomeli g Ratedd Ao ((INI il on)
11K

1026

2R

%
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